
           

AGENDA
 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
TUESDAY
SEPTEMBER 1, 2015

  COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN AVENUE

4:00 P.M. AND 6:00 P.M.
 

4:00 P.M. MEETING
 

Individual Items on the 4:00 p.m. meeting agenda may be postponed to the 6:00 p.m.
meeting.

             

1. CALL TO ORDER

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

 

2. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means .

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MISSION STATEMENT

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life of its
citizens.

 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS
 

A.   Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Regular Meeting
of August 25, 2015, and the Special Meeting (Executive Session) of August 25, 2015.

 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an item that is not on the
agenda. Comments relating to items that are on the agenda will be taken at the time that the
item is discussed. If you wish to address the Council at tonight's meeting, please complete a
comment card and submit it to the recording clerk as soon as possible. Your name will be
called when it is your turn to speak. You may address the Council up to three times
throughout the meeting, including comments made during Public Participation. Please limit
your remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone an opportunity to speak. At the
discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting and wishing to speak may



discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting and wishing to speak may
appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes to speak. 

 

6. PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

None 
 

7. APPOINTMENTS

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that the City Council may vote to go into executive session, which
will not be open to the public, for the purpose of discussing or considering employment,
assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or
resignation of a public officer, appointee, or employee of any public body...., pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1).

None
 

8. LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARINGS

None
 

9. CONSENT ITEMS

All matters under Consent Agenda are considered by the City Council to be routine and will
be enacted by one motion approving the recommendations listed on the agenda. Unless
otherwise indicated, expenditures approved by Council are budgeted items.

 

A.   Consideration and Approval of Payment/Contract Renewal: Annual Computer Software
Maintenance  

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve payment of annual software maintenance costs in a budgeted amount not to

exceed $583,784.00 pursuant to contracts with: 

Harris Enterprise (City Contract No. A2012-0619.1), draft invoice for $133,402.50;
SHI (reseller for Microsoft) (Arizona Procurement Office Contract No.
ADSPO11-007500), draft invoice for $137,947.86;
SirsiDynix (Library) (City Contract No. A2000-1023.1, as amended 10/23/2000),
draft invoice for $74,577.44;
Intergraph Corp. (Public Safety) for $210,085.00 plus any applicable taxes, and
approve its contract renewal.

 

10. ROUTINE ITEMS
 

A.   Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Installation of an Emergency Generator at Fort
Tuthill Well located within the Coconino County Fairgrounds (Approve contract with
Commonwealth Electric Company in the amount of $506,500.00).

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Approve construction contract with Commonwealth Electric Company for

$506,500.00, and a contract time of sixty (60) calendar days.  
2) Authorize change order authority to the City Manager in the amount of $50,650.00
(10% of contract amount).
3) Authorize City Manager to execute the necessary documents.

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting September 1, 2015                           2 



B.   Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendments:  Innovation Mesa Business
Accelerator and Secondary Emergency Operations Center, Business Incubator and Service
Agreement.  (Amendments to leases and service agreements with NACET).

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Authorize the city to amend the existing master leases and service agreement with

NACET for the service provided to the Business Incubator and Accelerator;  both city
owned facilities on McMillan Mesa. 

 

C.   Consideration and Approval of Contract:  An IGA between the City of Flagstaff and the
Westwood Estates Fire District for Fire Medical Rescue services (Approve IGA with
Westwood Estates Fire District for fire and emergency medical services).

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Approve the IGA between the City of Flagstaff and the Westwood Estates Fire District. 

 

D.   Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Roads & Streets Operations and Maintenance
Efficiency Study RFP 2015-70 (Approve contract with LA Consulting, Inc. in the
amount of $197,769).

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  Award the contract for the Roads & Streets Operations and Maintenance Efficiency

Study RFP 2015-70 to LA Consulting, Inc. of Manhattan Beach, CA in the amount of
$197,769.  

 

E.   Consideration and Approval of Grant Agreement):  A grant agreement between the City
of Flagstaff and the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Aviation Administration
for Update Airport Master Plan Study with Airport Geographic Information System (AGIS)
and Airport Layout Plan (ALP). (Grant agreement for airport master plan study).

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Approve the acceptance of an FAA Grant Agreement in the amount of $500,000 for

the Update Airport Master Plan with AGIS and ALP project.
2) Authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents.

 

F.   Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-14:  Amending the Employee
Handbook of Regulations and Flagstaff City Code by adopting amendments relating to
Retiree Insurance eligibility.

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Remove Ordinance No. 2015-14 from the table

2) Read Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the final time
3) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the final time (if approved above)
4) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-14

 

G.   Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-16:  An ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, amending the Flagstaff City Code, Title I,
Administrative, by adding a new Chapter 12, Consideration of Petition, thereto.  (Citizen
Petition Submittal Form)

  RECOMMENDED ACTION:
  1) Read Ordinance No. 2015-16 by title only for the final time

2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-16 by title only for the final time (if approved
above)
3) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-16

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting September 1, 2015                           3 



RECESS 

6:00 P.M. MEETING
 

RECONVENE

PLEASE NOTE: DUE TO THE NATURE OF THE AGENDA ITEMS, THERE WILL BE NO
6:00 P.M. PORTION OF THIS MEETING. ALL ITEMS WILL BE DISCUSSED AND ACTED
ON DURING THE 4:00 P.M. PORTION .

 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3 ).

 
 

11. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS

COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

 

12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
 

13. CARRY OVER ITEMS FROM THE 4:00 P.M. AGENDA  
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS
 

15. REGULAR AGENDA
 

16. DISCUSSION ITEMS
 

17. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS

After discussion and upon agreement of three members of the Council, an item will be
moved to a regularly-scheduled Council meeting.

 

18. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS FROM COUNCIL AND STAFF, REQUESTS
FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

 

19. ADJOURNMENT
 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting September 1, 2015                           4 



CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF NOTICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that a copy of the foregoing notice was duly posted at Flagstaff City Hall on ___________ ,
at _________ a.m./p.m. in accordance with the statement filed by the City Council with the City Clerk.

Dated this _____ day of _________________, 2015.

____________________________________
Elizabeth A. Burke, MMC, City Clerk                                 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting September 1, 2015                           5 



  4. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk

Date: 08/27/2015

Meeting Date: 09/01/2015

TITLE
Consideration and Approval of Minutes: City Council Regular Meeting of August 25, 2015, and the
Special Meeting (Executive Session) of August 25, 2015.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Amend/approve the minutes of the City Council Regular Meeting of August 25, 2015, and the
Special Meeting (Executive Session) of August 25, 2015.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
Minutes of City Council meetings are a requirement of Arizona Revised Statutes and, additionally,
provide a method of informing the public of discussions and actions being taken by the City Council.

INFORMATION:
COUNCIL GOAL

Improve effectiveness of notification, communication, and engagement with residents,
neighborhoods and businesses and about City services, programs, policies, projects and
development

8.

Attachments:  08.25.2015.CCRM.Minutes
08.25.2015.CCSMES.Minutes



CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
TUESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN

4:00 P.M. AND 6:00 P.M.
 

4:00 P.M.
               

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Nabours called the Regular Meeting of August 25, 2015, to order at 4:02 p.m.
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council and to
the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into executive
session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with the City’s
attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to A.R.S.
§38-431.03(A)(3).
 

 

2. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means .

PRESENT

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA
 

ABSENT

 
Others present: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck and City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea.

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The audience and City Council recited the Pledge of Allegiance and Mayor Nabours read the
Mission Statement of the City of Flagstaff.
 

MISSION STATEMENT
The mission of the City of Flagstaff is to protect and enhance the quality of life of its citizens.

 



           

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS
 

A. Consideration and Approval of Minutes : City Council Work Session of July 14, 2015;
Special Work Session of July 16, 2015; and Regular Meeting of July 21, 2015.

  

 
  Moved by Councilmember Scott Overton, seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans to

approve the minutes of the City Council Work Session of July 14, 2015; Special Work
Session of July 16, 2015; and Regular Meeting of July 21, 2015. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Public Participation enables the public to address the Council about an item that is not on
the agenda. Comments relating to items that are on the agenda will be taken at the time that
the item is discussed. If you wish to address the Council at tonight's meeting, please
complete a comment card and submit it to the recording clerk as soon as possible. Your
name will be called when it is your turn to speak. You may address the Council up to three
times throughout the meeting, including comments made during Public Participation.
Please limit your remarks to three minutes per item to allow everyone an opportunity to
speak. At the discretion of the Chair, ten or more persons present at the meeting and
wishing to speak may appoint a representative who may have no more than fifteen minutes
to speak.

 
  The following individuals address the City Council regarding issues indicated:

♦Aidan Barry and Peter Burger, Pine Canyon, presented a check in the amount of
$922,099.30 for their transportation funds.
♦Bill Gonzalez regarding a vision he had of a Love Conference Center to be located on
McMillan Mesa.
♦Joseph Bullis, Whyld Ass, regarding their attempt to work with the City to provide music at
their venue within the noise ordinance regulations of the City.
♦Sagemaya Dandi regarding the need for more bus routes to downtown with NAIPTA.
♦Ladd Vagen and Kim Ott regarding the City's new high definition streaming system for
Council meetings which includes a scrolling calendar when meetings are not in session.

 

6. PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

None 
 

7. APPOINTMENTS

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that the City Council may vote to go into executive session, which
will not be open to the public, for the purpose of discussing or considering employment,
assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, dismissal, salaries, disciplining or
resignation of a public officer, appointee, or employee of any public body...., pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(1).

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          2 



           

A. Consideration of Appointments:   Board of Adjustment.   

 
  Mayor Nabours noted that there were actually three vacancies, but they currently only had

two applications on filed. He encouraged members of the community to consider applying for
this Board.

  Moved by Vice Mayor Celia Barotz, seconded by Mayor Jerry Nabours to appoint Pat
Loven and Greg Parker to the Board of Adjustment with terms expiring May 2018. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

B. Consideration of Appointments:   Parks and Recreation Commission.   

 
  Moved by Councilmember Eva Putzova, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to

appoint Ardis Easton and Brett Caldwell to the Parks and Recreation Commission, terms
expiring August 2018. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

C. Consideration of Appointments:  Sustainability Commission.   

 
  Moved by Councilmember Karla Brewster, seconded by Councilmember Scott Overton to

appoint Eli Chamberlain and Jeremy Krones to the Sustainability Commission, terms
expiring October 2016. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

  Moved by Councilmember Karla Brewster, seconded by Councilmember Scott Overton 
to appoint John Kistler to the Sustainability Commission, term expiring October 2017. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

8. LIQUOR LICENSE PUBLIC HEARINGS
 

A. Consideration and Action on Liquor License Application:   Felipe Guzman, "La
Santisima Gourmet Taco Shop", 119 S. San Francisco, Series 12 (restaurant), New License.

  

 
  Mayor Nabours noted that Community Development, Sales Tax and Police all found no

issue with the application. He then opened the Public Hearing. There being no public input,
the Public Hearing was closed.

  Moved by Councilmember Jeff Oravits, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to
forward a recommendation to the State for approval of the liquor license application
submitted by La Santisima Gourmet Taco Shop at 119 S. San Francisco. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

9. CONSENT ITEMS

All matters under Consent Agenda are considered by the City Council to be routine and will
be enacted by one motion approving the recommendations listed on the agenda. Unless
otherwise indicated, expenditures approved by Council are budgeted items.

 
  Mayor Nabours removed Item 9-B from the Consent Agenda.
  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to approve

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          3 



  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to approve
Consent Agenda Items 9-A and 9-C. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

A. Consideration and Approval of Street Closure(s):   Hopi All Native Arts and Cultural
Festival

Approve the street closure of Aspen Ave (between Leroux Avenue and San Francisco
Street) from September 26, 2015 at 6:00 a.m. through September 27, 2015 at 6:00 p.m.

  

 

B. Consideration of Appointments:  Accept resignation of Interim City Manager, appoint
new City Manager, and approve First Amendment to Agreement for Services to
reflect transition as of August 25, 2015.

  

 
  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans to reluctantly

accept the resignation of Jeff Meilbeck as Interim City Manager, effective at the end of the
Council Meeting of August 25, 2015. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

Mayor Nabours then presented Mr. Meilbeck with a token of appreciation, noting that he was
asked by Council to fill in to that position and he had graciously accepted it. He left his
position at NAIPTA with their gracious approval and has served the City extremely well. He
has done more than tread water for the past eight moths; he has advanced all of the City
programs and he was very much appreciated.

 

Deputy City Manager Copley then presented Mr. Meilbeck with a framed picture, and said
that on behalf of the City employees they appreciated him and his leadership. He said that
Mr. Meilbeck's connection with the community and his deep understanding of the challenges
helped him to hit the ground running and his leadership and fingerprint on the City, even in
eight months, is exceeding what other city managers would have accomplished in a number
of years.

 

Councilmember Evans said that she truly appreciated the opportunity to get to know him and
she wished him the best in returning to NAIPTA.

Councilmember Brewster said that she has known Mr. Meilbeck for quite awhile, having
been on the NAIPTA Board twice. She said that she fully expected it to be the way it was.
He stepped in with not much notice and has been able to move the City forward in their
goals and objectives. He carried forth his effort in his same objective manner in dealing with
issues and people.

Vice Mayor Barotz said that she has also known him for many years, having served on the
NAIPTA Board as well, and she tried to tell him that the City was a different animal. She
thought that he had done a terrific job and appreciated his calmness and level-headed
approach. In his eight months with the City he moved many important issues forward.

Councilmember Oravits echoed the comments, stating he has done an excellent job, leaving
the City in better shape and wished he him the best of luck.

Councilmember Overton said that he appreciated Mr. Meilbeck taking the risk, realizing it
was a sacrifice. It has been an invaluable experience for him and for the Council and City.
He said that it was a treat and he thanked him for his service. He looked forward to serving

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          4 



on the NAIPTA Board.

Councilmember Putzova noted that she and Mr. Meilbeck started near the same time and
she really appreciated his leadership style. She said that it was the exact type of style the
City needed in the interim period. They did a lot of work, but one of the processes she
wanted to highlight was the incredible job he did with the budget and the overall budget
process.

Ms. D'Andrea said that she had previously conveyed her thoughts at the Leadership
meeting, but she added that she very much appreciated working with Mr. Meilbeck and he
helped to bring the leadership together.

Mr. Meilbeck thanked everyone for the gifts and kind words. He said that it has been a
tremendous honor to be able to do this work with this team. He said that it was a great
organization and a reflection of a great community.

  Moved by Councilmember Jeff Oravits, seconded by Councilmember Karla Brewster to
appoint Josh Copley as the City Manager, effective at the end of the August 25, 2015,
Council meeting and approving and ratifying his Agreement and the First Amendment to
reflect the transition date. 

 
Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously

 

C. Consideration and Approval of Cooperative Contract:   Purchase of one (1) Caterpillar
D5 Dozer for Utilities Wildcat Hill Water Reclamation Plant (Facility) on a National IPA
cooperative purchase agreement with the City of Tucson--- Bid #12077 (Approve
Agreement with Empire Machinery in the amount of $159,344.48) .  

Approve the purchase of one (1) D5 Dozer from Empire Machinery through a National
IPA cooperative purchase agreement with the City of Tucson, AZ. for the amount of
$159,344.48 (tax and freight included. 

  

 

10. ROUTINE ITEMS

None
 

RECESS 

The 4:00 p.m. portion of the Regular Meeting of August 25, 2015, recessed at 4:40 p.m.
 

 6:00 P.M. MEETING
 
RECONVENE

Mayor Nabours reconvened the Regular Meeting of August 25, 2015, at 6:28 p.m.
 

NOTICE OF OPTION TO RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the City Council
and to the general public that, at this regular meeting, the City Council may vote to go into
executive session, which will not be open to the public, for legal advice and discussion with
the City’s attorneys for legal advice on any item listed on the following agenda, pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.03(A)(3).

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          5 



 

11. ROLL CALL

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA

ABSENT

COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER

 

Others present: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck and City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea.
 

12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
 
  Lisa Hutchinson, Flagstaff, commented on the issue related to the sidewalk repair in front of

her property and asked that someone on the Council champion changing the sidewalk
ordinance.

 

13. CARRY OVER ITEMS FROM THE 4:00 P.M. AGENDA
 

14. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS

None
 

15. REGULAR AGENDA
 

A. Consideration and Approval of Event Postponement:  Dew Downtown Flagstaff Urban
Ski and Snowboard Festival ITEM REMOVED FROM THE AGENDA BY CITY MANAGER
ON AUGUST 24, 2015

  

 

B. Consideration and Approval of Amendment to Financial Assistance Award : From
the U.S. Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration (EDA) for
the Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) Program as a financing tool to support economic
development.

  

 
  Business Retention and Extension Manager John Saltonstall gave a PowerPoint

presentation which addressed:

OVERVIEW
Description and History
Loan Size and Target Industries
Community Need
Role of Private Lending
Marketing
Existing Access to Capital Framework
Process and Example

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          6 



WHAT IS THE REVOLVING LOAN FUND?
Economic Development Administration federal grant of $217,000
City will manage the federal grant
Grant will be used to make loans to small businesses in Northern Arizona
As loans are repaid, those funds become available for new loans (revolving)

HISTORY
Economic Development Administration RLF for rural Arizona
Department of Commerce to NACOG to City of Flagstaff
Council Approval

LOANS
$217,000
$25,000 - $75,000
Term not to exceed five years

TARGET INDUSTRIES
Healthcare/Biotechnology
Software and Systems Design/Engineering/Development
Aviation Related Businesses
Transportation/Logistics
Research and Testing
Medical Device Manufacturers
Renewable/Clean Technology
Workforce Development/Education
Agriculture
Tourism/Entertainment/Destination Experience

COMMUNITY NEED
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy
Serves Apache, Coconino, Mohave, and Navajo Counties

INDUSTRY EXPERTISE
Financial Lending Institution will service loans

MARKETING
Commercial and industrial brokers
Commercial banks that serve the Target Area
Article per year in a local newspaper or periodical direct marketing
Business associations
EDD Native communities
NACOG website

EXISTING REGIONAL FRAMEWORK LOCAL PARTNERSHIP
www.nazfunds.org
SEDI
NACET
ECoNA
City of Flagstaff
Chamber

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          7 



Mr. Saltonstall said that right now the City of Flagstaff participates, but they do not have any
cash on the table. With this acceptance, they will be bringing the $217,000, providing
$25,000 to $75,000 loans. The funds themselves are being received from NACOG and the
City will administer them with personnel time involved, but no direct funding.

PROCESS
Apply
Loan Review Committee
Loan Administration Board

PROCESS EXAMPLE

Councilmember Oravits asked, if there are three Flagstaff staff members and two from the
lending institution serving on the Loan Administration Board, how they are sure to be
administered equally throughout the four counties. Vice Mayor Barotz noted that a lot of
what is being discussed is reflected in the agreement drafted by the EDA. Mr. Saltonstall
explained that there was a lot of dialogue back and forth and they worked with the EDA to
find out exemplary administrative plans. They took what NACOG used for this reason and
met the EDA's needs and the City's needs. Based on that, they determined this would
provide good oversight for the community and region and keep them in good standing of
financial practices.

Economic Vitality Director Heidi Hansen added that by going back to the Process flowchart,
they will see that before it even gets to the City's Loan Administration Board, it first goes to
the Loan Review Committee which has representatives from the various partners.

Councilmember Putzova asked how much of the $217,000 was designated to cover
administration costs. Mr. Saltonstall said that one percent is designated for administration.

DEFAULT
No payment
Collection
Write-off

Mr. Saltonstall said that the City would not be required to repay the loan in the case of a
write-off. The only exception to this would be if the City fails to follow prudent lending
practices or fails to follow the plan.

Councilmember Oravits said that they are coming to get these loans because they are not
able to go to a traditional lending source--they are a higher risk. Mr. Saltonstall said that was
one of the reasons that the EDA developed and made these funds available. Money gets
tight over time, but at the same time there is interest in spurring economic activity and new
business. He then read the list of different types of collateral that are accepted with the
program.

Councilmember Putzova asked Mr. Saltonstall, in his professional opinion, if the City of
Flagstaff will benefit from this relationship and if it is good, understanding that they have to
put in staff for the administration. Mr. Saltonstall said that he hoped so; it is anyone's guess
with the economy at this time, but in terms of their role in providing the business community
with the greatest number of tools to succeed, he thinks it is a good thing.

Vice Mayor Barotz suggested that they report back to Council in 12-18 months to evaluate
how much time staff has put in the process. Mr. Saltonstall said that there were mandatory

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          8 



reports due to EDA which could easily be shared with the Council at the same time.
  Moved by Vice Mayor Celia Barotz, seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans 

to approve and accept the Amendment to Financial Assistance Award from the Economic
Development Administration (EDA) for the Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) for a
total estimated amount of $217,000.

 
Vote: 5 - 1 

 
NAY: Councilmember Jeff Oravits 

 

C. Consideration and approval of the City of Flagstaff, Revolving Loan Fund
Administrative Plan . The administrative plan has been approved by the Economic
Development Administration (EDA) and will guide the administration of the revolving loan
fund program, an economic development financing tool. 

  

 
  Moved by Vice Mayor Celia Barotz, seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans to approve

the Revolving Loan Fund Administrative Plan that will manage the Economic Development
Administration (EDA) Revolving Loan Fund (RLF)  Program monies. 

 
Vote: 5 - 1 

 
NAY: Councilmember Jeff Oravits 

 

D. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No.  2015-31:  A resolution of the Flagstaff
City Council pursuant to A.R.S. 9-511.01 adopting notice of intention to increase water,
reclaimed water, wastewater and stormwater rates or rate components, fees or service
charges and establishing a date for a public hearing on October 6, 2015.

  

 
  Utilities Engineering Manager Ryan Roberts explained that this item was to adopt the Notice

of Intention which allows the City to notify the public of the upcoming Public Hearing
scheduled to begin on October 6, 2015, on the utilities rate study and recommendations. He
began a PowerPoint presentation (Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof) which
addressed:

ACTION REQUESTED
PURPOSE/OBJECTIVE
AGENDA

Mr. Roberts then introduced Jonathan Varnes of Willdan Financial Services, who continued
the presentation:

BACKGROUND
UTILITIES RATE STUDY REPORT STRUCTURE (Report 1 of 2)
CAPACITY FEE REPORT STRUCTURE (Report 2 of 2)
KEY ITEMS OF NOTE IN THE REPORT

Vice Mayor Barotz asked for clarification of when Mr. Varnes said "water" he meant just
water and did not include reclaimed. Mr. Varnes said that was corrected

Councilmember Evans asked if they tied the study to conservation efforts. Mr. Varnes said
that the mere fact of having a tiered structure leads to conservation which included
commercial rates, but they did not do an empirical analysis.

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          9 



Councilmember Putzova asked if she understood correctly that all rates will be looked
at--water, sewer, and reclaimed water. Mr. Varnes said that was correct, as well as
stormwater.

Mr. Hill said that for those that had their report in front of them, if they looked at the
Executive Summary page 3, that is an outline table of what Mr. Varnes has presented to
them.

Vice Mayor Barotz said that with the reclaimed water rate structure, she recollected that
where it outlines all of the rates, there are various categories of reclaimed water users, such
as golf course, noncommercial, etc. She assumed that this proposed Option 1 and Option 2
would just mean that those different rates would be adjusted accordingly. Mr. Hill said that
was correct. Only the water is looking at the tiered structure; everything else stays the same.
He said that there was no recommendation to changing the reclaimed water categories.

Councilmember Putzova said that when they have the presentation it would be helpful for
them to understand, to look at the entire water budget and how it is used by different types
of users. Mr. Roberts said that they have a pie chart that will assist with that.

NEXT STEPS

Mr. Roberts said that right now they have met with five outside public agencies and civic
groups. They have another seven or eight to go. They will be back on October 6 to hold the
first public hearing and there will be additional public hearings to receive feedback. The
current schedule plans to come back before Council on November 3 for first reading of the
ordinance, with rate changes to become effective in the first part of 2016.

Vice Mayor Barotz asked what the difference was between the draft report and the final
report they just received. Mr. Varnes said that the new one was truncated; more streamlined
and reader friendly. It includes an Executive Summary and they actually streamlined the
body of the report for that purpose. They also added a couple more scenarios, as requested
by the Water Commission.

Mr. Hill conveyed that by adopting the resolution, Notice of Intention, they were not obligated
to increase rates. He said that this was a statutory requirement, giving a 60-day signal, but it
does not bind the Council.

  Moved by Vice Mayor Celia Barotz, seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans to read
Resolution No. 2015-31 by title only. 

 
Vote: 6 - 0 - Unanimously

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE FLAGSTAFF CITY COUNCIL ADOPTING NOTICE OF
INTENTION TO INCREASE WATER, RECLAIMED WATER, WASTEWATER AND
STORMWATER RATES OR RATE COMPONENTS, FEES OR SERVICE CHARGES AND
ESTABLISHING A DATE FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED 
 

  Moved by Vice Mayor Celia Barotz, seconded by Councilmember Coral Evans to adopt
Resolution No. 2015-31. 

 
Vote: 6 - 0 - Unanimously

 

A break was held from 7:30 p.m. to 7:34 p.m.
 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          10 



E. Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-16:   An ordinance of the City
Council of the City of Flagstaff, Arizona, amending the Flagstaff City Code, Title I,
Administrative, by adding a new Chapter 12, Consideration of Petition, thereto. (Citizen
Petition Submittal Form)

  

 
  City Clerk Elizabeth Burke briefly reviewed the ordinance presented, noting the changes

made between the draft and final agenda. After brief discussion, staff was directed to move
the individual requirement for contact information into the text required only of the individual
submitting the petition and not everyone signing it. Staff was also directed to request some
type of contact information, understanding that some people do not have e-mail.

Councilmember Evans also requested that once the petition form is adopted that it be
translated into Spanish, Hopi and Navajo, and that there is an outreach effort made, with all
forms available on the website.

  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Jeff Oravits to read
Ordinance No. 2015-16 by title only, with the changes discussed (person submitting petition
provide their name, residence, address and contact information; other signers provide
printed name, signature, residence address and date signed). 

 
Vote: 6 - 0 - Unanimously

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA,
AMENDING THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE TITLE I, ADMINISTRATIVE, BY ADDING A
NEW CHAPTER 12, CONSIDERATION OF PETITION, RELATED TO CITIZEN PETITIONS
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

 

16. DISCUSSION ITEMS
 

A. Review of Draft Agenda Items:   September 1, 2015, City Council Meeting.* 

* Public comment on draft agenda items will be taken at this time, at the discretion of the
Mayor. 

 
  Mayor Nabours asked that in the final packet for September 1, 2015, more information be

provided on the proposed purchase of a backup power system for $500,000 at the Fort
Tuthill Water Well. He would like to hear what the worst case scenario would be if the well
went down, winter versus summer, and what other systems they have, as well as the
likelihood that they would be out of power to that well for any sustained period of time.

Councilmember Overton said that he had the same concerns. Plus, he would like to have
local vendors looked at for potential supply of a portable generator. He said that this would
get very little use for such a high capital cost.

Mayor Nabours also asked that the ordinance regarding retiree insurance have the penalty
clause removed.

 

17. FUTURE AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS

After discussion and upon agreement of three members of the Council, an item will be
moved to a regularly-scheduled Council meeting.

 

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          11 



A. Future Agenda Item Request : Citizen Petition to place on a future agenda a resolution
urging the United States Congress to support a carbon fee-and-dividend, which is designed
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions while stimulating the economy.

  

 
  The following individuals address the Council, requesting that this item be placed on a future

agenda for discussion:

♦Claire Herrrick
♦Paul Deasy

Mayor Nabour said that he would not be supporting this request, and it had nothing to do
with the pros or cons of this particular program. He said that he regularly gets requests for
support of one thing or another, but he does not believe that they should adopt resolutions of
support as an organization, although individuals could do as they please.

Councilmember Oravits said that he has supported some resolutions in the past urging
action of a particular sort, but he would not be supporting this request.

Vice Mayor Barotz said that she thinks that it is important to at least have a discussion on
this issue in depth. She actually believes that it is an important part of Council's function to
communicate with other elected officials when they support specific action.

Councilmember Putzova said that she also supports putting this on a future agenda. They
lobby their representatives all the time and she thinks it is an appropriate action to consider
an item that is important to their constituency and has an effect on their community.

Councilmember Evans said that according to the City Charter, the Council acts by
resolution, ordinance and policy and one of the things they look at is citizen petitions.

With the support of three Councilmembers, this item will move to a future agenda.
 

18. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS AND REPORTS FROM COUNCIL AND STAFF, REQUESTS
FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

 
  Councilmember Putzova said that she was approached by a citizen with concerns about the

heroine problem in the City. She asked for a Council Communication Report (CCR) on the
subject, to include reaching out to their health care providers to get a better understanding of
whether there is an increase concern.

She also requested a future agenda item request (FAIR) for a declaration of Indigenous
Peoples Day, instead of Columbus Day, and have an opportunity to talk with the Native
American community on what other meaningful action they could take to foster respect.

Councilmember Putzova also asked for a FAIR to discuss the Council's travel policy or to
create a travel policy, how funds are used within that fund, and whether those funds could be
used elsewhere.

Councilmember Evans supported the discussion of Indigenous People's Day and also asked
for a CCR on traffic in the Linda Vista Corridor. She has had residents in that area comment
that the police used to patrol more and there are a lot of speeders in that area.

Councilmember Oravits requested a FAIR on amending the Rules of Procedure to require

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          12 



four votes by Council to move an item from the FAIR to a future agenda.

Vice Mayor Barotz reiterated their thanks to Mr. Meilbeck for his service to the City.

Mayor Nabours reported that he was in Tucson last week for the League of Arizona Cities
and Towns Annual Conference and Flagstaff had quite an influence on the proceedings with
representatives from Northern Arizona University, the Forest Service, Forest Management,
City staff, etc. He presented on trains in cities which was well attended. He said that the
biggest hit was Louie the Lumberjack and he thanked staff for getting that arranged as well
as the booth activities.

Mayor Nabours requested a FAIR on review of the Sidewalk Repair Ordinance.

Mr. Meilbeck congratulated Barbara Goodrich on her new position as Deputy City Manager.
Additionally, he reported that work will begin next week on the Francis Short Pond to get the
weeds cleared out.

Council was also reminded of the upcoming Joint Meeting with the County Board of
Supervisors scheduled for September 21, 2015.

 

19. ADJOURNMENT
 
  The Regular Meeting of the Flagstaff City Council held August 25, 2015, adjourned at

8:13 p.m.
 

 
_______________________________
MAYOR

ATTEST:
 

 

_________________________________
CITY CLERK

 

CERTIFICATION

STATE OF ARIZONA )  
 )    ss.
Coconino County )  

I, ELIZABETH A. BURKE, do hereby certify that I am the City Clerk of the City of Flagstaff, County of
Coconino, State of Arizona, and that the above Minutes are a true and correct summary of the Meeting of
the Council of the City of Flagstaff held on August 25, 2015. I further certify that the Meeting was duly
called and held and that a quorum was present.

DATED this 1st day of September, 2015.           
  
 ________________________________

CITY CLERK

Flagstaff Regular City Council Meeting August 25, 2015                          13 



SPECIAL MEETING (EXECUTIVE SESSION)
TUESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2015

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
211 WEST ASPEN

IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE 4:00 P.M.
PORTION OF THE REGULAR MEETING

 
MINUTES

               

1. Call to Order
 

2. Roll Call

NOTE: One or more Councilmembers may be in attendance telephonically or by other
technological means.

PRESENT

MAYOR NABOURS
VICE MAYOR BAROTZ
COUNCILMEMBER BREWSTER
COUNCILMEMBER EVANS
COUNCILMEMBER ORAVITS
COUNCILMEMBER OVERTON
COUNCILMEMBER PUTZOVA
 

ABSENT

 
Others present: Interim City Manager Jeff Meilbeck and City Attorney Michelle D'Andrea.

 

3. Recess into Executive Session.
 
  Moved by Mayor Jerry Nabours, seconded by Councilmember Jeff Oravits to recess into

Executive Session.
 

Vote: 7 - 0 - Unanimously
 

The Flagstaff City Council recessed into Executive Session at 4:40 p.m.
 

4. Executive Session:
 

A. Discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public body in order to
consider its position and instruct its representatives regarding negotiations for the purchase,
sale or lease of real property, pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(7).

 

1. Property Negotiations - Pelota Court
 

B. Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the attorney or attorneys of the public body; and
discussions or consultations with designated representatives of the public body in order to
consider its position and instruct its representatives regarding negotiations for the purchase,
sale or lease of real property, pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.03(A)(3) & (7), respectively.

 



i. Possible Amendment to Lease/DA with Nestle-Purina
 

5. Adjournment
 
  The Flagstaff City Council reconvened into Open Session at 5:12 p.m. at which time the

Special Meeting (Executive Session) of August 25, 2015, adjourned.
 

 

_______________________________________
Mayor

ATTEST:

____________________________________
City Clerk

 

  

Flagstaff Special Meeting (Executive Session) August 25, 2015        2 



  9. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Ladd Vagen, Information Technology Director

Date: 08/26/2015

Meeting Date: 09/01/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Payment/Contract Renewal: Annual Computer Software
Maintenance  

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve payment of annual software maintenance costs in a budgeted amount not to exceed
$583,784.00 pursuant to contracts with: 

Harris Enterprise (City Contract No. A2012-0619.1), draft invoice for $133,402.50;
SHI (reseller for Microsoft) (Arizona Procurement Office Contract No. ADSPO11-007500),
draft invoice for $137,947.86;
SirsiDynix (Library) (City Contract No. A2000-1023.1, as amended 10/23/2000), draft invoice
for $74,577.44;
Intergraph Corp. (Public Safety) for $210,085.00 plus any applicable taxes, and approve its
contract renewal.

Executive Summary:
Policy Decision or Reason for Action:

Annual Payments are issued to provide ongoing software licensing support and maintenance as
necessary.
The attached schedule outlines the anticipated expenditures for fiscal year 2016.
Actual costs may vary from attached draft invoices and therefore approval is sought for
"amount not to exceed." 

Decision Points: 

Annual purchase orders pursuant to contracts provide for the means to conduct day-to-day
activities of the City without delay.

Financial Impact:
Purchases are budgeted in the department divisions software maintenance.  The overall cost for FY16 is
expected to increase by approximately $31,000.00 due to increased CPI.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
3) Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services, and infrastructure systems in an efficient
and effective manner to serve all population areas and demographics



Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes.

Options and Alternatives:
1) Approve the recommended action as submitted;
2) Present to Council the software maintenance support services exceeding the bid threshold on an
individual basis. 

Background/History:
For the past six years, Purchasing has presented a comprehensive master list outlining most
computer software maintenance and support services.  City staff’s recommendation is to receive
payment authorization as one action item at the onset of the fiscal year.  During the current fiscal year we
have expended to date $552,435.15 to the various vendors as outlined in the attached schedule.

City has existing contracts with all vendors.  Intergraph requires a new contract on an annual basis, with
its current terms (attached). 

Key Considerations:
Software maintenance and support services are being acquired from designated vendors from whom we
purchased the computer software.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
Ongoing maintenance and support services assure the City the latest products enhancements and
technical support that is critical in support of the City’s computer infrastructure. 

Community Benefits and Considerations:
None.

Community Involvement:
Inform.

Attachments:  FY16 Software Maintenance
Harris invoice
SHI quote
SirsiDynix quote
Intergraph renewal



EXHIBIT A
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

FY14
ACTUAL

FY15
ACTUAL

FY16
BUDGET

IT MAINTENANCE FY15
$132,142.00 $151,000.00 $151,000.00

$128,721.47 $135,000.00 $140,000.00

$257,142.00 $286,000.00 $291,000.00
PD - IT MAINTENANCE FY15

$196,428.08 $196,428.08 $210,085.00

LIBRARY - IT MAINTENANCE FY15
$67,968.00 $77,352.44 $82,699.00

$67,968.00 $77,352.44 $82,699.00

Total all $ 521,538.08 $552,435.15 $583,784.00

DEPT / DIV

ERP - Financial Applications

SHI SOFTWARE-Microsoft enterprise
Agreement

Library Maintenace Total:

DoIT Maintenance Total

INTERGRAPH PUBLIC SAFETY INC - 
Maintain the map and corresponding 
DB for system

SIRSI - Online Library Catalog 4/1-3/31
$66,950.00





 

Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:   10008046
Reference #:  6930411
Created On:   Jul-22-2015
Valid Until:   Aug-31-2015

 
City of Flagstaff AZ   IAM

 
Ladd Vagen
Phone:  
Fax:  
Email: lvagen@FLAGSTAFFAZ.GOV

 

Gregory Gonedes
290 Davidson Avenue
Somerset, NJ 08873
Phone: 7326527408
Fax: 7326527409
Email: Gregory_Gonedes@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 Windows Enterprise - Software Assurance Only 

   Microsoft - Part#: CW2-00307 
   Note: Annual Payment

562 $31.00 $17,422.00

 
2 Office Pro Plus - Software Assurance Only 

   Microsoft - Part#: 269-12442 
   Note: Annual Payment

562 $85.00 $47,770.00

 
3 Enterprise User CAL w/ Services - Software Assurance Only 

   Microsoft - Part#: 76A-00016 
   Note: Annual Payment

572 $88.00 $50,336.00

 
4 SQL Server Standard 2 Core - Software Assurance Only 

   Microsoft - Part#: 7NQ-00292 
   Note: Annual Payment

6 $585.00 $3,510.00

 
5 SQL Server Standard 2 Core - License & Software Assurance 

   Microsoft - Part#: 7NQ-00302 
   Note: Annual Payment

4 $1,365.00 $5,460.00

 
6 System Center Standard 2 Processor - Software Assurance Only 

   Microsoft - Part#: T9L-00223 
   Note: Annual Payment

2 $144.00 $288.00

 
7 System Center Datcenter 2 Processor - Software Assurance Only 

   Microsoft - Part#: T6L-00238 
   Note: Annual Payment

1 $393.00 $393.00

 
8 Windows Server Standard 2 Processor - Software Assurance Only 

   Microsoft - Part#: P73-05898 
   Note: Annual Payment

7 $144.00 $1,008.00

 
9 Windows Server DataCenter 2 Processor Step Up from Windows Server Standard 

   Microsoft - Part#: P71-07281 
   Note: Annual Payment

1 $2,008.00 $2,008.00

 



10 Azure Monetary Commit ShrdSvr ALNG Subscription 
   Microsoft - Part#: 6QK-00001 
   Note: Annual Payment

1 $1,212.00 $1,212.00

 
Subtotal $129,407.00

*Tax $10,739.79

Total $140,146.79

  *Tax is estimated. Invoice will include the full and final tax due.

Additional Comments

State of Arizona Contract: ADSPO11-007500

Please include the following statement on your order if applicable:

"All products purchased on this order are to be distributed via electronic download only. No tangible media or documentation is to
be shipped in association with this order. Access to the products purchased on this order is in no way dependent upon any
tangible media that may have been previously received prior to, or separately from this order."

If the following statement is not on your PO, sales tax will be applied accordingly.

The Products offered under this proposal are subject to the SHI Return Policy posted at www.shi.com/returnpolicy, unless there is
an existing agreement between SHI and the Customer.

http://www.shi.com/returnpolicy


From To

10015 SirsiDynix Symphony Additional Branch Fee (ea) 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

10015 SirsiDynix Symphony Additional Branch Fee (ea) 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

10015 SirsiDynix Symphony Additional Branch Fee (ea) 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

10015 SirsiDynix Symphony Additional Branch Fee (ea) 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

10015 SirsiDynix Symphony Additional Branch Fee (ea) 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

10015 SirsiDynix Symphony Additional Branch Fee (ea) 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

10031 SirsiDynix Symphony Unicode Server Extension 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

M-1967 Additional Library Fee 2 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

M-1999 Authority Control 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

M-2233 Information Gateway 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

M-2357 Reference Librarian-PKG 2 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

M-2375 Request Module 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

M-2615 UnicornOASIS Bundled 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

M-2655 WebCat WWW Catlog 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

M-2665 WorkFlows Staff Clients 34 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

M-2714 Z39.50 Version 3 Server 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

12320 Symphony Web Services 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

format 12850 Web Services Annual Recurring Package 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Symphony 45,125.91

10030 SirsiDynix Symphony Test System 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

format 10032 SirsiDynix Symphony Unicode Server Extension Tes 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Test system 1,874.58

format M-2408 Serials Control 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Serials 0.00

M-1958 Acquisitions and Fund Accting 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

format M-2085 Electronic and Data Interchange 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Acquisitions 0.00

format M-2334 Outreach Services-PKG 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Outreach/Homebound 0.00

format M-2288 Materials Booking 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Media Booking 0.00

format M-0542 Datastream Subscription 44000 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Datastream Subscription 7,039.13

M-3108 Oracle Embedded License Upgrade from ISAM 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

format 11780 Oracle Embedded Test License 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Oracle Renewal 2,574.43

format 12455 Red Hat Linux Operating Sysem SW, ES 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
RedHat renewal 875.90

M-2021 Bibliographic and Inv. Control 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

M-2424 SmartPORT Client 4 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

format M-2428 SmartPORT Concurrent User 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Cataloging 0.00

format M-2049 Circulation Control 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Circulation 0.00

11711 SirsiDynix Symphony SIP2 Interface Per Certified Ve 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

format 11711 SirsiDynix Symphony SIP2 Interface Per Certified Ve Page Public Lib 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
SIP/SIP2 License 440.30

format 12978 SirsiDynix SMS Notification for Symphony - 25K Mes 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
SMS Notification 1,613.72

Price

SCHEDULE/EXHIBIT "A"

Flagstaff City/Coconino County Public Library

 Item 
Number 

Item Description Serial Number Qty
Coverage Effective Dates

EOL Date

Page 1

bmc
Typewritten Text

bmc
Typewritten Text

bmc
Typewritten Text
2016 Renewal Budget Quote - Does not Include any Applicable Sales Tax.



From To
Price

Flagstaff City/Coconino County Public Library

 Item 
Number 

Item Description Serial Number Qty
Coverage Effective Dates

EOL Date

13057 SirsiDynix eResource Central Gateway Services - An 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

13137 SirsiDynix eRC Connector for OverDrive - Annual Su 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17

format 13138 SirsiDynix eRC Connector for Recorded Books OneC 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
E-Resource Central 1,557.54

format 11681 SirsiDynix Enterprise, Annual Subscription 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Enterprise Subscription 9,696.33

format M-2178 iBistro Suite-F 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
SirsiDynix PAC 3,113.54

format 12854 SirsiDynix Social Library, Annual Subscription 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Social Library Subscription 10.38

format 13149 BLUEcloud MobileCirc, Annual Subscription 1 1/Mar/16 - 31/Mar/17
Mobile Circ Subscription 0.00

format 10534 Data Services - Authority Annual Subscription - Qua 1 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Quarterly Update Service 0.00

format M-2788 3M Self Check Interface 2 1/Apr/16 - 31/Mar/17
Hardware Renewal 655.68

Total 74,577.44

Page 2

























































  10. A.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Thomas Bolyen, Water Production Manager

Co-Submitter: Patrick Brown

Date: 08/26/2015

Meeting Date: 09/01/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Installation of an Emergency Generator at Fort Tuthill Well
located within the Coconino County Fairgrounds (Approve contract with Commonwealth Electric
Company in the amount of $506,500.00).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Approve construction contract with Commonwealth Electric Company for $506,500.00, and a
contract time of sixty (60) calendar days.  
2) Authorize change order authority to the City Manager in the amount of $50,650.00 (10% of
contract amount).
3) Authorize City Manager to execute the necessary documents. 

Executive Summary:
The Fort Tuthill Well is the largest producing well in the City’s inventory producing upwards of 3 million
gallons per day. This facility is the first water production facility to be equipped with emergency back-up
generation in order to provide the community with water during an extended power outage. The City of
Flagstaff water production facilities rely upon a single source of electrical power provided by Arizona
Public Service. In the event of a catastrophic forest fire, mechanical failure or statewide emergency, this
single source exposes the Utilities Division’s ability to provide water to our customers during an extended
power outage. Our reservoir system can currently provide approximately 1.5 days of water during the
summer months without power before we begin to compromise life safety assuming no additional water is
needed to fight a structure or forest fire. Additionally, many of our water production facilities are
constantly impacted by power supply interruptions during to monsoon lighting events. It is a common
standard practice nationally that utility’s maintain emergency back-up power generation at key critical
facilities in the event of an extended emergency power outage. The installation of the back-up generator
at Fort Tuthill Well is the first step in Utilities Division’s ongoing quest to become more resilient and
prepared for extreme conditions.

Financial Impact:
This project has been funded through the Utilities Fund’s Operations and Maintenance Budget. Funds
are budgeted in account 202-08-301-1014-0-4402 $125,000.00 and account 202-08-301-1020-0-4405
$375,000.00. Remainder of the needed funds to be provided by the Water Production Operating Budget.
  
   



   

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
2) Ensure Flagstaff has a long-term water supply for current and future needs
3) Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services, and infrastructure systems in an efficient
and effective manner to serve all population areas and demographics

REGIONAL PLAN GOALS:
Chapter VI, WR.2.1, Develop and adopt an integrated water master plan that addresses water resources,
water production and its distribution, wastewater collection and its treatment, and reclaimed water
treatment and its distribution. Chapter VI, Policy WR.2.2, maintain and develop facilities to provide
reliable, safe, and cost-effective water, wastewater and reclaimed water services 

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
No

Options and Alternatives:
1) Award the contract to Commonwealth Electric Company as the lowest responsive, responsible bidder.
2) Do not award this contract and request staff to re-bid the project.
3) Do not approve this request increasing the city’s risk during an emergency or sustained loss of power
for insufficient fire protection.

Background/History:
Fort Tuthill Well Pump Station is a modern well and pumping facility located in south Flagstaff adjacent to
the Coconino County Fair Grounds. This well is our largest producing individual well with a capacity of
1.4 MGD with disinfection capability. It is the largest single water source for our limited funding, and will
impact the largest segment of the population.

Staff issued a solicitation for construction bids, and was advertised on June 14 and June 21, 2015. Four
bids were received by the opening date of June 29, 2015, and Commonwealth Electric Company was
determined to be the lowest responsive responsible bidder. A tabulation of bids received is summarized
below in the Expanded Financial Considerations.

Key Considerations:
The Flagstaff water system is very robust in its sources and facilities which are a definite advantage for
problems internal to the city’s electrical grid, but all the water services for the City of Flagstaff rely on a
single source of power coming up the mountain. The allocation of electricity from another provider or an
additional mountain source of electrical power is currently unavailable. Our only power source provided
by APS is from a single substation susceptible to mechanical failure, lightning, wild fire, and statewide
emergency. During heavy monsoons we are constantly challenged by interruptions in our power supply.
A sustained long term power outage or actual emergency that may impact the power distribution grid
leaves the city vulnerable limiting our ability to pump or provide any reliable water and storage supplies
will become depleted.
  
   



   

Expanded Financial Considerations:
Power requirements are significant and require 750 KW of power for most city wells. All available water
sources will require generators to be operational in a power outage.

Tabulation of Bids:

Contractor                                  Bid
Commonwealth Electric Co.        $506,500.00
LE Ludvik Electric                        $509,315.00
N.J. Shaum & Son, Inc.               $537,904.00
TSG Constructors, LLC               $587,000.00

Community Benefits and Considerations:
Allowing the community water supply to become more resilient when it comes to electrical outages.

Community Involvement:
None

Expanded Options and Alternatives:
Approve and implement more generator installations as a continuing strategic initiative to become power
independent during a regional emergency

Attachments:  Construction Contract
PowerPoint



 1  

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 

City of Flagstaff, Arizona 
and 

Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest  
 

This Construction Contract (“Contract”) is made and entered into this    day of  

    2015, by and between the City of Flagstaff, an Arizona municipal 

corporation with offices at 211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona ("Owner") and 

Commonwealth Electric Company of the Midwest, an Arizona corporation ("Contractor") with 

offices at 3901 East Winslow Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona.  Contractor and the Owner may be 

referred to each individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Owner desires to obtain construction and installation services; and  

 

B. Contractor has available and offers to provide personnel and materials necessary to 

accomplish the work and complete the Project as described in the Scope of Work within the 

required time in accordance with the calendar days included in this Contract. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Owner and Contractor agree as follows: 

 

1. Scope of Work.  The Contractor shall furnish any and all labor, materials, equipment, 

transportation, utilities, services and facilities required to perform all work for the construction of 

Fort Tuthill Well Station Generator Installation Project (the “Project”).  Contractor shall 

construct the Project for the Owner in a good, workmanlike and substantial manner and to the 

satisfaction of the Owner through its engineers and under the direction and supervision of the City 

Engineer, or his properly authorized agents including but not limited to project managers and 

project engineers.  Contractor’s work shall be strictly pursuant to and in conformity with the 

Contract. 

 

1.1 A Pre-Construction Conference will be held with the successful Contractor after the Notice 

of Award is issued.   The date and time of the Conference will be agreed upon between the 

Contractor and the Engineer.  The meeting will be held at City Hall, 211 West Aspen 

Avenue, Flagstaff, AZ 86001.  The purpose of the meeting is to outline specific 

construction items and procedures that the City of Flagstaff (the “Owner”) feels require 

special attention on the part of the Contractor.  The Contractor may also present any 

variations in procedures to improve the workability of the Project, reduce the cost, or reduce 

inconvenience to the public.  The Contractor shall submit a written proposal at this 

conference outlining intended plans for pavement replacement, maintaining continuous 

access to residences and businesses along the construction site, and traffic control. 

 

2. Contract; Ownership of Work.  Contractor shall furnish and deliver all of the materials 

and perform all of the work in accordance with this Contract; Construction Plans; Special 

Provisions; the City of Flagstaff Engineering Design and Construction Standards and 



 2  

Specifications; the latest version of the Maricopa Association of Governments (“MAG”) 

Specifications for Public Works Construction and City revisions to the MAG Specifications for 

Public Works Construction (“Exhibit A”); and any Arizona Department of Transportation 

(A.D.O.T.) Standards that may be referenced on the Plans or in the specifications, incorporated in 

this Contract by reference, plans and associated documents.  All provisions of the Invitation for 

Construction Bids, Performance Bond, Payment Bond, Certificates of Insurance, Addenda, Change 

Orders and Field Orders, if any, are hereby incorporated into this Contract.  All materials, work, 

specifications and plans shall be the property of the Owner. 

 

The following exhibits are incorporated by reference and are expressly made a part of this 

Contract: 

 

2.1.1 Revisions of MAG Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction Exhibit A 

                    (“Flagstaff Addendum to MAG”)       

2.1.2 Special Provisions         Exhibit B 

 

3. Payments.  In consideration of the faithful performance of the work described in this 

Contract, the Owner shall pay an amount not to exceed $506,500.00 to the Contractor for work and 

materials provided in accordance with the bid schedule, which amount includes all federal, state, 

and local taxes, as applicable.  This amount shall be payable through monthly progress payments, 

subject to the following conditions: 

 

3.1 Contractor shall promptly submit to the Owner all proper invoices necessary for the 

determination of the prices of labor and materials; 

 

3.2 Progress payments shall be made in the amount of ninety percent (90%) of the value of 

labor and materials incorporated in the work, based on the sum of the Contract prices of 

labor and material, and of materials stored at the worksite, on the basis of substantiating 

paid invoices, as estimated by the Owner, less the aggregate of all previous payments, until 

the work performed under this Contract is fifty percent (50%) complete.  When and after 

such work is fifty (50%) complete, the ten percent (10%) of value previously retained may 

be reduced to five percent (5%) of value completed if Contractor is making satisfactory 

progress as determined by the Owner, and providing that there is no specific cause or claim 

requiring a greater amount to be retained.  If at any time the Owner determines that 

satisfactory progress is not being made, the ten percent (10%) retention shall be reinstated 

for all subsequent progress payments made under this Contract; 

 

3.3 The City Engineer shall have the right to finally determine the amount due to Contractor; 

 

3.4 Monthly progress payments shall be made by the Owner, on or before fourteen (14) 

calendar days after the receipt by the Owner of an approved estimate of the work 

completed;  

 

3.5 Contractor agrees that title to materials incorporated in the work, and stored at the site, shall 

vest with the Owner upon receipt of the corresponding progress payment; 



 3  

 

3.6 The remainder of the Contract price, after deducting all such monthly payments and any 

retention, shall be paid within sixty (60) days after final acceptance of completed work by 

the Owner.  The release of retention or alternate surety shall be made following the Owner’s 

receipt and acceptance of: Contractor's Affidavit Regarding Settlement of Claims, Affidavit 

of Payment, Consent of Surety for Final Payment, and Unconditional Full and Final lien 

waivers from all subcontractors and suppliers who have filed an Arizona Preliminary 20 

Day Lien Notice in accordance with A.R.S. §§ 33-992.01 and 33-992.02. 

 
4. Time of Completion.  Contractor agrees to complete all work as described in this Contract 

within sixty (60) calendar days from the date of the Owner’s Notice to Proceed free of all liens, 

claims and demands of any kind for materials, equipment, supplies, services, labor, taxes and 

damages to property or persons, in the manner and under the conditions specified within the time or 

times specified in this Contract. 

 

5. Performance of Work.  All work covered by this Contract shall be done in accordance 

with the latest and best accepted practices of the trades involved.  The Contractor shall use only 

skilled craftsmen experienced in their respective trades to prepare the materials and to perform the 

work. 

 

6. Acceptance of Work; Non Waiver.  No failure of the Owner during the progress of the 

work to discover or reject materials or work not in accordance with this Contract shall be deemed 

an acceptance of, or a waiver of, defects in work or materials.  No payment shall be construed to be 

an acceptance of work or materials which are not strictly in accordance with the Contract. 

 

7. Delay of Work.  Any delay in the performance of this Contract due to strikes, lockouts, 

fires, or other unavoidable casualties beyond the control of the Contractor and not caused by any 

wrongful act or negligence of the Contractor shall entitle the Contractor to an extension of time 

equal to the delay so caused.  The Contractor shall notify the Owner in writing specifying such 

cause within twenty-four (24) hours after its occurrence.  In the event such delay is caused by 

strikes, lockouts, or inability to obtain workmen for any other cause, the Owner shall have the right 

but shall not be obligated to complete the work on the same basis as is provided for in Section 14 

below (Contract Violations). 

 

8.         Failure to Complete Project in Timely Manner.  If Contractor fails or refuses to execute 

this Contract within the time specified in Section 4 above, or such additional time as may be 

allowed, the proceeds of Contractor’s performance guaranty shall become subject to deposit into the 

Treasury of the municipality as monies available to compensate the Owner for damages as provided 

by A.R.S. § 34-201 for the delay in the performance of work under this Contract, and the necessity 

of accepting a higher or less desirable bid from such failure or refusal to perform this Contract as 

required.  If Contractor has submitted a certified check or cashier's check as a performance 

guaranty, the check shall be returned after the completion of this Contract.  

 

9. Labor Demonstration.  It is understood that the work covered by this Contract is for the 

Owner's business purposes and that any unfavorable publicity or demonstrations in connection with 



 4  

the work will have a negative effect upon the Owner.  If Contractor’s actions in performance of the 

Contract result in any public demonstration on behalf of the laborers or organized labor in the 

vicinity of the Owner's premises, whether such demonstration is in the form of picketing, posting of 

placards or signs, violence, threats of violence or in any other form, which in the Owner's judgment, 

might convey to the public the impression that the Owner or the Contractor or any subcontractor is 

unfair to laborers or to organized labor, the Owner shall have the right to terminate this Contract 

immediately, unless the Contractor shall have caused such demonstration to be discontinued within 

two (2) days after request of the Owner to do so.  In the event any such demonstration is attended by 

violence, the Owner may fix lesser time within which a discontinuance shall be accomplished.  In 

the event of Contract termination, the Contractor agrees to remove from the Premises within 

twenty-four (24) hours of termination, all machinery, tools, and equipment belonging to it or to its 

subcontractors.  All obligations or liabilities of the Owner to the Contractor shall be discharged by 

such termination, except the obligation to pay to the Contractor a portion of the Contract price 

representing the value based upon the Contract prices of labor and materials incorporated in the 

work as established by the Owner, less the aggregate of all previous payments, but subject to all of 

the conditions pertaining to payments generally. 

 

10. Material Storage.  During the progress of the work, the Contractor shall arrange for office 

facilities and for the orderly storage of materials and equipment.  Contractor shall erect any 

temporary structures required for the work at his or her own expense.  The Contractor shall at all 

times keep the premises reasonably free from debris and in a condition which will not increase fire 

hazards.  Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall remove all temporary buildings and 

facilities and all equipment, surplus materials and supplies belonging to the Contractor.   Contractor 

shall leave the Premises in good order, clean, and ready to use by the Owner.  The establishment of 

any temporary construction yard, material storage area or staging area to be located within City of 

Flagstaff limits and outside the public right-of-way or Project limits generally requires a Temporary 

Use Permit.  (See Exhibit A, Section 107.2.1.) 

 

11. Maintenance during Winter Suspension of Work.  A “Winter Shutdown” is the period 

of time typically including December through March during which no Work will be performed 

by any person or entity (including but not limited to the Contractor) on the Project and Contractor 

shall shutdown, properly insulate and shelter the Project in a safe and workmanlike manner 

pursuant to local, state and federal laws.  Although December through March is typically the time 

frame, the City reserves the right to initiate and terminate a Winter Shutdown at the City’s sole 

discretion in the event of adverse weather conditions.  A Winter Shutdown may be declared by 

the City despite delays, for any reason, on the Project.  City retains the right to declare a Winter 

Shutdown. If work has been suspended due to winter weather, the Contractor shall be responsible 

for maintenance and protection of the improvements and of partially completed portions of the 

work until final acceptance of the project.  Winter Shutdown shall be by field order, change order or 

original contract.  If repairs and/or maintenance are needed during the Winter Shutdown, the 

Contractor is required to perform the repairs and/or maintenance within twenty-four (24) hours of 

notification from the City.  If the needed repairs and/or maintenance are not addressed within the 

timeframe, the City will accomplish the work and deduct the cost from monies due or become due 

to the Contractor.   

 



 5  

The City shall provide snow removal operations on active traffic lanes only during the Winter 

Shutdown.  All other snow removal and maintenance operations shall be the responsibility of the 

Contractor during the Winter Shutdown.  All cost associated with snow removal and proper 

disposal shall be considered incidental to the work including repair of temporary surface 

improvements due to normal wear and snow removal operations during the Winter Shutdown.   

 

12. Assignment.  Contractor shall not assign this Contract, in whole or in part, without the prior 

written consent of the Owner. No right or interest in this Agreement shall be assigned, in whole or 

in part, by Contractor without prior written permission of the City and no delegation of any duty 

of Contractor shall be made without prior written permission of the City.  The City shall not 

unreasonably withhold consent to such assignment.  Contractor agrees that any assignment 

agreement between Contractor and the Assignee shall include and subject to the assignee to all 

obligations, terms and conditions of this Agreement and that Contractor shall also remain liable 

under all obligations, terms and conditions of this Agreement.   

 

13. Notices.  Many notices or demands required to be given, pursuant to the terms of this 

Contract, may be given to the other Party in writing, delivered in person, sent by facsimile 

transmission, emailed, deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid,  or deposited with 

any commercial air courier or express service at the addresses set forth below, or to such other 

address as the Parties may substitute by written notice, given in the manner prescribed in this 

paragraph.  However, notices of termination, notices of default and any notice regarding 

warranties shall be sent via registered or certified mail, return receipt requested at the address set 

forth below and to legal counsel for the party to whom the notice is being given.  

 

If to Owner: If to Contractor: 
Patrick Brown, C.P.M. 

Senior Procurement Specialist 

211 West Aspen Avenue 

Flagstaff, AZ  86001 

Joe Graham 

Vice President 

3901 E. Winslow Avenue 

Phoenix, AZ 85040 

 
14. Contract Violations.  In the event of any of the provisions of this Contract are violated by 

the Contractor or by any of Contractor’s subcontractors, the Owner may serve written notice upon 

the Contractor and the Surety of its intention to terminate such Contract (the “Notice to 

Terminate”).  The Contract shall terminate within five (5) days of the date Contractor receives the 

Notice to Terminate, unless the violation ceases and Contractor makes arrangements for correction 

satisfactory to the Owner.  In the event of any such termination, the Owner shall immediately serve 

notice of the termination upon the Surety by registered mail, return receipt requested.  The Surety 

shall have the right to take over and perform the Contract.  If the Surety does not commence 

performance within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of the Owner’s notice of termination, the 

Owner may complete the work at the expense of the Contractor, and the Contractor and his or her 

Surety shall be liable to the Owner for any excess cost incurred by the Owner to complete the work. 

 If the Owner completes the work, the Owner may take possession of and utilize such materials, 

appliances and plants as may be on the worksite site and necessary for completion of the work. 

 



 6  

15. Termination for Convenience.  The Owner may terminate this contract at any time for any 

reason by giving at least thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor.  If termination occurs 

under this Section 15, the Contractor shall be paid fair market value for work completed by 

Contractor as of the date of termination. The parties agree that fair market value shall be determined 

based on the Contractor’s original bid price, less any work not yet completed by the Contractor as 

of the date the written notice of termination is given to the Contractor. 

 

16. Contractor's Liability and Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, 

Provider shall indemnify, save and hold harmless the City of Flagstaff and its officers, officials, 

agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) from and against liabilities, 

damages, losses and costs, including reasonable attorney fees, but only to the extent caused by 

the negligence, recklessness or intentional wrongful conduct of the contractor, subcontractor or 

design professional or other persons employed or used by the contractor, subcontractor or design 

professional in the performance of the contract.   The amount and type of insurance coverage 

requirements set forth in the Contract (Section 103.6 of Exhibit A) will in no way be construed as 

limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph.   

 

17. Non Appropriation.  In the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated and 

budgeted in any fiscal period of the Owner to meet the Owner’s obligations under this Contract, the 

Owner will notify Contractor in writing of such occurrence, and this Contract will terminate on the 

earlier of the last day of the fiscal period for which sufficient appropriation was made or whenever 

the funds appropriated for payment under this Contract are exhausted.  No payments shall be made 

or due to the other party under this Contract beyond these amounts appropriated and budgeted by 

the Owner to fund the Owner’s obligations under this Contract. 

 

18. Amendment of Contract.  This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in 

writing and signed by duly authorized representatives of the parties. 

 

19. Subcontracts.  Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract, or issue any purchase order 

for the completed work, or any substantial part of the work, unless in each instance, prior written 

approval shall have been given by the Owner.  Contractor shall be fully responsible to the Owner 

for acts and omissions of Contractor's subcontractors and all persons either directly or indirectly 

employed by them. 

 

20. Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  This Contract is subject to the cancellation 

provisions of A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 

21. Compliance with All Laws.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, statutes, 

ordinances, regulations and governmental requirements in the performance of this Contract.   

 

22.    Employment of Aliens.  Contractor shall comply with A.R.S. § 34-301, which provides 

that a person who is not a citizen or ward of the United States shall not be employed upon or in 

connection with any state, county or municipal public works project. 

 



 7  

23.    Compliance with Federal Immigration Laws and Regulations.  Contractor warrants that 

it complies with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and 

complies with A.R.S. 23-214.A.  Contractor acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. 41-4401 a 

breach of this warranty is a material breach of this contract subject to penalties up to and including 

termination of this contract, and that the City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 

employee who works on the contract to ensure compliance with this warranty. 

 

24. Contractor’s Warranty.  Contractor warrants that it complies with all Federal 

Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees and complies with A.R.S. § 23-

214.A, Verification of Employment Eligibility.  Contractor shall not employ aliens in accordance 

with A.R.S. § 34-301, Employment of Aliens on Public Works Prohibited.  Contractor 

acknowledges that pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401, Government Procurement; E-Verify 

Requirement; Definitions, a breach of this warranty is a material breach of this contract subject to 

penalties up to and including termination of this Contract, and that the Owner retains the legal 

right to inspect the papers of any employee who works on the Contract to ensure compliance with 

this warranty.  

 

25. Jurisdiction and Venue.  This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the 

laws of the State of Arizona.  The Contractor hereby submits itself to the original jurisdiction of 

those courts located within Coconino County, Arizona. 

 
26. Attorney's Fees.  If suit or action is initiated in connection with any controversy arising out 

of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover in addition to costs such sum as 

the court may adjudge reasonable as attorney fees, or in event of appeal as allowed by the appellate 

court. 

 
27. Time is of the Essence.  Contractor acknowledges that the completion of the Contract by 

the dates specified final completion is critical to the Owner, time being of the essence of this 

Contract. 

 

28. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the terms, 

provisions, conditions, and obligations of this Contract are for the sole benefit of, and may be 

enforceable solely by, the Parties to this Contract, and none of the terms, provisions, conditions, 

and obligations of this Contract are for the benefit of, or may be enforced by, any person or entity 

not a party to this Contract. 

 

29. Headings.  The article and section headings contained herein are for convenience in 

reference and are not intended to define or limit the scope of any provision of this Contract. 

 

30. Severability.  If any part of this Contract is determined by a court to be in conflict with any 

statute or constitution or to be unlawful for any reason, the parties intend that the remaining 

provisions of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect unless the stricken provision leaves 

the remaining Contract unenforceable. 

 

 



 8  

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owner and Contractor, by their duly authorized representatives, 

have executed this Contract as of the date written above.  

 

(Please sign in blue ink. Submit original signatures – photocopies not accepted)  

 

Owner, City of Flagstaff  Commonwealth Electric Company of the 
Midwest 

   

Josh Copley, City Manager  Signature 

   

   

Attest:  Printed Name 

   

City Clerk  Title 

 

 

 

  

Approved as to form:   

   

City Attorney   

   

 



Emergency Power  
Continuity of Operations Plan 

Council Meeting September 1, 2015 

By  
Utilities Division 

Water Production 



What is our Tolerance for Risk? 

    Nationally 
    Public Health Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness    
 and Response Act of 2002 - Asked Utilities to 
 prepare and think critically about their infrastructure 
 and emergency response plans 
 
     Arizona  
     AZWARN (state-wide equipment sharing agreement) 

 
    Flagstaff 
     Internal Preparedness Planning: How best to maintain   
 Continuity of Operations? (e.g., Resiliency and 
 Preparedness Plan – 2012) 

– Incident-Specific Emergency Action Procedures: What to do 
 with complete loss of APS Power? 

 



Why be Prepared?  

 Maximum Potable Water Storage Capacity: 22.70 MGD  
 10-year average Peak Demand:  12.6 MGD will last 1.8 days in Summer 

 
Our critical water needs in Flagstaff:  Flagstaff Medical Center, Fire 
Protection, Potable Water for cooking and drinking 

 
 Causes for electrical power interruptions include: Extreme Storms & 
 Heat, Flooding, Tornado, Electrical Grid Instabilities & Wildfires 
  
        September 8, 2011 – Arizona, California & Mexico ~12 hour outage  
  affecting 5 million people due to a single APS worker in Yuma  

 
        December 11-24, 2008 - New Hampshire, ~2 week outage due to  
  severe ice storm 

 
 Caused Boil Water Advisory, restaurant closures, etc. in numerous                   

affected communities 
       
       Future?  Wildfires burn transmission power lines into Flagstaff, well fields, etc. 

 
 



Emergency Back-Up 
Wastewater 

Wildcat Hill WRP has 2 diesel powered emergency 
back-up generators in order to prevent a health and 
environmental calamity by not discharging raw 
sewage into the Rio de Flag.   



Emergency Back-Up 
Water 

      No emergency back-up power exists for any 
water production facility (Lake Mary WTP, wells or 
booster pumps). Utilities owns a semi-truck 
mounted diesel generator and second trailer 
mounted switch gear. 

 
 
 
 
 Generator for a single well 

1000 kW 



Continuity of Operations 

 Critical Utilities infrastructure to maintain 
 Continuity of Operations for water & sewer service 
 
 Fort Tuthill Well    Capacity 1.4 MGD:  Proposed 

Generator for Council decision tonight 
 
 Shop Well     Capacity 1.2 MGD  Re-locate existing 

semi-truck generator, hard-wire into well electronics 
 
 Wildcat Hill WRP   Capacity 6 MGD  Generators 

already on-site 
 

 



Utilities Division 
Continuity of Operation 

Strategy 

Minimize risk and protect the community in the 
event of a catastrophic loss of power and bring 
Flagstaff in-line with national American Water 

Works Association recommendations 
 

~5 days average water use in the summer  
with the implementation of emergency 

notification & water conservation efforts 



City Council 
Questions? 

 What is the worst case scenario not having this 
pump and the current one goes down?  
 

 Do the seasons make a difference if it goes 
down (i.e. winter versus summer)? 
 

 Do we not have other water resources to 
accommodate need in the event the generator 
goes down? 
 

 What is the likelihood of the current      
generator going down? 
 



City Council 
Questions? 

 If the current generator went down, would we (or 
portion of Flagstaff) be without water? And at what 
rate (e.g. 3m gallons a day)? And do we have an idea 
how long we would be without water? 
 

 What is the cost of renting a generator from a local 
vendor in an emergency situation versus the $509K 
we are wanting to spend? 
 

 Have we identified local vendors that can supply a 
generator in an emergency situation? 
 

 Talk about the reason or need for spending         
$509K on this generator. 

 
 



  10. B.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Gail Jackson, Business Attraction Manager

Co-Submitter: Stacey Brechler Knaggs

Co-Submitter: Stacey Brechler-Knaggs, Grants Manager

Date: 08/26/2015

Meeting Date: 09/01/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendments:  Innovation Mesa Business Accelerator and
Secondary Emergency Operations Center, Business Incubator and Service Agreement.  (Amendments
to leases and service agreements with NACET).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Authorize the city to amend the existing master leases and service agreement with NACET for the
service provided to the Business Incubator and Accelerator;  both city owned facilities on McMillan
Mesa. 

Executive Summary:
The following changes are administrative changes for the Agreement for Services:
• Updated insurance language to be compliant with current city policy.

The following changes are administrative changes for the Accelerator Master Lease:
• The address for the accelerator should read 2201 N. Gemini.
• Updated leasable square feet now that the building is built.
• Updated leasable rates based on square footage and compliance with pro forma. Rates will be
approved annually by the Management Service or Finance Director in order to meet the pro-forma
required.
• Updated the cleaning of the common space from weekly cleanings to customary janitorial services
schedule. 
• Updated insurance language to be compliant with current city policy.

The following changes are administrative changes for the Incubator Master Lease:
• Tenant agrees to submit monthly instead of quarterly invoices to the City based upon actual expenses
incurred during the term of this Agreement.  Tenant will also submit with its invoices a balance sheet and
profit and loss statement for each such month.
• Updated insurance language to be compliant with current city policy.
  
   



   

Financial Impact:
The city of Flagstaff received funding through the Economic Development Administration (EDA), Arizona
Commerce Authority (ACA) and Northern Arizona University (NAU) for the design and construction of the
Business Incubator and Accelerator.  The City of Flagstaff will issue bonds which will be repaid through
lease proceeds. 

The financial obligation of the city of Flagstaff remains the same.  The Business Incubator will be
compensated for services performed and costs incurred not to exceed $220,000 per fiscal year.  The
Business Accelerator will receive $45,000 in year 1 and increases annually by $5,000 per year until year
four.  These costs as well as the additional operational costs are anticipated to be fully supported through
lease revenues by year five.  Financial commitments are budgeted in the Economic Development Fund. 

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOAL:
#3: Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services, and infrastructure systems in an efficient
and effective manner to serve all population areas and demographics.

REGIONAL PLAN: 
ED 3: Regional economic development partners support the start-up, retention and expansion of existing
business enterprises.
ED 4: Support efforts to recruit diverse new businesses and industries compatible with the region.
ED 7: Continue to promote and enhance Flagstaff's unique sense of place as an economic development
driver. 
   

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Yes, in September 2008, as well as January 2015 subsequent amendments were approved by City
Council authorizing the service agreement and master lease for the Business Incubator and Accelerator. 
City Council approved the EDA grant application, grant award and the design and construction contracts
for the Business Accelerator over the last two years.

Options and Alternatives:
1. Approve amendments to the Service Agreement and both Master Leases and continue existing
operational services with NACET.
2. Do not approve amendments to the Service Agreement and both Master Leases and continue existing
operational services with NACET. 

Background/History:
The Science and Technology Park was conceived in 2003.  In 2004 bonds in the amount of $61.2 million
were approved by the voters to advance the project.  The debt is to be paid with lease revenues and not
secondary property taxes.  McMillan Mesa was chosen as an ideal site due to the existing
USGS campus. A Science Park Master plan was developed around 2005 and determined the need for a
Business Incubator for entrepreneurs and business starts-ups.  

The Business Incubator was constructed in 2008 and the Business Accelerator followed in 2014.   Both
facilities are currently operated by Northern Arizona Center for Entrepreneurship and Technology
(NACET). The Business Accelerator also serves as an alternate secondary emergency operations center
for first responders to efficiently deliver vital services to communities and tribal nations during disasters.



Community Involvement:
Collaborate

Attachments:  First Amendment to Agreement for Services NACET
First Amendment to Master Lease Incubator 
First Amendment to Master Lease Accelerator



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES FOR THE BUSINESS INCUBATOR AND 
ACCELERATOR

CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
and

NORTHERN ARIZONA TECHNOLOGY & BUSINESS INCUBATOR, INC., DBA 
NACET 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES (“FIRST
AMENDMENT”) is entered into this _____ day of _____________, 2015, by and 
between the City of Flagstaff (the “City”), a municipal corporation with offices at 211 W. 
Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona, and Northern Arizona Technology & 
Business Incubator, Inc., dba NACET (the “Provider"), an Arizona corporation, with offices 
at 2225 North Gemini Drive, Flagstaff, Arizona, 86001, as further set forth below.

RECITALS

A. Landlord and Provider are parties to an Agreement for Services dated February 9, 
2015, respecting that building located at 2225 North Gemini Drive in the City of 
Flagstaff, Arizona, which building is commonly known as the Northern Arizona 
Technology & Business Incubator, Inc., dba NACET (the “Provider").

B.  The Landlord and Provider now desire to amend the Agreement for Services on the 
terms and conditions contained in this First Amendment.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein,
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to amend the Agreement for Services as follows:

Section 1. Amendments. The Agreement for Services is hereby amended as follows:

(A) Section 5.2 and 5.3 of the Agreement for Services are hereby amended and 
replaced in their entirety as follows:

5.2. Insurance. Provider shall procure and maintain, for the duration of the 
Lease, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to 
property, which may arise from or in connection with this Lease by 
Provider, Provider’s agents, representatives, employees or contractors, and 
commercial property insurance.  The insurance requirements herein are 
minimum requirements for this Lease and in no way limit the indemnity 
covenants contained herein.  Landlord does not represent or warrant that 
the minimum limits set forth herein are sufficient to protect Provider from 
liabilities that might arise out of this Lease, and Provider is free to 



purchase such additional insurance as Provider may determine is 
necessary.

5.2.1. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  Provider shall provide 
coverage at least as broad and with limits not less than those stated 
below.

5.2.1.1. Commercial General Liability - Occurrence Form

General Aggregate -- $2,000,000
Each Occurrence -- $1,000,000

5.2.1.2. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability

Workers’ Compensation -- Statutory
Employer’s Liability: Each Accident -- $500,000
Disease - Each Employee -- $500,000
Disease - Policy Limit -- $500,000

5.2.2. Self-Insured Retention/Deductibles. Any self-insured retentions 
and deductibles must be declared to and approved by Landlord.

5.2.3.   Umbrella/Excess Liability

Umbrella/Excess Liability insurance with a limit of not less than         
$4,000,000 per occurrence combined limit Bodily Injury and 
Property Damage, that “follows form” and applies in excess of 
the Commercial General Liability and Employer’s Liability, as 
required above.  Primary per occurrence coverage may be used to 
fulfill this requirement.

5.2.4. Other Insurance Requirements.  The policies shall contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

5.2.4.1. Commercial General Liability.  

5.2.4.1.1. Insurance coverage, other than Workers’ 
Compensation, shall name the City, its agents, 
representatives, directors, officials, employees, and 
officers, as additional insured.  Evidence of insurance 
and formal endorsements to that effect shall be current 
and on file with the City of Flagstaff.  Such 
endorsement shall include both ongoing and completed 
operations.

5.2.4.1.2. Coverage provided by Provider shall not be limited to 
the liability assumed under the indemnification 
provisions of this Lease.



5.2.4.2. Workers’ Compensation and Employee’s Liability 
Coverage.  The insurer agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against Landlord, its officials, officers, 
agents, employees and volunteers for losses arising from 
Provider’s operations, occupancy and use of the Premises 
subject to this Lease.

5.2.5. Notice of Cancellation.  Each insurance policy required by the 
insurance provisions of this Lease shall not be suspended, voided, 
cancelled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) 
days’ prior written notice has been given to Landlord.

5.2.6. Acceptability of Insurers. Provider shall place insurance hereunder 
with insurers duly licensed or approved unlicensed companies in 
the State of Arizona and with a "Best’s" rating of not less than A-: 
VII.  Landlord does not represent or warrant that the above 
required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to provide Lessee 
from potential insurer insolvency.

5.3. Liability Insurance.  Provider agrees to procure and maintain at its own 
cost and expense, during the entire term of this Agreement and any 
extensions thereof, comprehensive public liability insurance covering the 
Premises, which insurance shall also name Master Lessor as additional 
named insureds.  The liability coverage under such insurance shall not be 
less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) for injury, illness or death 
to persons or damage to property in any one incident.  Prior to, and as a 
condition of, taking possession of the Premises, Provider will provide 
Master Lessor with certificates of such insurance and appropriate 
endorsements, satisfactory to Master Lessor, evidencing Provider’s 
compliance with the requirements of this Section 5.3.

Section 2. No Further Modification. Except as specifically modified and amended 
pursuant to the terms of this First Amendment, the Lease shall remain in full force and 
effect, and the terms and conditions thereof are hereby ratified and affirmed by the parties 
thereto.

Section 3. Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together 
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Amendment shall be effective as of the date first 
written above.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK;
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this First Amendment to 
Master Lease as of the date first above written.

City of Flagstaff Northern Arizona Technology & Business 
Incubator, Inc., dba NACET (Provider)

Gerald Nabours, Mayor Annette Zinky, President and CEO

Attest:

City Clerk

Approved as to form:

City Attorney

Date of Execution:



FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO BUSINESS INCUBATOR MASTER LEASE

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO BUSINESS INCUBATOR MASTER LEASE
(“FIRST AMENDMENT”) is entered into this _____ day of _____________, 2015, by 
and between the City of Flagstaff (the “City”), a municipal corporation with offices at 211 
W. Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona, and Northern Arizona Technology 
& Business Incubator, Inc., dba NACET (the “Provider"), an Arizona corporation, with 
offices at 2225 North Gemini Drive, Flagstaff, Arizona, 86001, as further set forth below.

RECITALS

A. Landlord and Provider are parties to the Business Incubator Master Lease dated 
January 1, 2015, respecting that building located at 2225 North Gemini Drive in the City 
of Flagstaff, Arizona, which building is commonly known as the Northern Arizona 
Technology & Business Incubator, Inc., dba NACET (the “Provider")

B.  The Landlord and Provider now desire to amend the Business Incubator Master Lease 
on the terms and conditions contained in this First Amendment.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein,
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to amend the Business Incubator Master Lease as 
follows:

Section 1. Amendments. The Business Incubator  Master Lease is hereby amended as 
follows:

5.2 Insurance Requirements. In addition to the requirements in Section 7 of this 
Lease, Tenant shall not engage in or permit any activity which will cause the 
cancellation of, or increase the existing premiums on, any insurance relating to the 
Premises.  Tenant shall not permit to remain in or about the Premises any article 
that may be prohibited by the broadest form of "All Risk" or "Special Form" 
property damage insurance.  

7.        WAIVER, INDEMNITY AND TENANT'S INSURANCE.

7.1 Assumption and Waiver. Tenant assumes all risk of, and waives all 
claims against Landlord arising from, damage, loss or theft of property or 
injury to persons in, upon or about the Premises from any cause.  The 
foregoing waiver includes, without limitation, the following risks against 
which Tenant should maintain adequate insurance to protect Tenant 
equipment and other personal property:  



7.1.1. All-risk casualty loss insurance with respect to all Improvements 
constructed by Tenant on the Premises, 

7.1.2. Any defect in or failure of plumbing, heating or air-conditioning 
equipment, electric wiring, water pipes, stairs, railings or walks; 

7.1.3. The disrepair of any equipment; 

7.1.4. The bursting, leaking or running of any tank, washstand, water 
closet, drain or any pipe or tank in, upon or about the Premises; 

7.1.5. The backup of any sewer pipe or down spout; 

7.1.6. The escape of steam or hot water; 

7.1.7. Water, snow or ice; 

7.1.8. The falling of any fixture, plaster or stucco; 

7.1.9. Broken glass; and 

7.1.10. Any unauthorized or criminal entry of third parties within the 
Premises.

7.2 Indemnification. 

7.2.1  Tenant's Indemnification of Landlord.  To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, the Tenant agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold 
harmless Landlord, and its officers, officials, council members, citizens, 
agents, employees and volunteers (hereinafter referred to as "Indemnitee") 
for, from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, reasonable attorney’s 
fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "Claims") including but not limited
to, personal injury (including death) or property damage caused, in whole 
or in part, by the acts, errors, omissions, negligence, or alleged negligence 
of Tenant or any of Tenant's directors, officers, agents, employees, 
volunteers or subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or 
amount arising or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or 
arising out of the failure of Tenant to conform to any federal, state or local 
law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the 
specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, 
except for Claims arising solely from the negligent acts of the Indemnitee, 
be indemnified by Tenant for, from and against any and all Claims.  It is 
agreed that Tenant will be responsible for primary loss investigation, 
defense, and judgment costs where this indemnification is applicable.  



7.3. Environmental Indemnification of Landlord by Tenant. Tenant shall 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Landlord for, from and against any 
and all future claims, demands, complaints and/or actions made or brought 
against Landlord pertaining to the Premises and arising under any 
Environmental Law, Rule, Regulation or otherwise based upon any 
Hazardous Materials condition.  This defense and indemnity includes, 
without limitation, any claims, demands, complaints, and/or action, 
asserted under CERCLA, WQARF, RCRA, and federal and state common 
law pertaining to Hazardous Materials, including any such claim based 
upon Landlord’s alleged liability as an owner or operator of the Premises 
under CERCLA or WQARF.

7.4. Insurance.  Tenant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Lease insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to 
property, which may arise from or in connection with this Lease by 
Tenant, Tenant’s agents, representatives, employees or contractors and 
commercial property insurance.  The insurance requirements herein are 
minimum requirements for this Lease and in no way limit the indemnity 
covenants contained herein.  Landlord does not represent or warrant that 
the minimum limits set forth herein are sufficient to protect Tenant from 
liabilities that might arise out of this Lease, and Tenant is free to purchase 
such additional insurance as Tenant may determine is necessary.

7.4.1. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  

7.4.1.1. Commercial General Liability - Occurrence Form

General Aggregate -- $2,000,000
Each Occurrence -- $1,000,000

7.4.1.2. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability

Workers’ Compensation -- Statutory
Employer’s Liability: Each Accident -- $500,000
Disease - Each Employee -- $500,000
Disease - Policy Limit -- $500,000

7.4.2. Other Insurance Requirements.  The policies shall contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

7.4.2.1. Commercial General Liability  Coverage.  

7.4.2.1.1. Insurance coverage, other than Workers’ 
Compensation, shall name the City, its agents, 
representatives, directors, officials, 
employees, and officers, as additional insured.  



Evidence of insurance and formal 
endorsements to that effect shall be current 
and on file with the City of Flagstaff.  Such 
endorsement shall include both ongoing and 
completed operations.

7.4.2.1.2. Coverage provided by Tenant shall not be 
limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Lease.

7.4.2.2. Workers’ Compensation and Employee’s Liability 
Coverage.  The insurer agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against Landlord, its officials, officers, 
agents, employees and volunteers for losses arising from 
Tenant’s operations, occupancy and use of the Premises 
subject to this Lease.

7.4.3. Notice of Cancellation. Each insurance policy required by the 
insurance provisions of this Lease shall not be suspended, voided, 
cancelled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) 
days’ prior written notice has been given to Landlord.

7.4.4. Acceptability of Insurers.  Tenant shall place insurance hereunder 
with insurers duly licensed or approved unlicensed companies in 
the State of Arizona and with a "Best’s" rating of not less than A-: 
VII.  Landlord does not represent or warrant that the above 
required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to provide Lessee 
from potential insurer insolvency.

S U B L E A S E

11. INDEMNIFICATION OF SUBLESSOR AND MASTER LESSOR.  To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, the Sublessee agrees to indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Sublessor and the Master Lessor for, from and against any and all 
penalties, costs, expenses (including attorneys' fees), claims, demands and causes 
of action arising out of or in connection with any accident or other occurrence in 
or on the common areas (including without limiting the generality of the term 
"common areas,"  and "common areas," including but not limited to, stairways, 
passageways, hallways, conference/meeting rooms, breakout rooms, kitchen 
areas, area utilized by the EOC), the use of which Sublessee may have in 
conjunction with other tenants and occupants of the Premises, when such injury or 
damage shall be caused in part or in whole by the act, neglect, fault or omission of 
any duty with respect to the same by Sublessee, its agents, servants, employees, 
invitees, visitors, permittees, customers, clients, guests or tenants.

12. INSURANCE.



12.1 Insurance.  Sublessee shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Lease insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to 
property, which may arise from or in connection with this Lease by 
Sublessee, Sublessee’s agents, representatives, employees or contractors 
and commercial property insurance.  The insurance requirements herein 
are minimum requirements for this Lease and in no way limit the 
indemnity covenants contained herein.  Master Lessor and Sublessor do 
not represent or warrant that the minimum limits set forth herein are 
sufficient to protect Sublessee from liabilities that might arise out of this 
Lease, and Sublessee is free to purchase such additional insurance as 
Sublessee may determine is necessary.

12.2 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  Sublessee shall provide 
coverage at least as broad and with limits not less than those stated below.

12.2.1. Commercial General Liability - Occurrence Form

General Aggregate -- $2,000,000
Each Occurrence -- $1,000,000

12.2.2. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability

Workers’ Compensation -- Statutory
Employer’s Liability: Each Accident -- $500,000
Disease - Each Employee -- $500,000
Disease - Policy Limit -- $500,000

12.2.3. Self-Insured Retention/Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions 
and deductibles must be declared to and approved by Master 
Lessor and Sublessor.

12.2.5. Other Insurance Requirements.  The policies shall contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

12.2.5.1. Commercial General Liability Coverages. 

12.2.5.2 Insurance coverage, other than Workers’ 
Compensation, shall name the City, its agents, 
representatives, directors, officials, employees, and 
officers, as additional insured.  Evidence of insurance 
and formal endorsements to that effect shall be current 
and on file with the City of Flagstaff.  Such 
endorsement shall include both ongoing and completed 
operations.

12.2.5.2.1. Coverage provided by Sublessee shall not 
be limited to the liability assumed under 



the indemnification provisions of this 
Lease.

12.2.5.3. Workers’ Compensation and Employee’s Liability 
Coverage.  The insurer agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against Master Lessor and Sublessor, its 
officials, officers, agents, employees and volunteers 
for losses arising from Sublessee’s operations, 
occupancy and use of the Premises subject to this 
Lease.

12.2.5. Notice of Cancellation. Each insurance policy required by the 
insurance provisions of this Lease shall not be suspended, 
voided, cancelled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice has been given to Master 
Lessor and Sublessor.

12.2.6. Acceptability of Insurers. Sublessee shall place insurance 
hereunder with insurers duly licensed or approved unlicensed 
companies in the State of Arizona and with a "Best’s" rating of 
not less than A-: VII.  Master Lessor and Sublessor does not 
represent or warrant that the above required minimum insurer 
rating is sufficient to provide Lessee from potential insurer 
insolvency.

12.3. Liability Insurance.  Sublessee agrees to procure and maintain at its own 
cost and expense, during the entire term of this Sublease and any 
extensions thereof, comprehensive public liability insurance covering the 
Subleased Premises, which insurance shall also name Sublessor and 
Master Lessor as additional named insureds.  The liability coverage under 
such insurance shall not be less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 
for injury, illness or death to persons or damage to property in any one 
incident.  Prior to, and as a condition of, taking possession of the 
Subleased Premises, Sublessee will provide Sublessor with certificates of 
such insurance and appropriate endorsement, satisfactory to Sublessor, 
evidencing Sublessee's compliance with the requirements of this 
Section 12.3.

Section 2. No Further Modification. Except as specifically modified and amended 
pursuant to the terms of this First Amendment, the Lease shall remain in full force and 
effect, and the terms and conditions thereof are hereby ratified and affirmed by the parties 
thereto.

Section 3. Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together 
shall constitute one and the same instrument.



Section 4. Effective Date. This Amendment shall be effective as of the date first 
written above.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK;
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this First Amendment to 
Master Lease as of the date first above written.

City of Flagstaff Northern Arizona Technology & Business 
Incubator, Inc., dba NACET (Provider)

Gerald Nabours, Mayor Annette Zinky, President and CEO

Attest:

City Clerk

Approved as to form:

City Attorney

Date of Execution:



FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO BUSINESS ACCELERATOR MASTER LEASE

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO BUSINESS ACCELERATOR MASTER LEASE
(“FIRST AMENDMENT”) is entered into this _____ day of _____________, 2015, by 
and between the City of Flagstaff (the “City”), a municipal corporation with offices at 211 
W. Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Coconino County, Arizona, and Northern Arizona Technology 
& Business Incubator, Inc., dba NACET (the “Provider"), an Arizona corporation, with 
offices at 2225 North Gemini Drive, Flagstaff, Arizona, 86001, as further set forth below.

RECITALS

A. Landlord and Provider are parties to the Business Accelerator Master Lease dated 
January 1, 2015, respecting that building located at 2225 North Gemini Drive in the City 
of Flagstaff, Arizona, which building is commonly known as the Northern Arizona 
Technology & Business Incubator, Inc., dba NACET (the “Provider")

B.  The Landlord and Provider now desire to amend the Business Accelerator Master 
Lease on the terms and conditions contained in this First Amendment.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein,
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the parties agree to amend the Business Accelerator Master Lease 
as follows:

Section 1. Amendments. The Business Accelerator Master Lease is hereby amended as 
follows:

R E C I T A L S

B. Pursuant to the terms of the Grant, Landlord has constructed, equipped and furnished 
an approximate 28,000 square foot LEED facility on that parcel of real property 
located at 2201 North Gemini Drive in the city of Flagstaff, Arizona, which building 
is commonly known as Innovation Mesa Business Accelerator Facility (the 
"Premises").

D. Landlord desires to lease the Premises to Tenant and Tenant desires to lease the 
Premises from Landlord for the purpose of the operation for research and 
development,  science, technology and clean energy focused business accelerator for 
the benefit of Landlord, Tenant and the citizens of the city of Flagstaff and the State 
of Arizona.  In connection therewith, subject to the limitations and other provisions of 
this Lease, the parties hereto acknowledge that the Tenant intends to sublease 
portions of the Premises to third parties for the purpose of the development of 



technology and science startups, Tier 2 companies, and entrepreneurs meeting the 
objectives of the Grant, a copy of which has been provided to Tenant.

3.1 Rent. At the times and in the manner set forth herein, Tenant shall pay to 
Landlord as rent for the Premises ("Rent") the sum of the following amounts:

3.1.1. Rental Agent/Calculation of Rents.  NACET will act as the Rental 
Agent for the City of Flagstaff, refer to section 3.4. A Rental Rate Sheet which 
meets the City pro-forma will be submitted by NACET and approved annually by 
the Landlord or designated agent.  In addition, NACET will levy a 6% common 
area (such as conference room, policy room, collaborative space, kitchen, etc.) 
charge to each tenant’s base rent.  NACET will collect these rents per the terms 
and conditions noted in the Sublease Agreement.  The Base Rent payable shall be 
calculated on July 1 by the increase (if any) (on a percentage basis) in the United 
States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, Consumer Price Index for 
all Urban Consumers (CPI-U), USA City Average (1982 – 84 =100) (“Index”) for 
the prior month and applied on annual anniversary date. In addition, the City of 
Flagstaff will monitor utility usage and costs on an annual basis and reserves the 
right to make adjustments based on mutual consent.

5.2 Insurance Requirements. In addition to the requirements in Section 7 of this 
Lease, Tenant shall not engage in or permit any activity which will cause the 
cancellation of, or increase the existing premiums on, any insurance relating to the 
Premises.  Tenant shall not permit to remain in or about the Premises any article 
that may be prohibited by the broadest form of "All Risk" or "Special Form" 
property damage insurance.  

7.        WAIVER, INDEMNITY AND TENANT'S INSURANCE.

7.1 Assumption and Waiver. Tenant assumes all risk of, and waives all 
claims against Landlord arising from, damage, loss or theft of property or 
injury to persons in, upon or about the Premises from any cause.  The 
foregoing waiver includes, without limitation, the following risks against 
which Tenant should maintain adequate insurance to protect Tenant 
equipment and other personal property:  

7.1.1. All-risk casualty loss insurance with respect to all Improvements 
constructed by Tenant on the Premises, 

7.1.2. Any defect in or failure of plumbing, heating or air-conditioning 
equipment, electric wiring, water pipes, stairs, railings or walks; 

7.1.3. The disrepair of any equipment; 

7.1.4. The bursting, leaking or running of any tank, washstand, water 
closet, drain or any pipe or tank in, upon or about the Premises; 

7.1.5. The backup of any sewer pipe or down spout; 



7.1.6. The escape of steam or hot water; 

7.1.7. Water, snow or ice; 

7.1.8. The falling of any fixture, plaster or stucco; 

7.1.9. Broken glass; and 

7.1.10. Any unauthorized or criminal entry of third parties within the 
Premises.

7.2 Indemnification. 

7.2.1  Tenant's Indemnification of Landlord.  To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, the Tenant agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold 
harmless Landlord, and its officers, officials, council members, citizens, 
agents, employees and volunteers (hereinafter referred to as "Indemnitee") 
for, from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, liabilities, 
damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, reasonable attorney’s 
fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as "Claims") including but not limited 
to, personal injury (including death) or property damage caused, in whole 
or in part, by the acts, errors, omissions, negligence, or alleged negligence 
of Tenant or any of Tenant's directors, officers, agents, employees, 
volunteers or subcontractors.  This indemnity includes any claim or 
amount arising or recovered under the Workers’ Compensation Law or 
arising out of the failure of Tenant to conform to any federal, state or local 
law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree.  It is the 
specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, 
except for Claims arising solely from the negligent acts of the 

Indemnitee, be indemnified by Tenant for, from and against any 
and all Claims.  It is agreed that Tenant will be responsible for primary 
loss investigation, defense, and judgment costs where this indemnification 
is applicable.  

7.3. Environmental Indemnification of Landlord by Tenant. Tenant shall 
defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Landlord for, from and against any 
and all future claims, demands, complaints and/or actions made or brought 
against Landlord pertaining to the Premises and arising under any 
Environmental Law, Rule, Regulation or otherwise based upon any 
Hazardous Materials condition.  This defense and indemnity includes, 
without limitation, any claims, demands, complaints, and/or action, 
asserted under CERCLA, WQARF, RCRA, and federal and state common 
law pertaining to Hazardous Materials, including any such claim based 
upon Landlord’s alleged liability as an owner or operator of the Premises 
under CERCLA or WQARF.



7.4. Insurance.  Tenant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Lease insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to 
property, which may arise from or in connection with this Lease by 
Tenant, Tenant’s agents, representatives, employees or contractors and 
commercial property insurance.  The insurance requirements herein are 
minimum requirements for this Lease and in no way limit the indemnity 
covenants contained herein.  Landlord does not represent or warrant that 
the minimum limits set forth herein are sufficient to protect Tenant from 
liabilities that might arise out of this Lease, and Tenant is free to purchase 
such additional insurance as Tenant may determine is necessary.

7.4.1. Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  

7.4.1.1. Commercial General Liability - Occurrence Form

General Aggregate -- $2,000,000
Each Occurrence -- $1,000,000

7.4.1.2. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability

Workers’ Compensation -- Statutory
Employer’s Liability: Each Accident -- $500,000
Disease - Each Employee -- $500,000
Disease - Policy Limit -- $500,000

7.4.2. Other Insurance Requirements.  The policies shall contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

7.4.2.1. Commercial General Liability  Coverage.  

7.4.2.1.1. Insurance coverage, other than Workers’ 
Compensation, shall name the City, its agents, 
representatives, directors, officials, 
employees, and officers, as additional insured.  
Evidence of insurance and formal 
endorsements to that effect shall be current 
and on file with the City of Flagstaff.  Such 
endorsement shall include both ongoing and 
completed operations.

7.4.2.1.2. Coverage provided by Tenant shall not be 
limited to the liability assumed under the 
indemnification provisions of this Lease.



7.4.2.2. Workers’ Compensation and Employee’s Liability 
Coverage.  The insurer agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against Landlord, its officials, officers, 
agents, employees and volunteers for losses arising from 
Tenant’s operations, occupancy and use of the Premises 
subject to this Lease.

7.4.3. Notice of Cancellation. Each insurance policy required by the 
insurance provisions of this Lease shall not be suspended, voided, 
cancelled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) 
days’ prior written notice has been given to Landlord.

7.4.4. Acceptability of Insurers.  Tenant shall place insurance hereunder 
with insurers duly licensed or approved unlicensed companies in 
the State of Arizona and with a "Best’s" rating of not less than A-: 
VII.  Landlord does not represent or warrant that the above 
required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to provide Lessee 
from potential insurer insolvency.

13.2 Minimum Sublease Occupancy Requirement.  Notwithstanding anything 
contained in this Lease to the contrary, Landlord and Tenant hereby acknowledge 
and agree that, as a material part of the consideration to Landlord for its execution 
of this Lease, Tenant shall, commencing upon the first anniversary of the 
Commencement Date, and continuing thereafter through the duration of the Term, 
and each Extension Term, as applicable, maintain a minimum number of 
Subtenants within the Premises occupying these minimum amounts of leasable 
square footage for the following years: Year 1 (partial and/or full) - 25% of 
leasable square footage or 4,706 square feet; Year 2 - 50% of leasable square 
footage or 9,412square feet; Year 3 - 75% of leasable square footage or 14,117 
square feet; Year 4 and subsequent years - 80% of leasable square footage or 
15,058square feet, exclusive of any space occupied by Tenant for Tenant's offices 
and "common areas," including but limited to, stairways, passageways, hallways, 
conference/meeting rooms, breakout rooms, kitchen areas, area utilized by the 
EOC, the "Minimum Sublease Occupancy Requirement").  Except by mutual 
agreement otherwise between the parties, at any time after the first anniversary of 
the Commencement Date, if Tenant fails to satisfy the Minimum Sublease 
Occupancy Requirement for a period of ninety (90) consecutive days or more, 
Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, to elect to terminate or 
extend this Lease by written notice to Tenant.  In the event that Landlord 
terminates the lease, all further rights, duties and obligations of the parties 
hereunder shall terminate, except with respect to any continuing indemnity 
obligations of the parties hereunder.

14. MAINTENANCE AND UTILITIES.

14.1 Obligations of the Landlord. The Landlord will be responsible to set up 
and pay the utilities including electric, gas, water, wastewater/sewer, storm 



water, environmental management fee, natural gas, electricity, power, 
telephone, public internet access which includes equipment and Internet 
Service (EOC/conference room, policy room and collaborative space), trash 
removal, recyclables and all other services or utilities used within or about the 
Premises by the Tenant or any Subtenant. The Landlord will monitor above 
mentioned utility costs and reserves the right to amend the terms. The 
Landlord will provide janitorial services, including supplies and pest control 
as agreed upon through the Landlord’s service contracts.  Any enhanced 
janitorial services requested by NACET and/or the Tenant(s) is NACET or the 
Tenant(s) responsibility.  The Landlord will be responsible for any structural 
maintenance.  Tenants will be responsible to pay for any and all excessive or 
careless damages outside of normal wear and tear.  The Landlord will provide 
weekly cleaning service for common areas, and the Tenants shall furnish and 
clean their own leased areas.  The Landlord will be responsible for 
maintenance of the exterior landscaping and shall be responsible for snow 
removal from the sidewalks and parking areas.

24. NOTICES.  No notice, consent, approval or other communication given in 
connection herewith shall be validly given, made, delivered or served unless in 
writing and delivered in person or sent by registered or certified United States 
mail, postage prepaid, to the parties at the following addresses:

To Tenant: NACET
2201 N. Gemini Dr.
Flagstaff, Arizona 86004
Attn: President/CEO

25.4 No Waiver. No delay or omission of Landlord to exercise any right or power 
shall impair any such right or powers or shall be construed to be a waiver of any 
nonperformance by Tenant or acquiescence therein.  No waiver of any 
nonperformance shall be effective unless it is in writing.  No written waiver by 
Landlord shall be deemed to be a waiver of any other Lease provision, or of any 
subsequent breach by Tenant of the same or any other provision.  Landlord's 
consent to or approval of any act by Tenant shall not be deemed to render 
unnecessary the procurement of Landlord's consent to or approval of any 
subsequent act of Tenant, whether or not similar to the act so consented to or 
approved.

S U B L E A S E

11. INDEMNIFICATION OF SUBLESSOR AND MASTER LESSOR.  To the 
fullest extent permitted by law, the Sublessee agrees to indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless Sublessor and the Master Lessor for, from and against any and all 
penalties, costs, expenses (including attorneys' fees), claims, demands and causes 
of action arising out of or in connection with any accident or other occurrence in 



or on the common areas (including without limiting the generality of the term 
"common areas,"  and "common areas," including but not limited to, stairways, 
passageways, hallways, conference/meeting rooms, breakout rooms, kitchen 
areas, area utilized by the EOC), the use of which Sublessee may have in 
conjunction with other tenants and occupants of the Premises, when such injury or 
damage shall be caused in part or in whole by the act, neglect, fault or omission of 
any duty with respect to the same by Sublessee, its agents, servants, employees, 
invitees, visitors, permittees, customers, clients, guests or tenants.

12. INSURANCE.

12.1 Insurance.  Sublessee shall procure and maintain for the duration of the 
Lease insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to 
property, which may arise from or in connection with this Lease by 
Sublessee, Sublessee’s agents, representatives, employees or contractors 
and commercial property insurance.  The insurance requirements herein 
are minimum requirements for this Lease and in no way limit the 
indemnity covenants contained herein.  Master Lessor and Sublessor do 
not represent or warrant that the minimum limits set forth herein are 
sufficient to protect Sublessee from liabilities that might arise out of this 
Lease, and Sublessee is free to purchase such additional insurance as 
Sublessee may determine is necessary.

12.2 Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  Sublessee shall provide 
coverage at least as broad and with limits not less than those stated below.

12.2.1. Commercial General Liability - Occurrence Form

General Aggregate -- $2,000,000
Each Occurrence -- $1,000,000

12.2.2. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability

Workers’ Compensation -- Statutory
Employer’s Liability: Each Accident -- $500,000
Disease - Each Employee -- $500,000
Disease - Policy Limit -- $500,000

12.2.3. Self-Insured Retention/Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions 
and deductibles must be declared to and approved by Master 
Lessor and Sublessor.

12.2.5. Other Insurance Requirements.  The policies shall contain, or be 
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:



12.2.5.1. Commercial General Liability Coverages. 

12.2.5.2 Insurance coverage, other than Workers’ 
Compensation, shall name the City, its agents, 
representatives, directors, officials, employees, and 
officers, as additional insured.  Evidence of insurance 
and formal endorsements to that effect shall be current 
and on file with the City of Flagstaff.  Such 
endorsement shall include both ongoing and completed 
operations.

12.2.5.2.1. Coverage provided by Sublessee shall not 
be limited to the liability assumed under 
the indemnification provisions of this 
Lease.

12.2.5.3. Workers’ Compensation and Employee’s Liability 
Coverage.  The insurer agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against Master Lessor and Sublessor, its 
officials, officers, agents, employees and volunteers 
for losses arising from Sublessee’s operations, 
occupancy and use of the Premises subject to this 
Lease.

12.2.5. Notice of Cancellation. Each insurance policy required by the 
insurance provisions of this Lease shall not be suspended, 
voided, cancelled, reduced in coverage or in limits except after 
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice has been given to Master 
Lessor and Sublessor.

12.2.6. Acceptability of Insurers. Sublessee shall place insurance 
hereunder with insurers duly licensed or approved unlicensed 
companies in the State of Arizona and with a "Best’s" rating of 
not less than A-: VII.  Master Lessor and Sublessor does not 
represent or warrant that the above required minimum insurer 
rating is sufficient to provide Lessee from potential insurer 
insolvency.

12.3. Liability Insurance.  Sublessee agrees to procure and maintain at its own 
cost and expense, during the entire term of this Sublease and any 
extensions thereof, comprehensive public liability insurance covering the 
Subleased Premises, which insurance shall also name Sublessor and 
Master Lessor as additional named insureds.  The liability coverage under 
such insurance shall not be less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) 
for injury, illness or death to persons or damage to property in any one 
incident.  Prior to, and as a condition of, taking possession of the 
Subleased Premises, Sublessee will provide Sublessor with certificates of 



such insurance and appropriate endorsement, satisfactory to Sublessor, 
evidencing Sublessee's compliance with the requirements of this 
Section 12.3.

Section 2. No Further Modification. Except as specifically modified and amended 
pursuant to the terms of this First Amendment, the Lease shall remain in full force and 
effect, and the terms and conditions thereof are hereby ratified and affirmed by the parties 
thereto.

Section 3. Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together 
shall constitute one and the same instrument.

Section 4. Effective Date. This Amendment shall be effective as of the date first 
written above.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK;
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this First Amendment to 
Master Lease as of the date first above written.

City of Flagstaff Northern Arizona Technology & Business 
Incubator, Inc., dba NACET (Provider)

Gerald Nabours, Mayor Annette Zinky, President and CEO

Attest:

City Clerk

Approved as to form:

City Attorney

Date of Execution:



  10. C.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Mark Gaillard, Fire Chief

Date: 08/26/2015

Meeting Date: 09/01/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Contract:  An IGA between the City of Flagstaff and the Westwood
Estates Fire District for Fire Medical Rescue services (Approve IGA with Westwood Estates Fire
District for fire and emergency medical services).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Approve the IGA between the City of Flagstaff and the Westwood Estates Fire District. 

Executive Summary:
The City of Flagstaff has provided contractual services to the Westwood Estates Fire District since 1997. 
This IGA continues the provision of Fire Medical Rescue services to the District from the City of
Flagstaff. The proposed IGA represents a reduction in revenue from the previous IGA of approximately
$202,020.80 over the 5 year term. This 40% reduction equates to an annual reduction of approximately
$40,404. Two factors are attributed to the significant reduction in IGA terms. 1) The 2010 IGA was
negotiated with pre-recession assessed values and an annual inflator. 2) City Code has been adjusted
since the IGA to provide a consistent methodology for the determination of fees. The recently approved
Lockett Ranch Fire District IGA used the same City Code methodology to determine conditions for costs.
(Flagstaff City Code Chapter 5-01, Fire Limits)

Financial Impact:
The base annual contract rate of 60,512.05 over the life of the five year agreement is $302,560.25. 
(Annually, the base rate will be adjusted in accordance with the Consumer Price Index)

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services, and infrastructure systems in an efficient and
effective manner to serve all population areas and demographics

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
City Council authorized the most recent IGA with Westwood Estates in July of 2010. 
  
   



   

Options and Alternatives:
1. Approve the IGA as presented.  Continue services to Westwood Estates Fire District.
2. Amend the IGA and Direct Staff to negotiate different terms with  the Westwood Estates Fire District.
3. Disapprove the IGA and cease the provision of Fire Medical Rescue services to Westwood Estates
Fire District. 

Key Considerations:
The City of Flagstaff has provided fire medical rescue services to the Westwood Estates Fire District
since 1997 under the provisions of an IGA.  The IGA provides general fund revenue for the City of
Flagstaff in return for fire medical rescue services for the district.  The District receives a level of services
that would be difficult to attain given its smaller size (tax base) and Flagstaff receives equitable
reimbursement for service without the necessity of adding staffing or equipment. (Note: Over the course
of the previous 5 year IGA, the Flagstaff Fire Department responded to 4 requests for service.)

Community Involvement:
Inform

Attachments:  2015 IGA COF WEFD
Westwood Estates FD Map



1

After recording, return to:

City Clerk
Flagstaff City Hall
211 W. Aspen Avenue
Flagstaff, AZ  86001

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
between

City of Flagstaff
and

Westwood Estates Fire District

This intergovernmental agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this ____ day of 
______________, 2015, between the City of Flagstaff (“CITY”), an Arizona municipal 
corporation, with offices at 211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona, on behalf of the 
Flagstaff Fire Department (“DEPARTMENT”), and the Westwood Estates Fire District (the 
“DISTRICT”), a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, created pursuant to A.R.S. §48-
261, with offices at 3951 Westwood Circle, Flagstaff, Arizona 86001Flagstaff, Coconino 
County, Arizona. DISTRICT and the CITY may be referred to as a Party or, collectively, as the 
Parties in this Agreement.

RECITALS

A. The DISTRICT, a political subdivision formed pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-261, seeks to 
obtain fire and emergency medical services for the residents of its district and is authorized to do 
so by A.R.S. § 48-805(7).

B. The CITY, through its DEPARTMENT, operates, manages and maintains fire and 
emergency medical services.

C. The DISTRICT desires that the CITY, through the DEPARTMENT, provide fire and 
emergency medical services for incidents occurring within the boundary response area of the 
DISTRICT.

D. The CITY is authorized to enter into agreements to provide fire protection and 
emergency medical services by Flagstaff City Code Section 5-01-001-0003 and is willing to 
provide such services to the DISTRICT in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to A.R.S. §11-952, authorizing agreements for services among 
two or more public agencies, and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this 
Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

1. Duration and Termination of Agreement.

This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by the parties.  The DEPARTMENT will 



2

begin service to the DISTRICT at 12:01 AM on ______________, 2015, and, subject to early 
termination or renewal as provided below, will continue to provide services as described in this 
Agreement to the DISTRICT with the Agreement terminating at 11:59 PM on ___________, 
2020.  If the parties reach agreement under Section 4.1.3, they shall amend this Agreement to 
extend the duration for five (5) years, with the Agreement terminating on ______________, 
2025.  The CITY shall also have the right to terminate this Agreement upon written notice 
thereof to DISTRICT in the event the DISTRICT fails to make any payment due the CITY under 
this Agreement within thirty (30) calendar days after receiving written notice from the City that 
such payment is past due.

2. Level of CITY Services

The CITY, through the DEPARTMENT, agrees to provide fire and emergency medical services 
to the DISTRICT, twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week as follows:

2.1. Personnel.  All DEPARTMENT response personnel will be certified as firefighters under 
state of Arizona guidelines and certified to the minimum level of Emergency Medical 
Technician.  All response personnel will have been trained to the operations level for Hazardous 
Materials.

2.2 Staffing Levels.  Each fire apparatus responding to an incident within the DISTRICT will 
be staffed with a minimum of three fire/emergency medical services personnel (collectively, 
“One Unit”).  On confirmed structural fires or larger wild land fires, additional units will be 
dispatched, as well as a Chief Officer who will assume command operations. A two (2) person 
rescue vehicle may respond to calls for emergency medical services if it is the closest fire unit
available. A two (2) person rescue vehicle may also respond as part of a full force contingent for
fire related events.

2.3 Station Locations and Response Assignments.  The DEPARTMENT will provide 
services to the DISTRICT in a manner consistent with that provided within the City of Flagstaff.  
The DEPARTMENT will not have equipment or personnel stationed at existing or proposed 
Westwood Estates facilities. The initial response to a structure fire will be a complement of fire 
companies and a Chief Officer that will provide a minimum of fourteen (14) personnel.  An 
automatic fire alarm sounding will receive a One Unit response and an emergency medical 
services request will receive the closest available unit which could be an engine or a two (2) 
person rescue vehicle response.   The CITY and the DISTRICT both acknowledge, response 
times to the DISTRICT will vary, depending upon the circumstances of each call and availability 
of emergency response units.

2.2.1 The CITY may alter staffing assignments, the type of equipment responding, and 
service levels provided to the DISTRICT if such changes are consistent with 
changes in CITY practices and procedures.  

2.4 Emergency Communications Center (911).  The DISTRICT will make every effort to 
ensure that its residents direct all requests for assistance to the combined City/County 
Emergency 911 Dispatch Center.  This facility is staffed and operated by trained emergency 



3

dispatchers 24 hours a day, seven days per week.  All communications are time-stamped and 
radio transmissions are voice recorded.  Dispatchers maintain constant contact with responding 
and on-scene personnel to provide support and to dispatch additional resources.  

2.5 Fuel Management.  The DEPARTMENT will assist groups or businesses within the 
DISTRICT, such as homeowners’ associations, developers and others, with the development and 
implementation of fuel management maintenance plans and will provide periodic assessments of 
the plans.  The DEPARTMENT will report to the DISTRICT any maintenance or storage 
concerns that it may observe.

2.6 Hydrant Testing.  The DEPARTMENT will conduct annual hydrant maintenance testing 
on all fire hydrants within the DISTRICT with permission of the appropriate water company.  
The DEPARTMENT will notify the DISTRICT and the appropriate water company in writing 
with regard to any problems or repair work that is necessary.  The DISTRICT will cooperate 
with the DEPARTMENT and with the appropriate water company to seek to insure that all 
hydrants are functional and can provide the necessary fire flow to meet the design of the 
protection system in the DISTRICT.  In no event will the DEPARTMENT be liable for any 
injury, damages or other loss resulting from a failure of the fire hydrants within the DISTRICT 
to provide the necessary fire flow to meet the design of the protection system in the DISTRICT.

2.7 Road Access.  The DISTRICT will cooperate with the DEPARTMENT to ensure that all 
roadways have clear access for emergency response vehicles. In no event will DEPARTMENT 
be liable for any injury, damages or other loss resulting from a failure of the DISTRICT to 
provide clear access for the DEPARTMENT’S emergency response vehicles.

2.8 Personnel and Equipment Shortages.  DISTRICT acknowledges and agrees that the 
occurrence of a major fire, several concurrent fires, other emergency, reduction in force, road 
closure, or other situation resulting in a shortage of available personnel or equipment may cause 
DEPARTMENT to respond with fewer units or personnel than specified above. The DISTRICT 
further acknowledges that the DEPARTMENT may request assistance from its mutual aid 
partners to assist with responses in a manner consistent with operations within the City.  

2.9 Response Time. DISTRICT acknowledges and agrees that DEPARTMENT response 
times are subject to variations due to existing weather conditions, travel distance for fire units 
already engaged elsewhere, traffic conditions, property identification and the provision of 
standard access and routing information to property or individuals, and that under these 
circumstances DEPARTMENT may be unable to respond, or be delayed in responding, to an 
emergency call in the DISTRICT.

3. Disposition of Property

During the term of this Agreement any property purchased by the CITY with its own funds will 
remain the property of the CITY, and any property purchased by the DISTRICT with its own 
funds will remain the property of the DISTRICT.

4. Fee for Service.



4

4.1 The DEPARTMENT will provide the services described in this Agreement for the fees
described below:

Pursuant to Flagstaff City Code, Section 5-01-001-003, the fee shall be determined as follows:

Westwood Estates Fire District’s Assessed Valuation for 2015  / 100 x City’s combined primary 
and secondary tax rates x 18% = Base Rate. 

Westwood Estates Fire District’s Base Rate shall be as follows:

$3,055,374 (AV) / 100 = $30,553.74 

$30,553.74     x  1.6784 = $51,281.40
$51,281.40 x 18% = $  9,230.65
BASE CONTRACT RATE  = $60,512.05

4.2. The Base Contract Rate shall be increased on an annual basis by an amount equal to the 
Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers using the U.S. City average. In no event shall the
Base Contract Rate be reduced in any subsequent year as a result of a decrease in the CPI-U.  

4.3 Method of Payment.  The DISTRICT shall make payments in full by 
__________________, 2015, and thereafter fifty percent (50%) of the total annual amount shall 
be due no later than November 15 and May 15 each year.

4.3.1 Late Payment.  All amounts due from the DISTRICT to the CITY that are not 
paid by DISTRICT when due shall be subject to a penalty of ten percent (10%) of 
the amount due, plus interest at the rate of one (1%) percent per month or fraction 
of a month from the time due and owing until paid.  

4.4 Equipment Purchases.  The CITY will be solely responsible for the purchase of its 
equipment, if any, and will make such purchases within its discretion.

5. Liability and Indemnification

5.1 Force Majeure.  The CITY, the DEPARTMENT and their agents, officials and 
employees, shall not be liable to the DISTRICT for failure to comply with any of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement where any failure to comply is caused by an act of God, court 
order, government regulation or requirement, strike or labor difficulty, fire, flood, windstorm, 
breakdown or other damage to equipment, power failure or any other cause beyond the 
reasonable control of the CITY.

5.2 The City desires to serve the District in a manner consistent with service extended to any 
part of the City’s Fire Protection System that provides coverage to residents of the City of 
Flagstaff, its Mutual Aid Partners, and contract/IGA holders.  However, the CITY shall not be 
liable to the DISTRICT or DISTRICT's residents for failure to comply with any of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement where any failure to comply arises from CITY requirements to 



5

provide services to any or all parts of the entire service system, including its own residents, 
Mutual Aid Partners, or contract/IGA holders within its jurisdictional limits.

5.3 Indemnification.  Each party (as “Indemnitor”) agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless the other party (as “Indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, 
costs, or expenses (including reasonable attorney’s fees) (collectively referred to as “Claims”) 
arising out of bodily injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the 
extent that such claims which result in vicarious/derivative liability to the Indemnitee, are caused 
by the act, omission, negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the Indemnitor, its officers, 
officials, agents, employees, or volunteers.

6. Dispute Resolution

6.1 Litigation and Attorneys Fees.  In the event any action at law or in equity is instituted 
between the parties in connection with this Agreement, the prevailing party in the action will be 
entitled to its costs including reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs from the non-prevailing 
party.

7. Notices

Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice or other communication required or 
permitted to be given shall be in writing and sent to the address given below for the party to be 
notified, or to such other address notice of which is given:

If to CITY: If to DISTRICT:

Mark Gaillard, Fire Chief
City of Flagstaff
211 West Aspen Avenue
Flagstaff, Arizona  86001

Copy to:

City Manager
City of Flagstaff
211 West Aspen Avenue
Flagstaff, Arizona  86001

____________________, Chairperson
Westwood Estates Fire District Board
3951 Westwood Circle
Flagstaff, Arizona  86001

8. General Provisions

8.1 Status of Employees.  Employees of the respective parties shall not be considered 
employees or agents of the other, and the CITY and the DISTRICT agree that they shall retain 
sole responsibility and authority over their respective employees.

8.2 Authorization to Contract.  Each party represents and warrants that it has full power and 
authority to enter into this Agreement and perform its obligations under this Agreement and has 



6

taken all required acts or actions necessary to authorize the same.

8.3 Integration; Modification.  Each party acknowledges and agrees that it has not relied 
upon any statements, representations, agreements or warranties, except as expressed in this 
Agreement, and that this Agreement constitutes the parties’ entire agreement with respect to the 
matters addressed in this document.  All prior or contemporaneous agreements and 
understandings, oral or written, with respect to such matters are superseded and merged in this 
Agreement.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by written agreement signed by 
or for both parties and recorded by the County Recorder, and any modification or amendment 
will become effective on the date so specified, but no earlier than the date of the recording by the 
County Recorder.

8.4 Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511, either the CITY or 
DISTRICT may cancel this Agreement without penalty or further obligation if any person 
significantly involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating this Agreement on 
behalf of a party is, at any time while the Agreement or any extension of the Agreement is in 
effect, an employee or agent of the other party of the Agreement in any capacity or as a 
consultant to the other party of the Agreement with respect to the subject matter of this 
Agreement.

8.5 Waiver.  No failure to enforce any condition or covenant of this Agreement will imply or 
constitute a waiver of the right of a party to insist upon performance of the condition or 
covenant, or of any other provision of this Agreement, nor will any waiver by either party of any 
breach of any one or more conditions or covenants of this Agreement constitute a waiver of any 
succeeding or other breach under this Agreement.

8.6 Termination for Lack of Funds.  The DISTRICT agrees to levy in good faith an amount 
sufficient to pay for the services to be provided by the CITY under this Agreement.  If the 
DISTRICT determines, based upon the County Treasurer’s tax collection data, and the City 
concurs that there will not be sufficient tax revenues available to the DISTRICT to pay the fee 
for services described in this Agreement, the DISTRICT may terminate this Agreement by 
giving the CITY ninety (90) days’ notice of the lack of available funds.  Termination of this 
Agreement will not relieve the DISTRICT of the obligation to pay the CITY the pro rata portion 
of the annual amount due before the termination date of the Agreement.  In the event of 
termination, CITY agrees to refund to DISTRICT on a pro rata basis fees paid by DISTRICT in 
advance for any period following the date of termination.

8.7 Non-Discrimination.  The Parties shall comply with the provisions of Arizona Executive 
Order 2009-09 which is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth in this Agreement.

8.8 Compliance with Immigration Laws and Regulations.  Pursuant to the provisions of 
A.R.S. Sec. 41-4401, each Party warrants to the other Party that the warranting Party and its 
subcontractors, if any, are in compliance with all Federal Immigration laws and regulations that 
relate to their employees and with the E-Verify Program under A.R.S. Sec. 23-214(A).  The 
Parties acknowledge that a breach of this warranty by a Party or any of its subcontractors is a 
material breach of this Agreement subject to penalties up to and including termination of this 



7

Agreement or any subcontract.  Each Party retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
employee of the other Party or any subcontractor who works on this Agreement to ensure 
compliance with this warranty.

8.9 Compliance with All Laws.  Both Parties will comply with all applicable Federal, State, 
County and City laws, regulations and policies.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day 
and year first above written above.

City of Flagstaff Westwood Estates Fire District

Gerald W. Nabours, Mayor Shawn Winiecki, Chairperson

Attest: Attest:

City Clerk

Attorney’s Approval:
Approved, pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-
952(D), as being in proper form and 
within the powers and authority granted 
under the laws of this State.

Attorney’s Approval:
Approved, pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-
952(D), as being in proper form and 
within the powers and authority granted 
under the laws of this State.

City Attorney Attorney for the DISTRICT



Westwood 
Estates Fire 

District





  10. D.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: David Wessel, Metro Planning Org Manager

Co-Submitter: Di Ann Butkay, Buyer

Date: 08/24/2015

Meeting Date: 09/01/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Contract:  Roads & Streets Operations and Maintenance Efficiency
Study RFP 2015-70 (Approve contract with LA Consulting, Inc. in the amount of $197,769).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Award the contract for the Roads & Streets Operations and Maintenance Efficiency Study RFP
2015-70 to LA Consulting, Inc. of Manhattan Beach, CA in the amount of $197,769.  

Executive Summary:
The Road & Streets Operations and Maintenance Efficiency Study will provide a full evaluation and needs
assessment for these activities in the City and County Public Works Departments.  LA Consulting has
performed more than 80 such studies and has a track record of improving client productivity. 
Modernization of management systems will be implemented and areas for further cooperation between
the agencies explored.  Funding is provided through the Flagstaff Metropolitan Planning Organization. 
Contract management will be performed by the City Public Works Department.

Financial Impact:
The cost of the contract is $197,769. Funds are through a federal grant to the Flagstaff MPO. The
process will take approximately 17-months to complete because of the extensive field work and intensive
implementation regime.  The prospects for improved efficiency are unknown at this time.  Real-world
examples of saving hundreds of thousands of dollars annually and more exist resulting in a high
probability that the pay-back period on this investment will be short.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
3) Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services, and infrastructure systems in an efficient
and effective manner to serve all population areas and demographics
6) Relieve traffic congestion throughout Flagstaff
11) Ensure that we are as prepared as possible for extreme weather events

REGIONAL PLAN:
T.5.3 "...build and maintain [necessary pedestrian improvements]"
T.6.2 "Establish and maintain...bikeways and trails"
T.8.6 "Maintain the City's street infrastructure in a cost effective manner...



Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
The Council made no previous decision on this.  This is the first study of its kind for the City and County
Public Works Departments.

Options and Alternatives:
1.  Award the contract to LA Consulting, Inc. as recommended.
2.  Remand the project to the FMPO Executive Board for further consideration.  The City through the
Council acts as the fiscal agent for the FMPO.  The FMPO Executive Board set the work program and
authorized the expenditure.  The City could ask the Board to de-fund the project.  The City and County
Public Works Departments would continue business as usual or embark on internal efforts to improve
efficiency.  The FMPO funds would be de-obligated and programmed to different purposes.
3.  Remand the project to the selection committee for further consideration.  A team of seven individuals
considered proposals from six firms.  Two firms were interviewed.  A strong consensus in support of LA
Consulting, Inc. was reached. 

Background/History:
The FMPO is charged with monitoring the conditions of regional roads and streets as well as for
long-term capital transportation project planning.  Inherent to that charge is assuring that investment of
federal dollars in capital projects will be protected by appropriate upkeep. Roads and streets operations
and maintenance (O&M) is a significant expense for the City and County.    Because funding sources for
capital construction and maintenance are often the same and capital plans are to be fiscally constrained,
it is a necessity to understand the impacts of O&M expenses on the fiscal ability to deliver capital
projects.  Conversely, O&M needs are increased by additional lanes, new trails and new roads and traffic
signals as well as the increase in traffic created by growth.  The data needs between O&M and Capital
overlap significantly.

During the recession, the City and County saw large decreases in the Highway User Revenue Fund, the
state gas tax that is the traditional source of O&M funding.  In response, the City and County decreased
staff size, deferred vehicle replacement and, in some instances, decreased service.  The idea for this
study was born from these challenging circumstances:  How can we do more with less?

Simultaneously, the City and County explored new funding sources.  In November 2014 City and County
voters passed propositions 403 and 406 providing sales tax revenue for improving roads and streets and
O&M support.  This study was deferred until after that election and is now of value to ensure the public
trust is well met.

In April of 2015, the City's Purchasing Section conducted a Request for Proposals (RFP). There were a
total of six (6) proposal responses that were evaluated by a committee comprised of five (5) evaluators
who evaluated and scored each proposal according to the evaluation criteria outlined in the RFP
document. LA Consulting ended up being the highest scoring Proposer whose proposal was determined
to be the most advantageous to the City taking into consideration the evaluation criteria set forth in the
RFP document.

Key Considerations:
Meeting Public Expectations:  The City and County received a vote of public confidence to meet
the very real need of safe and well-maintained roads & streets.  Employing best practices within the
resources available will assure that trust is held.
Consultant Accountability/Return on Investment:  The contract is structured to allow agency review
after the needs assessment phase to determine if the consultant is performing as expected and that the
scale of the needs justify the investment in the implementation phase.
Prospect for Additional Expenses:  There are prospects for additional expenses in two arenas: 
Management Software Procurement and Implementation. The project schedule aligns with budget



calendars making consideration of additional funds more manageable and will have available an order of
magnitude benefit to be derived from those expenses.  The City and County both own Cartegraph that
can issue work orders and help organize and streamline management activities.  Both have stated a
strong preference that it be utilized. The needs assessment may indicate areas where Cartegraph is not
capable of serving the needs of one or both agencies.  In that case, the respective Public Works
departments may approach the Council (or Board of Supervisors) for the purchase of a new system or
module. LA Consulting does not advocate for or represent any particular management software.  The
introductory and needs assessment phases will cost approximately $60,000 leaving the bulk of the
contract for implementation. LA Consulting's success lies in a very hands-on approach to getting staff
engaged in using and responding to the new management systems.  Until the needs assessment is
complete, the size of this effort is unknown.  Further, the needs of the City versus the County may prove
to be very different.  The respective departments may desire focused attention on one or more areas at
additional expense.  In those cases, the will approach the Council (or Board) with a budget request.
Impacts on Staff Time:  The consultant will be relying on staff to provide financial and other data.  The
consultant will expect staff to be available for interviews and evaluation of field activities. LA Consulting's
schedule is comparatively long to account for observations over a variety of seasonal conditions and the
time it takes for busy staff to collect information.

Expanded Financial Considerations:
Management software, if needed, can cost more than $200,000.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The community will benefit from an efficient use of taxpayer dollars.  Assuming efficiencies are found,
they will benefit from improved levels of operations and maintenance service. Transparency will increase
as data and related reporting are more reliably produced.  This will also help in making budgeting,
staffing and procurement decisions as the likely effect of those investments can be more readily seen.

Community Involvement:
Inform - this is largely an internal effort.  However, performance targets and other matters will eventually
be discussed before Council and the public will generally be made aware of these efforts.

Attachments:  Contract
Evaluation Ranking Tabulation



1  

CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
Contract No. ________ 

 
This Contract is entered into this _____ day of __________, 20___ by and between the City of 
Flagstaff, a political subdivision of the State or Arizona (“City”), and __LA Consulting, Inc., 
(“Contractor"). 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Flagstaff desires to receive and Contractor is able to provide professional 
services; 
   
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration for the mutual promises contained herein, the City and 
Contractor (the “parties”) agree as follows: 
 
SERVICES 
 
1. Scope of Work:  Contractor shall provide the professional services generally described as 

follows: 
 

STREETS OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE STUDY 
 

and as more specifically described in the scope of work attached hereto as Exhibit A.   
 
2. Schedule of Services:  Contractor shall perform all work per the schedule set forth in Exhibit A.   
 
3. Standard Terms and Conditions: The City of Flagstaff Standard Terms and Conditions, 

attached hereto as Exhibit B are hereby incorporated by reference by reference and shall 
apply to performance of this Contract, except to the extent modified in Exhibit A.   

 
4. Key Personnel/Subcontractors:  Contractor’s Key Personnel, Subcontractors (if any), and 

contact information are designated in Exhibit A.  Key Personnel are those employees whose 
license number and signature will be placed on key documents and those employees who 
have significant responsibilities for completion of the services. The City Representative for this 
contract has the right to approve any proposed substitution of Key Personnel or 
Subcontractors. 

 
CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
5. City Representative:  The City Representative is _Michael O’Connor, Public Works Section 

Head or his/her designee.  All communications to the City shall be through the City 
Representative.  City Representative is responsible for bringing any request for a contract 
amendment or price adjustment to the attention of the City Buyer. 

 
6. City Cooperation:  City will cooperate with Contractor by placing at its disposal all available 

information concerning the City, City property, or the City project reasonably necessary for 
Contractor’s performance of this Contract. 

 
CONTRACT TERM 
 
7. Contract Term:  The Contract shall be effective as of the date signed by both parties. 

Performance shall commence within ten (10) days from the City’s issuance of the Notice to 
Proceed, and shall be completed on or before______________, 20___ consistent with the 
Schedule of Services.  



2  

 
8. Renewal: This Contract may be renewed for up to _Two (2)_ additional _One (1) year terms by 

mutual written consent of the parties. The City Manager or his designee (the Purchasing 
Director) shall have authority to approve renewal on behalf of the City. 

 
9. Termination:  This Contract may be terminated pursuant to the Standard Terms and 

Conditions attached hereto. 
 
PAYMENT 
 
10. Compensation:  Contractor shall be paid for satisfactory performance of the work, in 

accordance with the Compensation Schedule attached hereto as part of Exhibit A.   
 
11. Price Adjustment:  If price adjustments are permitted (see Exhibit A), any price adjustment 

must be approved by the City in writing as a formal Contract Amendment.  The City Council 
must approve the price adjustment if the annual contract price exceeds $50,000; otherwise the 
City Manager or his designee (the Purchasing Director) shall have authority to approve a price 
adjustment on behalf of the City. 

 
DATA AND RECORDS 
 
12. City Ownership of Document and Data:  Any original documents prepared or collected by 

Contractor in performance of this Contract such as models, samples, reports, test plans, 
survey results, graphics, tables, charts, plans, maps, specifications, surveys, computations 
and other data shall be the property of City (“City’s work product”), unless otherwise agreed by 
the parties in writing.  Contractor agrees that all materials prepared under this Contract are 
“works for hire” within the meaning of the copyright laws of the United States and hereby 
assigns to the City all rights and interests Contractor may have in the materials it prepares 
under this Contract, including any right to derivative use of the material.  

 
13. Re-Use.  City may use City’s work product without further compensation to Contractor; 

provided, however, City’s reuse without written verification or adaption by Contractor for 
purposes other than contemplated herein is at City’s sole risk and without liability to 
Contractor.  Contractor shall not engage in any conflict of interest nor appropriate any portion 
of City’s work product for the benefit of Contractor or any third parties without City’s prior 
written consent. 

 
14. Delivery of Document and Data:  Upon termination of this Contract in whole or part, or upon 

expiration if not previously terminated, Contractor shall immediately deliver to City copies all of 
City’s work product and any other documents and data accumulated by Contractor in 
performance of this Contract, whether complete or in process.   

 
INSURANCE 
 
15. Insurance:  Contractor shall meet insurance requirements of the City, set forth in Exhibit C.  
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 
16. Notice:  Any notice concerning this Contract shall be in writing and sent by certified mail and 

email as follows: 



3  

 
 

To the City: 
 

To Contractor: 

 
Di Ann Butkay, Buyer 
City of Flagstaff 
211 W.  Aspen 
Flagstaff, Arizona  86001 
dbutkay@flagstaffaz.gov 

 

 
With a copy to: 
 
David Wessel, Manager FMPO 
 

 
With a copy to: 

 
 
17. Authority.  Each party warrants that it has authority to enter into this Contract and perform its 

obligations hereunder, and that it has taken all actions necessary to enter into this Contract. 
 

CONTRACTOR 
 
____________________________________ 
 
Print name:___________________________ 
 
Title:________________________________ 
 
 
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
 
____________________________________ 
 
Print name:___________________________ 
 
Title:________________________________ 
 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
____________________________________ 
City Attorney’s Office 

 
Notice to Proceed issued:__________________, 20___ 



4  

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 
 
SCOPE OF WORK   

 
The following work plan includes some initial ideas that demonstrate our understanding of a 
systematic approach that could work for the City and the County. 

 
STUDY APPROACH 
Successful completion of this comprehensive Maintenance Operations Review is dependent on 
successful interaction and participation between LAC and the City/County personnel, as well as 
LAC’s background and experience. The work plan has been developed to ensure effective and 
interactive communication – leading to a comprehensive result that reflects the true needs for 
both the City and County streets and road maintenance and operations. The City/County has 
outlined three desired deliverables as a result of the project in four Phases. Our scope has been 
developed to provide the City/County with these desired deliverables. The first deliverable is to 
have a project initiation and then to review the City/County’s maintenance operations for 
effectiveness and efficiency opportunities. This will be accomplished in Phase I and II. This 
deliverable will include providing a written project report which details the findings and 
recommendations with a cost analysis to the consultant recommendations. The second 
deliverable in the optional Phase III is assisting the City/County to select the best system to be 
used as a tool to manage their operations in adherence with recommendation from the first 
deliverable. It is assumed, for costing, that the existing systems in the City/County will be 
adequate. The third deliverable in Phase IV is to implement a Maintenance and Asset 
Management System (MMS) to meet the identified opportunities and to provide support in 
implementing the selected system. This deliverable includes the actual implementation of Phase 
II recommendations using the configured software from Phase III. The detail on how LAC will 
address each of the areas of the scope is outlined in detail in the following Phases/Tasks. 

 
Phase I Project Initiation 
The following tasks are intended to familiarize the City/County staff with the approach that LAC 
will take to evaluate and improve efficiency within each of the agencies. The tasks will also 
serve to educate LAC on the work processes and features found in the City/County. 

 
Task 1-1 – Project Startup 
LAC team will develop planning efforts associated with the project. LA Consulting (LAC) will 
initiate the project immediately after the contract is signed. LAC staff will conduct initial 
meetings with the Road Superintendent(s) and the Director of Public Works, as well as with 
managers within each agency to review the City/County’s objectives and their perception of the 
approach to the work methods and procedures that are needed to compile and analyze 
maintenance information. 

 
Structured interviews will also be conducted with other key employees including maintenance 
supervisors and various other staff that have a major impact on the control and directing of 
maintenance. Further, overview site visits will occur on general work performed and assets. The 
objective of these sessions is to develop working relationships with key staff and a general 



5  

understanding of each of the objectives. Meetings will be held to further refine our approach, 
work plan, and methodology to effectively accommodate the specific needs and desires. 
End Product: Key City/County staff will be consulted and concepts for improvements and 
enhancements will be prepared. A list of information requested will be provided. 
Task 1-2 – Prepare a Detailed Work Plan 
Based on our observations and discussions in the initial task, LAC will prepare a 
detailed schedule and work plan. 
End Product: A detailed schedule will be prepared. 

 
Task 1-3 – Establish a Review Committee 
A Review Committee will be established with a group, comprised of management staff of 
various personnel, who shall be updated at major milestones and will provide direction to 
LAC. The Committee members will develop a firsthand understanding of the study 
developments as they are documented and presented. This method will promote a sound 
understanding of the analysis process and ensure the credibility of the findings and 
recommendations of LAC. 
End Product: A Committee and study coordinator appointed for the study. 

 
Task 1-4 – Conduct Orientation 
LAC will describe in detail our proposed approach, our schedule, and identify any 
potential problems. In addition, a review of a systematic approach will be given to all 
Committee 
members along with what data will be researched and compiled, and the results and benefits that 
can be expected from the efficiency study. In addition, the participants will identify contacts 
that will assist in compiling the data. Finally, a series of two meetings will be conducted with 
key City/County operational personnel outlining the process being planned. 
End Product: A uniform understanding between staff participating and LAC. 

 
Phase II Management review 
Task 2-1 – Data Collection and Field Review 
LAC will begin interviewing staff and collecting data on all aspects of current operations 
with specific attention to collecting baseline information for the three areas outlined in the 
scope 
including Preventive, Routine, and Operations issues. In addition, LAC will review work history 
and activities performed to get a greater understanding of each operation. This will be done in 
a series of sub-tasks described below. 

 
Task 2-1.1 – Activity Analysis (City/County performs -- LAC analyzes) 
A general listing of the types of activities conducted in each agency will be determined. These 
may include such activities as pothole repair, AC dig out, lane striping and sign installation. 
Attempts will be made to generally estimate the amount of effort made in each activity. Rather 
than cover all activities, an effort will be made to utilize principals, such as Pareto's law, that 
allows a focus by estimating that approximately 20% of maintenance activities comprise of 
80% of the work. It is anticipated that between 25 and 35 activities will be identified for each 
agency. 

 



6  

In this activity process, an inventory item that best describes the potential workload over the life 
of the asset will be identified. Examples would be, square feet of pavement repaired, number of 
signs installed, and miles of roadway striped. These lists would then be compiled for a 
composite list of activities and their units of measure. An example of this is shown below: 
Activity Measurement Unit 
Pothole Repairs Tons 
Signs installed Each 
End Product: Activity list with units of measure would be identified and documented. 

Task 2-1.2 – Work History (City/County performs -- LAC analyzes) 
A compilation of work performed by major activity will be made for a multi-year basis. This can 
be done through a review of daily work reports, work orders, or use of any existing reporting 
systems, estimates of material used, and field observations of the existing operation. The data 
compiled will be person-days of work annually by activity along with work units accomplished. 
Examples for a fiscal year would be: pavement marking refreshment for 24 days in which 3,000 
sf feet was painted. 
End Product: A history of maintenance compiled. 

 
Task 2-1.3 – Features Inventory and Asset Collection (City/County performs -- LAC analyzes) 
LAC will estimate the inventories of infrastructure (signs, culverts, pavement, etc.) features that 
relate to work being performed. Existing files, information from agency staff, and observations 
will be used to determine initial values. The City/County will assist in the actual research. 
End Product: An estimate of infrastructure features made and placed into a database. 

 
Task 2-1.4 – Customer Service Practices (City/County performs -- LAC analyzes) 
LAC will review the practices for each shop for customer service. Specifically, LAC will review 
customer service processes, response time, complaint handling and tracking, communication 
protocol and procedures for prioritizing work. 
End Product: Customer engagement work practices identified. 

 
Task 2-1.5 – Resource, Organizational and Staffing (City/County performs -- LAC analyzes) 
LAC will request org charts and a listing by general category for labor, equipment and material 
resources. LAC will review the organizational structure, reporting relationships and span of 
control in each agency. Existing personnel and equipment files, information of maintenance 
staff, and field and office observations will be used. If not available, unit costs will be estimated. 
LAC will make an estimate of avoidable overhead that could be applied to labor costs. 
End Product: Organizational, Staffing and Resources data will be collected. 

 
Task 2-1.6 – Budget and Financial Resource Data (City/County performs -- LAC analyzes) The 
existing systems and City/County website locations will be identified, along with past budgetary 
information, and will be used to collect the financial data. LAC will obtain all data on current 
budgeting and financing procedures so that fee structures can be established in workloads and 
compiled from a combination of material records, time sheets, field estimates and historical 
estimates. This would include budgeted dollars for each agency and those actually spent. 
End Product: Workload and financial data will be captured. 

 
Task 2-1.7 – Competitive Assessment (City/County performs –LAC analyzes) 



7  

LAC will map the business process and methodology, for each of the agencies, and utilize the 
information for determining which work to perform in-house vs. by contract. The complete 
contracting support effort will be compiled including contract, the methodology used, and 
analysis applied to select a vendor, cost, work units, and contractual scope with quality and 
quantity measurements. Using LAC database and I nter natio nal City/C o unt y Man ag e ment 
A s soci ation ( ICMA), American Public Works Association (APWA) and North American Fleet 
Association (NAFA) benchmarks, data will be compared to City/County data. 
End Product: Methodology for contracting determined and a contracts list compiled. 
Task 2-1.8 – Inventory Control and Management (City/County performs -- LAC analyzes) LAC 
will review inventory control management processes and document. The location of warehouse 
(s) will be defined along with the process for reordering parts, and control procedures. End 
Product: Existing processes documented and a complete inventory compiled. 

 
Task 2-1.9 – Equipment Fleet History (City/County performs -- LAC analyzes) 
LAC will utilize their database to make estimates of equipment needs and utilization for the 
major Agency Operations activities being performed. These values will be compared to actual 
numbers of equipment available. Also, histories from the equipment shop will be evaluated to 
ascertain general downtimes and operating costs. These values will be compared between other 
agencies and industry standards data. In performing this analysis, an effort will be made to 
determine costs borne by equipment resources used by each agency’s staff. Additionally, we will 
explore the use and/or feasibility of sharing equipment resources with other organizations, 
contracting equipment and the procedures used to maintain equipment. 
End Product: An estimate of equipment units available and unit costs. 

 
Task 2-1.10 – Technology Review 
LAC will review the City/County’s current databases, existing software platforms, and 
associated data models for all infrastructure and system operations as they relate to various 
maintenance functions. Technology from wireless applications, GIS, and GPS to web enabled 
capabilities will be outlined. LAC will look at the various inputs and outputs and develop an 
understanding of how the existing data is processed. A general logic flow will be developed that 
will outline the process. Interviews will occur with the IT Manager(s) and database managers. 
End Product: List of current databases and technology utilized by each agency. 

 
Task 2-1.11 – Policies and Goals (City/County performs -- LAC analyzes) 
An analysis of current policies established by the City/County will be conducted and impacts on 
operations will be determined. The City/County’s documented vision, mission and strategic 
goals will be reviewed versus actual employee’s direction and core competencies. 
End Product: A review of City policies and direction. 

 
Task 2-1.12 – Management Approach and Preparation of a Baseline Paper 
These existing work processes will be documented in a short summary and the areas of the basic 
management processes of planning; organizing, scheduling, and controlling that are in need of 
improvement and enhancement will be identified.  LAC will flowchart how work is identified, 
planned, organized, scheduled and performed. All reporting information will also be 
documented. Both the proactive and responsive maintenance will be identified. LAC will outline 
precise workflows for each agency including data and automated system approaches. This will 



8  

be documented in a concise 20-25 page working paper and distributed to the Committee. Further, 
LAC will present baseline information to all key employees for their input. 
End Product: Interview and define basic existing management processes and document 
information in a concise baseline working paper for each agency. 

 
Task 2-2 – Evaluate Opportunities/Findings 
The LAC team will use collected information and past experience to evaluate opportunities 
where improvements can occur. LAC will use a combination of observations, LAC data and 
other benchmarks to evaluate the operations. The following subtasks will be performed. 

 
Task 2-2.1 – Work Flow Analysis 
The ideal workflow will be compared to the actual processes. Any differences will be identified. 
Also, opportunities to streamline or eliminate unnecessary steps will be identified. 

 
Task 2-2.2 – Work Method 
A sample of several key activities would be observed by LAC in the field and equipment, 
method, quality of work and productivity will be noted. From previous consultant’s experience, 
discussions with staff and other agency data, comparisons and opportunities for improvement 
will be identified. Employees and their work products will be observed by LAC in the field as 
required to understand work methods and their impacts on overall operations. 

 
Task 2-2.3 – Organization Evaluation 
Information collected in previous tasks will be stored in an internal database. LAC, using 
estimated frequencies or levels of service, will then estimate workload and resources needed to 
meet this level of service. These labor and equipment resources would be compared to the 
current operation resources. LAC’s work model would then estimate the staffing that matches the 
desired service levels and related workload and compare to other agencies by work function 

 
Task 2-2.4 – Workload and Budget Evaluation 
Using the working paper information from previous tasks and discussion with maintenance staff, 
the procedures used by the County to develop annual maintenance budgets will be examined. 
This review will focus on the relationship of funding to workload. 

 
Task 2-2.5 – Competitive Assessment and Macroscopic Benchmarking 
LAC will compare a group of comparable agency performance parameters, from no less than 
three (3) agencies to those of the City/County. Comparable agencies throughout the US and 
various agencies within the State would be compared on such items as crew size and average 
daily production for agency functions. Any areas of opportunity for improvement would be 
identified. In addition, where information is available, LAC will compare industry costs in the 
private sector and municipal government sectors and determine if there are opportunities to 
contract work or perform work in-house. 

 
Task 2-2.6 – Equipment Management Evaluation 
LAC will evaluate fleet usage using information collected and determine fleet rates, compare 
staff per equipment compared to other agencies, and the pros and cons of leasing versus 
purchasing equipment. Further, LAC will look at the utilization of the equipment within each 
group and make estimates of the hourly equipment rates by classification to determine if there is 



9  

low use or high maintenance cost for the pieces of equipment. NAFA and APWA benchmarks 
will be used for evaluations along with LAC observations. LAC will also review material 
inventory control management and personnel used for managing fleet parts. Finally, LAC will 
evaluate the vehicle replacement plan and fund to determine if it is adequate to meet the future 
needs of the City/County. 
Task 2-2.7 – Technology Evaluation 
A comparison of the existing City/County’s Operations will be made with desired goals for 
technology and management systems. Areas not covered or lacking from desired outcomes will 
be documented. An outline of the City/County’s current system with functions that are 
operational and any efforts needed to meet desired goals will be prepared. This task involves the 
review of the system requirements and evaluating various software systems, database options 
and existing capabilities. This task will be used to outline the appropriate system alternatives for 
the County. The potential capabilities of the various systems will be outlined by LAC showing 
how each agencies existing and desired goals can be successfully met. 
End Product: A compilation of findings and opportunities to improve operations. 

 
Task 2-3 – Document and Present Findings 
The findings of this first phase will be compiled and documented by LAC during this task and 
presented to the Committee and general staff for review and further discussion. Further, LAC 
will present initial findings in a series of three (3) meetings to all relevant employees for their 
input.  After that presentation, the information will be assembled into a working paper submitted 
to the Committee for their comments. 
End Product: A working paper that documents the findings (20-25 pages). 

 
Task 2-4 – Document and Present Recommendations 
After comments from the Committee, the findings and related baseline information will be used 
to outline a series of recommendations. LAC will present initial recommendations to both the 
Committee and to all agency employees in a series of three (3) meetings for their input. After the 
recommendation presentation, the information will be assembled into a working paper submitted 
to the Committee for their comments. 
End Product: A working paper for the City/County that documents the recommendations (15- 
20 pages). 

 
Task 2-5 – Document Results 
The report will be finalized after meeting with City/County staff and getting final input. The 
reports will include explicit recommendations that when implemented will generate more 
effective and efficient operations. The benefits and cost will be estimated. The focus will be on 
developing a “play book” that will allow for the City/County to be the most effective. 
End Product: A final written report that documents the baseline operations, findings and 
recommendations will be submitted. 

 
Phase III Maintenance Management System Software and Hardware (Optional) 
This optional phase encompasses work tasks (with 8 associated sub tasks). A description of each 
work task follows. These descriptions include the processes, methods and procedures to be used, 
as well as the expected end product. This will be exercised only if Phase 2’s final report outlines 
enough value to justify changing from the current systems to another one. These tasks may not 
be needed if the current system(s) enable the City/County to achieve their goals identified. 



10  

 
Task 3-1 Draft RFP, Assist in Select of New CMMS 
Efforts will include work to draft the request for proposal (RFP), assisting in the selection 
process of the Computerized Maintenance Management System (CMMS). Efforts will also 
include integration and linkage of all current systems, fully implementing necessary critical 
management tools and functionality of the CMMS. Work will include the ability to use the 
system at all levels for work-planning and managing, which includes the ability to plan, cost, 
monitor and improve. Either the latest version of current CMMS system or a new system will be 
used through a competitive process. This includes four subtasks. 

• Task 3-1.1 – Prepare Draft Software RFP to Meet Goals 
• Task 3-1.2 – Provide Technical Support and Guide in Selection Process 
• Task 3-1.3– Participate In Software Demonstrations 
• Task 3-1.4 –Provide Technical Support to Select Software 

End Product: System selected that matches City/County’s needs. 
 

 
Task 3-2 -Selection of CMMS Modules 
This effort will include facilitation of effort in selecting modules, support for installing, the 
configuration of the system, and training of staff to use the systems. Evaluation of current 
CMMS modules, identifying proper “module grouping” for each groups and needs will also 
occur. Coordination with IT to ensure maximum hardware and current technology configurations 
do not impede functionality and speed is important. 

• Task 3-2.1– Select Software Modules 
• Task 3-2.2– Install Software 
• Task 3-2.3– Configuration Of Software 
• Task 3-2.4– Software System Training Support 

End product: Provide backup training, coaching and configuration support as necessary. 
 

 
Phase IV Operations Process Development /Implementation 
This implementation plan from Phase II provides a “playbook” for actual implementation of the 
recommendations. Further, the implementation will occur in the selected program ( or using 
existing system) that is populated and configured in Phase III. The type of recommendations 
from Phase II is unknown at this time and only basic functional tasks for implementation are 
included in this Phase. If other recommendations are outlined and support of LAC is desired, 
then that effort will have to be negotiated at that time. Much of the effort will focus on full 
implementation of the selected or existing CMMS software for work planning, organizing, 
scheduling and controlling. 

 
Task 4-1 – Initiate Implementation 
General orientation meetings are planned at the start of the project, in order to familiarize 
participants with the general approach of both software and system implementation. The project 
initiation effort will have a project startup; preparation of a detailed schedule; reengagement of a 
Management Working Committee (MWC); outline and establishment of a Working Committee 
(WC); and conducting an Orientation. Two (2) meetings are anticipated to complete this effort. 
End Product: Complete City/County exposure to the planned implementation. 

 
Task 4-2 – Define And/or Revise Work Activity List 



11  

A list of the significant maintenance work activities performed by each group will be refined, 
prepared and entered into a database. This list will include a description of the work activity, a 
unit of measure to calculate the work accomplished, and a physical feature inventory on which 
the work is performed.  An example is for Pothole repair… “Repair of roadway surface to ensure 
the integrity and usability of the pavement system and to maintain overall structure” with a 
measurement unit of each or tons. 
End Product: A list of all work activities by group with a description and measurement unit. 

 
Task 4-3 – Inventory Guidance of Physical Features 
An inventory listing and database of all physical features in the infrastructure network will be 
prepared by the City/County’s project manager in the format required and guided by LAC. This 
listing will include the type, quantity and location of features for each infrastructure type (signs, 
storm drains, pavement, ditches etc.) Existing data files will be used to compile an existing 
database of features. Existing data files may be limited and some inventories will have to be 
compiled by City/County forces. 
End Product: A complete inventory and database of key physical features of infrastructure 
will be established. 

 
Task 4-4– Determine Maintenance Service Levels 
LAC will facilitate the establishment of the maintenance service levels required for each defined 
activity, and the quantity and frequency of work expected to be accomplished on an annual basis, 
per inventory unit. This will include the determination of the desired service level needed to 
maintain a feature element and a funded service level documenting the service level appropriate 
to funding constraints. For example; pavement marking enhancement will be performed annually 
and a pipe culvert will be inspected twice a year. Four (4) meetings are estimated. 
End Product: Desired and funded service levels for each activity will be determined. 

 
Task 4-5 – Establish Routine and PM Programs 
LAC will work with the MWC and WCs to establish PM routines for several major activities. 
LAC will work to outline maintenance routines for activities that exist, such as sign inspection. It 
is anticipated that LAC will establish three routines and guide City/County staff to do the 
remainder. 
End Product: Routines will be established for key maintenance activities. 

 
Task 4-6 – Define Work Methods and Guidelines 
The most efficient work methods will be reviewed or developed for each activity and the purpose 
of this will be to determine the logical sequence of steps to be followed while performing the 
activity along with resources and estimated productivity. The most efficient approach to each 
activity will be identified by utilizing the consultant project team's experience with similar 
agencies throughout the United States. This process will be further enhanced by using the 
experience of City/County staff. The best management practices will be established for all 
activities with an additional focus on key activities and some new ones that are relevant. This 
effort will include a detailed review of up to three major activities per group where direct cost, 
productivity and method comparisons can be made. We anticipate 4 meetings. 
End Product: An activity guideline for each activity with specific work methods. 

 
Task 4-7 – Develop Equipment Rates and Populate Database 



12  

LAC, with Fleet assistance, will develop hourly rates for all equipment that includes all costs. A 
listing by vehicle will be prepared with rates and classifications. A separate FEMA rate will also 
be compiled by general vehicle classification. The two rates will be identified for each piece of 
equipment. Two (2) meetings are anticipated. 
End Product: Produce a working paper outlining equipment rates. 

 
Task 4-8 – Assist Department in Developing both Avoidable and Full Overhead Rates 
LAC will work with Finance staff to determine two overheads that reflect the City/County’s 
actual cost of performing work. One will be an avoidable overhead cost and another will be a full 
overhead cost that would be developed for use in external billing and reimbursement. A 
presentation of final overheads will be presented to the MWC. Two (2) meetings are anticipated. 
End Product: Assist to establish and document overhead rates and an update process. 

 
Task 4-9 – Develop Performance-Based Work Program and Budget 
After the activities, inventories, and work calendar have been established, a performance-based 
work program and budget will be prepared, and a balance between desired service levels and 
available funds will be developed. A system will be established with the ability to compile 
summaries of plans. The plan will have the capabilities to project effort for various special events 
with activities and service levels established. Further, the plan will be used to estimate all work 
to be done for the year including all after hours and overtime effort. Three (3) meetings are 
anticipated. 
End Product: Annual work program and budget for each activity. 

 
Task 4-10– Determine Resource Requirements 
After the initial work program and budget are determined, the annual labor, equipment and 
material needs for each organization unit will be identified by LAC. 
End Product: A list of required resources by organization. 

 
Task 4-11 – Work Calendar 
A work breakdown by activity by month will be done. This will allow for work to be scheduled 
on a proactive basis. Routines, work history and desire of work will be used to allocate 
determined work. Three (3) meetings are anticipated. 
End Product: Work calendar by month by activity for each management unit. 

 
Task 4-12 – Implement a Work Request System (optional) 
This task will be done only if a new CMMS is chosen and will not be done if the current 
system(s) are accepted as the appropriate tool. LAC will implement the work request process for 
all groups utilizing the selected system. LAC will work with the vendor to make the best of 
selected software to match customer needs and provide a tool for scheduling. A series of three 
(3) training sessions will be performed. 
End Product: Implementation of an automated Service Request System. 

 
Task 4-13 – Establish Work Scheduling Procedures 
LAC will work with employees and supervisors to establish short term work scheduling 
procedures. A process for the identification, assignment and allocation of resources and 
estimation of time required to complete the various activities will be determined. The scheduling 
procedures will be presented and taught by LAC to the appropriate personnel. LAC will monitor 



13  

and direct this procedure during the first two months of implementation to ensure compliance 
and allow for fine tuning of all processes involved. Three (3) meetings are anticipated. 
End Product: Development of a bi-weekly scheduling system. 

 
Task 4-14 – Establish Work Reporting Procedures 
LAC will establish and implement routine work reporting procedures to properly obtain CMMS 
data for all groups. The work reporting procedures will be presented and taught to the 
appropriate personnel and monitored during the first four months of implementation to ensure 
compliance. The completed daily work reports will be entered to allow comparisons of planned 
and actual values as well as costing of work. Three (3) meetings/training sessions are anticipated. 
End Product: Standardized work reporting system established. 

 
Task 4-15 – Develop Work Control and Monitoring Processes 
LAC will develop and document work control and monitoring processes that will provide 
answers to the various questions. The CMMS system will have standard reports that allow for 
complete evaluation of the work planned versus actual effort given. Standardized reports will be 
generated for various staff to use, which will depict labor, equipment, contracts and material by 
location and activity. Additional reports may be established with vendor assistance. 
End Product: Process for monitoring and controlling work. 

 
Task 4-16 – Develop System Documentation (optional) 
This task will be done only if a new CMMS is chosen and will not be done in current system(s) 
are accepted as the appropriate tool. A series of documents outlining the system and management 
processes will be developed as a reference and guide for applying the developed system. The 
manuals will be included to document the various procedures and processes required for 
operating and administering the maintenance system: Operations Manual and Computer User 
Manual. The software vendor selected will provide copies that will outline how to enter and 
modify data; produce the various reports, and a general description of how to operate the 
software. 
End Product: Documentation of the maintenance system. 

 
Task 4-17 – Overall CMMS System Training and Administration (Optional) 
This task will be done only if a new CMMS is chosen and will not be done in current system(s) 
are accepted as the appropriate tool. City/County managers, department managers and 
supervisors will be trained in all aspects of the CMMS.  A series of training sessions (3) will be 
conducted. 
End Product: All staff trained in CMMS system use. 

 
Task 4-18– Conduct Implementation Training 
LAC will conduct a series of training sessions at four different intervals during the process. 
These will include use of the CMMS for formulation of the annual plan, organization of 
resources, and scheduling and controlling maintenance. The sessions will include both general 
management training and actual implementation direction. The final training session will detail 
the use of computer operations in the maintenance system. Staff will be trained on the entry of 
work data, production of reports, system parameters and database update. 
End Product: Implementation training sessions. 



14  

 
Task 4-19 – Report Interpretation Training 
LAC will train staff in the use of CMMS reports to adjust operations in order to become more 
effective and efficient in the use of maintenance resources, to monitor adherence to the annual 
plan, and to identify problems in productivity and work methods. This effort would be provided 
in order to allow staff the opportunity to use data to make the necessary decisions to improve 
operations. Two (2) meetings are anticipated. 
End Product: Training on report interpretation and customization. 

 
Task 4-20– Final Evaluation and Report 
A final summary (3-5 pages) report will be prepared after implementation of the system with the 
overall impact of the effort. This report will document all data collected, results of actions, future 
steps required to maintain the CMMS system, documented improvements after implementation, 
and any recommendations for future improvements in operations. 
End Product: Final evaluation and report. 

 
Task 4-21– Monthly Status and Quality Control 
Monthly status reports will be prepared for the City/County. These reports will include a listing 
of all the project tasks with a summary status and a percent complete for each task. 
End Product: A monthly status report will be provided, along with telephone support. 

 
 PROPOSED SCHEDULE   

 
LAC estimates a 17 month work schedule to complete the task outlined below. Note the shaded 
blue area is the section of the optional software selection and contract which is totally controlled 
by the procurement process so the schedule is dependent on that process. LAC estimated 4 
months, but often agencies can take much longer. Also, there are several tasks shown as optional 
in yellow, which may be done with City/County resources or not warranted to be done. 

 

 



 

Restrictions: LAC’s successful process outlined in our scope, along with our experience in various 
projects, is based on considerable employee involvement to meet the rigorous seventeen month 
schedule, and the following must occur: 

 
 

•  Project Coordinator, with City/County background, for the entire project established. 
•  Staff must be made available for interviews. 
•  Assistance provided to schedule meetings, presentation locations, yards, etc. 
•  Key staff must attend all relevant meetings. 
•  Documents requested must be produced within ten working days of request. 
•  Provide data in electronic formats to expedite the process. 
•  The LAC documents must be reviewed by the City/County each in 10 working days. 
•  Provide relevant input with corresponding support data for working papers. 
•  Staff must be available for meetings and follow-up within a week’s notice. 

 
 PROPOSED COMPENSATION   

 
The total estimated cost of the four phases is $197,769 and is shown below. Many of the tasks that 
are thought by LAC to be needed but are depend on completion of the Phase II recommendations 
and those accepted by the City/County. 

 

 
 

Phase I, project initiation effort, is estimated at $16,025. Phase II is a complete management review 
at $57,845. Phase III is optional and is the management system software selection and configuration 
which may not be needed and depends on Phase II’s recommendations. Phase IV is the 
implementation of recommendations from Phase II with software from Phase III and is estimated at 
$123,899. Note serval tasks indicated in yellow may be needed if new software is decided to be 
needed and process done to select it. It is assumed the current system is adequate. 

 
LAC is comfortable with lump-sum costing on our projects because of our experience in this type of 
effort and knowledge of the area. However, without knowing the software to be used and the exact 
recommendations made from Phase II accepted by City/County, the cost in Phase IV is only an 
estimate. 

 
 



 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
 
IN GENERAL 
 
1. NOTICE TO PROCEED:   Contractor shall not commence performance until after City has issued 

a Notice to Proceed. 
 
2. LICENSES AND PERMITS:  Contractor its expense shall maintain current federal, state, and 

local licenses, permits and approvals required for performance of the Contract, and provide 
copies to City upon request. 

 
3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 

laws, regulations, standards, codes and ordinances in performance of this Contract. 
 
4. NON-EXCLUSIVE:  Unless expressly provided otherwise in the Contract, this Contract is non-

exclusive and the City reserves the right to contract with others for materials or services.  
 
5. SAMPLES:  Any sample submitted to the City by the Contractor and relied upon by City as 

representative of quality and conformity, shall constitute an express warranty that all materials 
and/or service to be provided to City shall be of the same quality and conformity. 

   
MATERIALS 
 
6. PURCHASE ORDERS:  The City will issue a purchase order for the materials covered by the 

Contract, and such order will reference the Contract number. 
 
7. QUALITY:  Contractor warrants that all materials supplied under this Contract will be new and 

free from defects in material or workmanship.  The materials will conform to any statements made 
on the containers or labels or advertisements for the materials, and will be safe and appropriate 
for use as normally used.  City’s inspection, testing, acceptance or use of materials shall not serve 
to waive these quality requirements.  This warranty shall survive termination or expiration of the 
Contract. 

 
8. ACCEPTANCE:  All materials and services provided by Contract are subject to final inspection 

and acceptance by the City.  Materials and services failing to conform to the Contract 
specifications may be rejected in whole or part.  If rejected, Contractor is responsible for all costs 
associated arising from rejection.  

 
9. MANUFACTURER’S WARRANTIES:  Contractor shall deliver all Manufacturer’s Warranties to 

City upon City’s acceptance of the materials. 
 
10. PACKING AND SHIPPING:  Contractor shall be responsible for industry standard packing which 

conforms to requirements of carrier’s tariff and ICC regulations.  Containers shall be clearly 
marked as to lot number, destination, address and purchase order number.  All shipments shall 



 

be F.O.B.  Destination, City of Flagstaff, 211 West Aspen Avenue, Flagstaff, Arizona 86001, 
unless otherwise specified by the City.  C.O.D.  shipments will not be accepted. 

 
11. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS:  The title and risk of loss of material shall not pass to the City until 

the City actually receives the material at the point of delivery, and the City has completed 
inspection and has accepted the material, unless the City has expressly provided otherwise in the 
Contract. 

 
12. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER:  Every tender of materials shall fully comply with 

all provisions of the Contract.  If a tender is made which does not fully conform, this shall 
constitute a breach and Contractor shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender 
without prior written approval from the City. 

 
13. DEFAULT IN ONE INSTALLMENT TO CONSTITUTE TOTAL BREACH:  Contractor and may 

not substitute nonconforming materials, or services.  Delivery of nonconforming materials, and/or 
services, or a default of any nature, at the option of the City, shall constitute shall deliver 
conforming materials, or services, in each installment or lot of the contract a breach of the 
contract as a whole. 

 
14. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED:  Contractor is not authorized to ship 

materials under reservation and no tender of a bill of lading shall operate as a tender of the 
materials. 

 
15. LIENS:  All materials and other deliverables supplied to the City shall be free of all liens other 

than the security interest held by Contractor until payment in full is made by the City.  Upon 
request of the City, Contractor shall provide a formal release of all liens. 

 
16. CHANGES IN ORDERS:  The City reserves the right at any time to make changes in any one or 

more of the following:  (a) methods of shipment or packing; (b) place of delivery; and (c) 
quantities.  If any change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of or the time required for 
performance, an equitable adjustment may be made in the price or delivery schedule, or both.  
Any claim for adjustment shall be evidenced in writing and approved by the City Purchasing 
Director prior to the institution of the change. 

 
PAYMENT 
 
17. INVOICES: A separate invoice shall be issued for each shipment and each job completed.  

Invoices shall include the Contract and/or Purchase Order number, and dates when goods were 
shipped or work performed.  Invoices shall be sent within 30 days following performance.  
Payment will only be made for satisfactory materials and/or services received and accepted by 
City. 

 
18. LATE INVOICES:  The City may deduct up to 10% of the payment price for late invoices.  The 

City operates on a fiscal year budget, from July 1 through the following June 30.  Except in 
unusual circumstances, which are not due to the fault of Contractor, City will not honor any 
invoices or claims submitted after August 15 for materials or services supplied in the prior fiscal 
year.  

 
19. TAXES:  Contractor shall be responsible for payment of all taxes including federal, state, and 

local taxes related to or arising out of Contractor’s performance of this Contract. Such taxes 
include but are not limited to federal and state income tax, social security tax, unemployment 



 

insurance taxes, transaction privilege taxes, use taxes, and any other taxes or business license 
fees as required.   

 
 Exception:  The City will pay any taxes which are specifically identified as a line item dollar 

amount in the Contractor’s bid, proposal, or quote, and which were considered and approved by 
the City as part of the Contract award process.  In this event, taxes shall be identified as a 
separate line item in Contractor’s invoices. 

 
20. FEDERAL EXCISE TAXES:  The City is exempt from paying certain Federal Excise Taxes and 

will furnish an exemption certificate upon request. 
 
21. FUEL CHARGES:  Contractor at its own expense is liable for all fuel costs related to 

performance. No fuel surcharges will be accepted or paid by City. 
 
22. DISCOUNTS:  If the Contract provides for payment discounts, payment discounts will be 

computed from the later date of the following: (a) when correct invoice is received by the City; or 
(b) when acceptable materials and/or materials were received by City.   

 
23. AMOUNTS DUE TO THE CITY:  Contractor must be current and remain current in all obligations 

due to the City during performance. Payments to Contractor may be offset by any delinquent 
amounts due to City or fees and charges owed to City under this Contract. 

 
24. OFAC:  No City payments may be made to any person in violation of Office of Foreign Assets 

Control regulations, 31 C.F.R. Part 501.  
 
SERVICES 
 
25. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  Contractor shall be an independent contractor for purposes of 

all laws, including but not limited to the Fair Labor Standards Act, Federal Insurance Contribution 
Act, Social Security Act, Federal Unemployment Tax Act, Internal Revenue Code, Immigration 
and Naturalization Act; Arizona revenue and taxation, workers’ compensation, and unemployment 
insurance laws. 

26. CONTROL:   Contractor shall be responsible for the control of the work. 

27. WORK SITE:  Contractor shall inspect the work site and notify the City in writing of any 
deficiencies or needs prior to commencing work. 

28. SAFEGUARDING PROPERTY:  Contractor shall responsible for any damage to real property of 
the City or adjacent property in performance of the work and safeguard the worksite. 

29. QUALITY:  All work shall be of good quality and free of defects, performed in a diligent and 
professional manner. 

30. ACCEPTANCE:  If work is rejected by the City due to noncompliance with the Contract, The City, 
after notifying Contractor in writing, may require Contractor to correct the deficiencies at 
Contractor’s expense, or cancel the work order and pay Contractor only for work properly 
performed. 

31. WARRANTY:  Contractor warrants all work for a period of one (1) year following final acceptance 
by the City.  Upon receipt of written notice from the City, Contractor at its own expense shall 
promptly correct work rejected as defective or as failing to conform to the Contract, whether 
observed before or after acceptance, and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed by 
Contractor, and shall bear all costs of correction.  If Contractor does not correct deficiencies within 



 

a reasonable time specified in the written notice from the City, the City may perform the work and 
Contractor shall be liable for the costs. This one-year warranty is in addition to, and does not limit 
Contractor’s other obligations herein.  This warranty shall survive termination or expiration of the 
Contract. 

 
INSPECTION, RECORDS, ADMINISTRATION 
 
32. RECORDS:  The City shall have the right to inspect and audit all Contractor books and records 

related to the Contract for up to five (5) years after completion of the Contract.   
 

33. RIGHT TO INSPECT BUSINESS:  The City shall have the right to inspect the place of business 
of the Contractor or its subcontractor during regular business hours at reasonable times, to the 
extent necessary to confirm Contract performance. 

 
34. PUBLIC RECORDS:  This Contract and any related materials are a matter of public record and 

subject to disclosure pursuant to Arizona Public Records Law, A.R.S. § 39-121 et seq.  If Contractor 
has clearly marked its proprietary information as “confidential”, the City will endeavor to notify 
Contractor prior to release of such information.  

 
35. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION:  Contractor will be required to participate in the City’s  Contract 

Administration Process.  Contractor will be closely monitored for contract compliance and will be 
required to promptly correct any deficiencies. 

 
INDEMNIFICATION, INSURANCE 
 
36. GENERAL INDEMNIFICATION:  Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, 

its council, boards and commissions, officers, employees from all losses, claims, suits, payments 
and judgments, demands, expenses, attorney’s fees or actions of any kind resulting from personal 
injury to any person, including employees, subcontractors or agents of Contractor or damages to 
any property arising or alleged to have arisen out of the negligent performance of the Contract, 
except any such injury or damages arising out of the sole negligence of the City, its officers, 
agents or employees.  This indemnification provision shall survive termination or expiration of the 
Contract.   This indemnification clause shall not apply, if a different indemnification clause is 
included in the City’s Specific Terms and Conditions.  

37. INSURANCE:  Contractor shall maintain all insurance coverage required by the City, including 
public liability and worker’s compensation.   

38. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INDEMNIFICATION:  Contractor shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the City against any liability, including costs and expenses, for infringement of any 
patent, trademark or copyright or other proprietary rights of any third parties arising out of contract 
performance or use by the City of materials furnished or work performed under this Contract. 
Contractor shall promptly assume full responsibility for the defense of any suit or proceeding 
which is, has been, or may be brought against the City and its agents for alleged infringement, or 
alleged unfair competition resulting from similarity in design, trademark or appearance of goods, 
and indemnify the City against any and all expenses, losses, royalties, profits and damages, 
attorneys fees and costs resulting from such proceedings or settlement thereof.  This 
indemnification shall survive termination or expiration of the Contract.   

 
CONTRACT CHANGES 



 

 
39. PRICE INCREASES:  Except as expressly provided for in the Contract, no price increases will be 

approved. 
 

40. COMPLETE AGREEMENT:  The Contract is intended to be the complete and final agreement of 
the parties.   

 
41. AMENDMENTS:  This Contract may be amended by written agreement of the parties. 

 
42. SEVERABILITY:  If any term or provision of this Contract is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, then such term or provision is deemed deleted, and the 
remainder of this Contract shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
43. NO WAIVER:  Each party has the right insist upon strict performance of the Contract, and the 

prior failure of a party to insist upon strict performance, or a delay in any exercise of any right or 
remedy, or acceptance of materials or services, shall not be deemed a waiver of any right to insist 
upon strict performance.  

 
44. ASSIGNMENT:  This Contract may be assigned by Contractor with prior written consent of the 

City, which will not be unreasonably withheld.  Any assignment without such consent shall be null 
and void.  Unless expressly provided for in a separately executed Consent to Assignment, no 
assignment shall relieve Contractor (Assignor) from any of its obligations and liabilities under the 
Contract with respect to City.  The Purchasing Director shall have authority to consent to an 
assignment on behalf of City. 

 
45. BINDING EFFECT:  This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties 

and their successors and assigns. 
 
EMPLOYEES AND SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
46. SUBCONTRACTING:  Contractor may subcontract work in whole or in part with the City’s 

advance written consent.  City reserves the right to withhold consent if subcontractor is deemed 
irresponsible and/or subcontracting may negatively affect performance. All subcontracts shall 
comply with the underlying Contract.  Contractor is responsible for Contract performance whether 
or not subcontractors are used.  

 
47.  NONDISCRIMINATION:  Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment or person to whom it provides services because of race, color, religion, sex, national 
origin, disability, genetic information, veteran’s status, pregnancy, familial status and represents 
and warrants that it complies with all applicable federal, state and local laws and executive orders 
regarding employment.  In addition any Contractor located within City of Flagstaff limits shall 
comply with the City Code, Chapter 14-02Civil Rights which also prohibits discrimination based on 
sexual orientation, or  gender identity or expression. 

 
48. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE:  The City has adopted a Drug Free Workplace policy for itself and 

those doing business with the City to ensure the safety and health of all persons working on City 
contracts and projects.  Contractor personnel shall abstain from use or possession of illegal drugs 
while engaged in performance of this Contract. 

 
49. IMMIGRATION LAWS:  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-4401, Contractor hereby warrants to the City 

that the Contractor and each of its subcontractors will comply with, and are contractually obligated 



 

to comply with, all State and Federal Immigration laws and regulations that relate to its employees 
and A.R.S. § 23-214(A) (hereinafter “Contractor Immigration Warranty”). A breach of the 
Contractor Immigration Warranty shall constitute a material breach of this Contract and shall 
subject the Contractor to penalties up to and including termination of this Contract at the sole 
discretion of the City.  The City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any Contractor or 
subcontractor employee who works on this Contract to ensure compliance with the Contractor 
Immigration Warranty.  Contractor agrees to assist the City in regard to any such inspections. The 
City may, at its sole discretion, conduct random verification of the employment records of the 
Contractor and any subcontractors to ensure compliance with Contractor’s Immigration Warranty.  
Contractor agrees to assist the City in regard to any random verification performed.  Neither 
Contractor nor any subcontractor shall be deemed to have materially breached the Contractor 
Immigration Warranty if Contractor or subcontractor if Contractor or subcontractor establishes that 
it has complied with the employment verification provisions prescribed by sections 274A and 274B 
of the Federal Immigration and Nationality Act and the E-verify requirements prescribed by A.R.S. 
§ 23-214(A). 

 
 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION 
 
50. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT:  Prior to terminating this Contract for a material breach, the non-

defaulting party shall give the defaulting party written notice and reasonable opportunity to cure 
the default, not to exceed thirty (30) days unless a longer period of time is granted by the non-
defaulting party in writing.  In the event the breach is not timely cured, or in the event of a series of 
repeated breaches the non-defaulting party may elect to terminate Contract by written notice to 
Contractor, which shall be effective upon receipt.  In the event of default, the parties may execute 
all remedies available at law in addition Contract remedies provided for herein.   
 

51. CITY REMEDIES: In the event of Contractor’s default, City may obtain required materials and/or 
services from a substitute contractor, and Contractor shall be liable to the City to pay for the costs 
of such substitute service.  City may deduct or offset the cost of substitute service from any 
balance due to Contractor, and/or seek recovery of the costs of substitute service against  any 
performance security, and/or collect any liquidated damages provided for in the Contract. 
Remedies herein are not exclusive.   

 
52. CONTRACTOR REMEDIES:  In the event of City’s default, Contractor may pursue all remedies 

available at law, except as provided for herein. 
 

53. SPECIAL DAMAGES:   In the event of default, neither party shall be liable for incidental, special, 
or consequential damages.  

 
54. TERMINATION FOR NONAPPROPRIATION OF FUNDS:  The City may terminate all or a 

portion of this Contract due to budget constraints and non-appropriation of funds for the following 
fiscal year, without penalty or liability to Contractor.   

 
55. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE:  Unless expressly provided for otherwise in the Contract, 

this Contract may be terminated in whole or part by the City for convenience upon thirty (30) days 
written notice, without further penalty or liability to Contractor. If this Contract is terminated, City 
shall be liable only for payment for satisfactory materials and/or services received and accepted 
by City before the effective date of termination.  

 
56. TERMINATION DUE TO INSOLVENCY:  If Contractor becomes a debtor in a bankruptcy 

proceeding, or a reorganization, dissolution or liquidation proceeding, or if a trustee or receiver is 



 

appointed over all or a substantial portion of the property of Contractor under federal bankruptcy 
law or any state insolvency law, Contractor shall immediately provide the City with a written notice 
thereof. The City may terminate this Contract, and Contractor is deemed in default, at any time if 
the Contractor becomes insolvent, or is a party to any voluntary bankruptcy or receivership 
proceeding, makes an assignment for a creditor, or there is any similar action that affects 
Contractor’s ability to perform under the Contract.  

 
57. PAYMENT UPON TERMINATION:  Upon termination of this Contract, City will pay Contractor for 

satisfactory performance up until the effective date of termination.  City shall make final payment 
within thirty (30) days from receipt of the Contractor’s final invoice.  

 
58. CANCELLATION FOR GRATUITIES: The City may cancel this Contract at any time, without 

penalty or further liability to Contractor, if City determines that Contractor has given or offered to 
give any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, 
or service to a public servant (“Gratuities”) in connection with award or performance of the 
Contract.  

 
59. CANCELLATION FOR CONFLICT OF INTEREST (A.R.S. § 38-511):  The City may cancel this 

Contract within three (3) years after its execution, without penalty or further liability to Contractor.  
 
MISCELLANEOUS 
 
60. ADVERTISING:   Contractor shall not advertise or publish information concerning its Contract 

with City, without the prior written consent of the City. 
 

61. NOTICES:  All notices given pursuant to this Contract shall be delivered at the addresses as 
specified in the Contract, or updated by Notice to the other party. Notices may be: (a) personally 
delivered, with receipt effective upon personal delivery; (b) sent via certified mail, postage 
prepaid, with receipt deemed effective four (4) days after being sent; (c) or sent by overnight 
courier, with receipt deemed effective two (2) days after being sent  Notice may be sent by email 
as a secondary form of notice.    

 
62. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES:  This Contract is intended for the exclusive benefit of the 

parties.  Nothing herein is intended to create any rights or responsibilities to third parties. 
 

63. GOVERNING LAW:  This Contract shall be construed in accordance with the laws of Arizona. 
 

64. FORUM:  In the event of litigation relating to this Contract, any action at law or in equity shall be 
filed in Coconino County, Arizona. 

 
65. ATTORNEYS FEES:  If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce the terms of this 

Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys fees, costs, 
professional fees and expenses. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
EXHIBIT C 



 

INSURANCE 
 
 
 
1. In General.  Contractor shall maintain insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to 

property, arising from performance of or in connection with this Contract by the Contractor, its 
agents, representatives, employees or contractors.  

 
2. Requirement to Procure and Maintain.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract shall be in 

effect at, or before, commencement of work under this Contract and shall remain in effect until all 
Contractor’s obligations under this Contract have been met, including any warranty periods.  The 
Contractor’s failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide 
timely evidence of renewal will be considered a material breach of this Contract.   

 
3.  Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  The following insurance requirements are minimum 

requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this 
Contract.  The City does not represent or warrant that the minimum limits set forth in this Contract 
are sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of this Contract, and 
Contractor is free to purchase such additional insurance as Contractor may determine is necessary. 

 
Contractor shall provide coverage at least as broad and with limits not less than those stated below. 

 
a. Commercial General Liability - Occurrence Form 

 
General Aggregate   $2,000,000 
Products/Completed Operations $1,000,000 
Each Occurrence   $1,000,000 

 
b. Umbrella Coverage   $2,000,000 

 
c. Automobile Liability –  

Any Automobile or Owned, Hired  
and Non-owned Vehicles 
Combined Single Limit Per Accident  
for Bodily Injury & Property Damage $1,000,000 

 
d. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability 

 
Workers’ Compensation  Statutory 
Employer’s Liability: Each Accident $500,000 
Disease - Each Employee  $500,000 
Disease - Policy Limit   $500,000 

 
e.   Professional Liability   $2,000,000 

 
4. Self-Insured Retention. Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the City.  

If not approved, the City may require that the insurer reduce or eliminate such self-insured 
retentions with respect to the City, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers. Contractor shall 
be solely responsible for any self-insured retention amounts.  City at its option may require 
Contractor to secure payment of such self insured retention by a surety bond or irrevocable and 
unconditional letter of credit. 



 

 
5. Other Insurance Requirements. The policies shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following 

provisions: 
 

a. Additional Insured. In Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Coverages, the City 
of Flagstaff, its officers, officials, agents and employees shall be named and endorsed as 
additional insureds with respect to liability arising out of this Contract and activities performed by 
or on behalf of the Contractor, including products and completed operations of the Contractor, 
and automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor. 

 
b. Broad Form. The Contractor’s insurance shall contain broad form contractual liability coverage. 

 
c. Primary Insurance. The Contractor’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance with 

respect to the City, its officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers.  Any insurance or 
self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, agents and employees, shall be in 
excess of the coverage of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 
d. Each Insured. The Contractor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom 

a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability. 
 

e. Not Limited. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed 
under the indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
f. Waiver of Subrogation. The policies shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the City, its 

officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from work performed by Contractor 
for the City. 

 
6. Notice of Cancellation.  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, reduced in 
coverage or in limits unless prior written notice has been given to the City.  Notices required by this 
section shall be sent directly to the Buyer listed in the original Solicitation and shall reference the 
Contract Number:  

 
Attention:  _Di Ann Butkay, Buyer 
Contract No. _______________________  
Purchasing Department 
City of Flagstaff, 
211 W.  Aspen Avenue 
Flagstaff, Arizona  86001. 

 
7. Acceptability of Insurers.  Contractor shall place insurance hereunder with insurers duly licensed or 

approved unlicensed companies in the State of Arizona and with a “Best’s” rating of not less than A-
: VII.  The City does not represent or warrant that the above required minimum insurer rating is 
sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
8. Certificates of Insurance.  The Contractor shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance 

(ACORD form) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for each insurance policy shall be 
signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  Any policy 
endorsements that restrict or limit coverage shall be clearly noted on the certificate of insurance.  
The City project/contract number and project description shall be noted on the certificates of 



 

insurance. The City must receive and approve all certificates of insurance and endorsements before 
the Contractor commences work.   

 
9. Policies.  The City reserves the right to require, and receive within ten (10) days, complete, certified 

copies of all insurance policies and endorsements required by this Contract at any time.  The City 
shall not be obligated, however, to review any insurance policies or to advise Contractor of any 
deficiencies in such policies and endorsements.  The City’s receipt of Contractor’s policies or 
endorsements shall not relieve Contractor from, or be deemed a waiver of, the City’s right to insist 
on strict fulfillment of Contractor’s obligations under this Contract. 

 
10. Modifications. Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract must 

have the prior approval of the City’s Attorney’s Office in consultation with the City’s Risk Manager, 
whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal Contract amendment but may 
be made by their handwritten revision and notation to the foregoing insurance requirements. 

 
 
 
 



CITY OF FLAGSTAFF

PURCHASING DIVISION

RFP # 2015-70 STREET OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE STUDY

SCORING TABULATION

Evaluation Criteria Ranking

Total Score: 2300 1735 1500 1460 1245 1155

Ranking: #1 #2 #3 #4 #5 #6

        

         

        

       

Talbot, 

Korvola & 

Warwick, LLP

The 

Barnhardt 

Group

LA 

Consulting

Applied 

Pavement 

Technology

Woodson 

Engineering

Matrix 

Consulting 

Group



  10. E.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT
To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Barney Helmick, Airport Director

Co-Submitter: Stacey Brechler-Knaggs, Grants Manager

Date: 08/26/2015

Meeting Date: 09/01/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Approval of Grant Agreement):  A grant agreement between the City of Flagstaff
and the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Aviation Administration for Update Airport Master
Plan Study with Airport Geographic Information System (AGIS) and Airport Layout Plan (ALP). (Grant
agreement for airport master plan study).

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Approve the acceptance of an FAA Grant Agreement in the amount of $500,000 for the Update
Airport Master Plan with AGIS and ALP project.
2) Authorize the City Manager to execute the necessary documents. 

Executive Summary:
The Flagstaff Airport is an important part of the economic growth of Flagstaff and Northern Arizona. To
meet the future needs of our communities' air service needs we must complete community involved
planning. Cost of maintaining Flagstaff Airport sustainability requires an outline of the needs, knowledge
of the public and stakeholder requirements and methods of achieving those plans. This Airport Master
Plan will give an outline of current and future facility needs, a list of grant eligible projects, along with
public impute.

Financial Impact:
The grant award is in the amount of $500,000 (91.06% Federal share), $24,545 (4.47% City share), and
$24,544 (4.47% State share) for a total project cost of $549,089.  Not completing the Airport Master Plan
could impact the City of Flagstaff in future FAA grant funded projects.  This project is budgeted in FY
2016 in account 221-07-222-3334-0-4421 for the amount of $600,000.

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOALS:
3) Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services, and infrastructure systems in an efficient
and effective manner to serve all population areas and demographics.
7) Address key issues and processes related to the implementation of the Regional Plan.
9) Foster relationships and maintain economic development commitment to partners.

REGIONAL PLAN:
Transportation - Goal T.10 and associated policies, Public Buildings, Services, Facilities and Safety. 

  



Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
No.

Options and Alternatives:
Approve FAA Grant for Airport Master Plan1.
Do not approve FAA Grant for Airport Master Plan2.

Background/History:
The FAA requires Publicly funded airports to complete Airport Master Plans on a regular basis to justify
Grant funding. This shows to the FAA that the Airport Sponsor is doing long term responsible planning to
meet the public needs. The Flagstaff Airport last completed an Airport Master Plan in 2007. Since that
Airport Master Plan was completed annual passenger traffic has increased from 88,000 to 136,000 total.
At that continued growth rate Flagstaff Airport should see 183,000 passengers in the year 2023 and
upwards of 300,000 by 2030. The current infrastructure is not designed to handle this growth. This
Airport Master Plan will address, future parking, terminal needs, public egress and facility needs for the
next 20 years. 

Key Considerations:
This Airport Master Plan will allow public impute to the next 20 years of growth for the Flagstaff Airport. 

Expanded Financial Considerations:
Failure to accept this Grant and complete the Airport Master Plan could negatively impact the ability to
qualify for future FAA grants.

Community Benefits and Considerations:
The Airport Master Plan will benefit the community by allowing them to give impute in the needs of our
airport to provide service in the future. We expect continued growth to meet the public needs and that
growth will require long term planning to make the Airport sustainable and cost effective.

Community Involvement:
Inform; The public will be informed multiple times as to the progress of this project.
Collaborate; Members of the public will be on the Airport Master Plan committee to provide public and
stake holder impute. Public impute is a critical component of Airport Master Planning

Attachments:  Grant Agreement-FAA AIP 39 Update Master Plan with AGIS and ALP









































  10. F.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Shannon Anderson, Human Resources Manager

Date: 08/26/2015

Meeting Date: 09/01/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-14:  Amending the Employee Handbook of
Regulations and Flagstaff City Code by adopting amendments relating to Retiree Insurance eligibility.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Remove Ordinance No. 2015-14 from the table
2) Read Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the final time
3) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-14 for the final time (if approved above)
4) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-14

Executive Summary:
During the first and initial final read the City was proposing to adopt changes to the Employee Handbook
and Flagstaff City Code to match retiree insurance eligibility adopted by the Northern Arizona Public
Employees Benefits Trust (NAPEBT). 

NAPEBT Trustees determined it was in the best interest of the Trust to adopt a retiree insurance
eligibility policy that was equal for all NAPEBT employers.  Initially some NAPEBT employers had 10
years of service required to be eligible for retiree insurance and others had 0 years of service in addition
to being eligible to retire under a State or Alternate Retirement System.  NAPEBT adopted a new policy
that required employees to work for five consecutive years for a NAPEBT employer and be eligible to
retire under the State or Alternate Retirement Systems in order to be eligible for retiree insurance.  

City Council discussed the Ordinance and proposed changes during the July 21, 2015 Council
meeting.  As a result of that discussion, the Ordinance was tabled.  Staff, in consultation with the City
Attorney's Office determined that the simplest and most clear way to handle the change in policy is to
amend the Employee Handbook and Flagstaff City Code to point to the NAPEBT policy adopted in the
NAPEBT Administrative Manual. 

Ordinance 2015-14 has been updated to refer employees to the NAPEBT Administrative Manual for
information on retiree insurance eligibility.

Financial Impact:
Limited financial impact.  The retiree pays 100% of the premium minus any subsidy the employee
receives from ASRS or PSPRS.  There is no direct cost to the City.  However, the retiree contributions do
not fully support the claims exposure and this generates a GASB liability for each of the NAPEBT
employers and it is noted on the City’s CAFR’s.
  
   



   

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
3) Provide sustainable and equitable public facilities, services, and infrastructure systems in an efficient
and effective manner to serve all population areas and demographics

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
Discussion and first reading of this ordinance occurred on July 7, 2015.  The Ordinance was read again
during the July 21, 2015 meeting and tabled.
  

Options and Alternatives:
Option 1:  Choose to not have a policy in relation to retiree insurance eligibility
Option 2:  Choose different wording or format to link the City's policy to the NAPEBT Administrative
Manual

Background/History:
An employee of Coconino Community College presented information to the Northern Arizona Public
Employee Benefit Trust (NAPEBT) during the NAPEBT meeting on January 24, 2014.  This employee
expressed he was negatively impacted by the difference in retiree insurance language between two
different NAPEBT employers.  As a result of this conversation there was another action item later in the
same meeting where the NAPEBT Trustees voted on a recommendation to change retiree insurance
eligiblity to "five consecutive years of service with a single NAPEBT employer in order to be eligible for
retiree health care under NAPEBT."  (Note: Coconino Community College and Coconino County both
required an employee to work for them for 10 years in order to be eligible for retirement.  The City and
FUSD both had no years of service requirement for employees to be eligible for retirement.  The Board’s
discussion was to meet in the middle, so the Trustees agreed to 5 years of service.)

This information was presented to the City's Employee Advisory Committee (EAC) on April 9, 2014 and
the EAC suggested the five years of service may be served with any NAPEBT employers.  The
information was presented to the City's Leadership Team on May 7, 2014 and Leadership suggested the
exclusion of employees who medically retired.  Leadership's suggestion was shared with the EAC on
May 14, 2014 and it was approved. 

This information was taken back to the NAPEBT board in July 2014 and the NAPEBT Trustees approved
the five years of service with any NAPEBT employer rather than the single employee initially
recommended in January 2014. 

Human Resources created a redline version of the Retiree Insurance policy included in the Employee
Handbook of Regulations and visited with the EAC on May 27, 2015 and the Leadership Team on July 3,
2015 and both groups unanimously approved the policy changes.

Several questions were brought up by the City Council after the first reading of Ordinance 2014-15 on
July 7, 2015 and Human Resources  made additional revisions to the policy to clarify what exceptions
apply to the five years of continuous service.  The City Council continued discussion on July 21, 2015, as
described in the Executive Summary.
  
   



   

Key Considerations:

City Retiree Data
There are currently 88 City retirees on the NAPEBT Retiree Insurance and out of these 88 employees 3
of them appear to have less than 5 years of service.  These retiree's date of retirement were between
1997 and 2006.

NAPEBT IGA
NAPEBT has authority to decide insurance plan eligibility on behalf of its members, including the
City.  The City-NAPEBT Intergovernmental Agreement ("IGA") and Declaration of Trust (Amendment No.
2), dated 2006, was adopted for the purpose of jointly purchasing health insurance, among other
things. The IGA provides that the Trustees shall: 

“use the premiums, contributions, or other amounts received by the Trust to purchase and maintain
in force such policy or policies of insurance as the Trustees in their sole discretion shall determine
to be in the best interest of the Participants and the Employees…” 5.8.1 
“apply for any insurance in its name as policyholder or in the names of the Participants and to use
the Trust Funds to pay for and accept and hold as part of the Fund the policy or policies so
acquired.” * * *  Trustees may enter into agreements with any insurer of any policy or policies
concerning waiting periods, eligibility of Employees, definition of full-time employment ….. “ 5.8.2

NAPEBT has established a uniform policy for eligibility for retirees to continue receiving insurance
through their former NAPEBT employer, effective July 1.  NAPEBT may change or clarify its policy in the
NAPEBT Administrative Manual from time to time.  The proposed ordinance will simply direct City
employees to that Manual.

State Retirement 
Ordinance 2014-15 on Retiree Insurance does not impact or affect an employee's retirement benefits
under the Arizona State Retirement or Public Safety Personnel Retirement systems.  Below is
information about the eligibility for State retirement:

ASRS Eligibility:
Normal Retirement for members who began contributing to ASRS prior to July 1, 2011 is the earliest
date of one of the following: Age 65 with any amount of credited service, Age 62 with 10 or more years of
credited service or 80 points which is a combination of age and years of credited service (e.g. age 49 +
years of credited service 31 = 80 points)
 
Normal Retirement for members who began contributing to ASRS on or after July 1, 2011 is the earliest
date of one of the following: Age 65 with any amount of credit service, Age 62 with 10 or more years of
credited service, Age 60 with 25 or more years of credited service, or Age 55 with 30 or more years or
credited service.
 
Early retirement applies to members at Age 50 with at least 5 years of credited service and the member
will receive a reduced monthly benefit.
 
PSPRS Eligibility:
Tier 1: Employees who became members of PSPRS prior to January 1, 2012.  Members are eligible to
apply for normal pension benefits at 20 years of service or have 15 years of service and be at least age
62.
 
Tier 2: Employees who became members of PSPRS on or after January 1, 2012.  Members are eligible
to apply for normal pension benefits at 25 years of service and be at least age 52.5. 



   

Community Involvement:
Inform.

Attachments:  Ord. 2015-14



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-14 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
RELATING TO RETIREE INSURANCE, AMENDING THE EMPLOYEE 
HANDBOOK OF REGULATIONS AND FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE, PROVIDING 
FOR REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES, SEVERABILITY, 
AUTHORITY FOR CLERICAL CORRECTIONS, AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to provide retirees insurance consistent with policy established by 
the Northern Arizona Public Employees Benefit Trust (“NAPEBT”). 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. In General.  
  
The Flagstaff City Code, Title 1, Administrative, Chapter 14, Personnel System, Section 1-14-
001-0001 Personnel System Adopted, is hereby amended by adopting those changes to the 
Employee Handbook of Regulations, herein referred to as “2015 Addendum 7 of the Flagstaff 
Employee Handbook of Regulations,” as follows (additions shown in underlined capitalized text, 
deletions shown as stricken, and paragraphs E and F renumbered as B.2 and B.3 respectively): 
 

1-70-030. RETIREE INSURANCE 
 
The City will MAY provide medical and dental insurance for eligible City retirees under 
certain terms and conditions, all of which are subject to change in part or in whole 
depending on policy changes made by the Northern Arizona Public Employees Benefit 
Trust (NAPEBT)  or the City policy.  REFER TO THE RETIREE INSURANCE CHAPTER 
OF THE NAPEBT ADMINISTRATIVE MANUAL. 
 
Link: NAPEBT Administrative Manual 
 
A. To be eligible, an employee must retire from City service, and apply for and receive 

retirement benefits from either the Arizona State Retirement System or the Public 
Safety Personnel Retirement System. 

 
B. The retirees will pay the entire premium amount; there will be no City contribution.  

The premium rates will be reviewed annually. 
 
C. Those eligible employees retiring will have thirty (30) days after their last working 

day to enroll in the insurance program.  If they fail to do so within this thirty (30) day 
period they will be unable to join at a later date.   

 
D. Payments will be made directly to the City of Flagstaff through its Finance Section 

on a monthly basis by the due date of the statement, which is approximately the 
20th of each month.  It is the responsibility of the retirees to make the payments.  
Participants who fail to pay are subject to cancellation. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-14   PAGE 2 
 

E. Retirees can maintain their coverage under the provisions of this program until the 
retiree reaches age sixty-five (65) and/or becomes entitled to Medicare.  

 
F. Dependent coverage is available subject to the limitations outlined in the City’s 

group health insurance policy.  Dependents cannot continue in this insurance 
program when the retiree is no longer eligible, but will be eligible to continue 
benefits under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 
(COBRA).  The domestic partner will not be eligible to continue benefits under 
COBRA unless the employee elects continuation for himself/herself or the domestic 
partner is a qualified tax code dependent.   

 
SECTION 3.   Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances.  
 
All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance or any 
part of the code adopted herein by reference are hereby repealed.   
 
SECTION 4.   Severability. 
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance or any part of 
the code adopted herein by reference is for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by 
the decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions thereof. 
 
SECTION 5.  Clerical Corrections. 
 
The Human Resources Director is hereby authorized to correct typographical and grammatical 
errors, as well as errors of wording and punctuation, as necessary, related to the City of 
Flagstaff Employee Handbook of Regulations as amended herein, and to make formatting 
changes needed for purposes of clarity and form, or consistency.   
 
SECTION 6.  Effective Date. 
 
This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days following adoption by the City Council.   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Flagstaff this 1st day of September, 
2015. 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
  
ATTORNEY 



  10. G.             
CITY OF FLAGSTAFF
STAFF SUMMARY REPORT

To: The Honorable Mayor and Council

From: Elizabeth A. Burke, City Clerk

Date: 08/26/2015

Meeting Date: 09/01/2015

TITLE: 
Consideration and Adoption of Ordinance No. 2015-16:  An ordinance of the City Council of the City
of Flagstaff, Arizona, amending the Flagstaff City Code, Title I, Administrative, by adding a new Chapter
12, Consideration of Petition, thereto. (Citizen Petition Submittal Form)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
1) Read Ordinance No. 2015-16 by title only for the final time
2) City Clerk reads Ordinance No. 2015-16 by title only for the final time (if approved above)
3) Adopt Ordinance No. 2015-16

Executive Summary:
During the recent discussions regarding proposed Charter amendments, it was requested that an
ordinance be adopted that would outline the process for submittal of citizen petitions. While there is a
question on the upcoming ballot to require 25 citizens to sign such a petition, the current Charter states
that any citizen may submit a petition. Therefore, the proposed wording has been changed from the draft
internal packet to indicate that the petition form itself will indicate the number of signatures required by
referencing the City Charter. This way, there will be no need to bring this item back in the future if that
number changes during the upcoming, or any future, charter amendment elections.

Financial Impact:
None

Connection to Council Goal and/or Regional Plan:
COUNCIL GOAL:
8) Improve effectiveness of notification, communication, and engagement with residents, neighborhoods
and businesses and about City services, programs, policies, projects and developments

Has There Been Previous Council Decision on This:
This issue was discussed in general during various meetings where the proposed Charter amendments
were discussed. Additionally, the proposed ordinance was read for the first time at the August 25, 2015,
meeting at which a few amendments were requested and have been included in the attached ordinance.
  
   



   

Options and Alternatives:
1) Adopt the ordinance as written
2) Amend the ordinance
3) Wait until after the election results are determined
4) Take no action

Community Involvement:
Inform

Attachments:  Ord. 2015-16



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, 
ARIZONA, AMENDING THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE TITLE I, 
ADMINISTRATIVE, BY ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 12, CONSIDERATION OF 
PETITION, RELATED TO CITIZEN PETITIONS AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
 
RECITALS: 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to establish a process to facilitate the submission of a 
citizen petition consistent with the City Charter. 
 
 
ENACTMENTS: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. In General. 
 
The Flagstaff City Code Title I, Administrative, is hereby amended by adding a new Chapter 12, 
Consideration of Petition, as follows: 
 

TITLE I, CHAPTER 12   CONSIDERATION OF PETITION 
 
1-12-001-0001 DEFINITIONS: 
 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 
 
“Citizen” shall mean any resident of the City.  
 
1-12-001-0002 PETITION FORM: 
 
Any citizen of the City of Flagstaff who desires to submit a petition to the City Manager, for 
consideration by the City Council, shall use the petition form provided by the City Clerk’s Office, 
which form shall include the printed name and contact information (e.g. address, phone number 
and/or e-mail address), title of the issue and specific action being requested, along with the 
following information of each citizen signing said petition: 
 
1. Printed Name  
2. Residence Address  
3. Signature 
4. Date signed 
 
The form of petition shall set forth the number of citizens who are required to submit the petition, 
consistent with the Flagstaff City Charter, Article II, Section 17, as may be amended from time 
to time.  
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-16  Page 2 
  

 

1-12-001-0003 PETITION PROCESS: 
 
Once completed, the petition shall be filed with the City Manager in person or by postal delivery. 
The City Manager will date stamp the original and return a copy to the petitioner. The City 
Manager will cause the date stamped, original petition to be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  
Thereafter the petition shall be presented to the Council at its next regular meeting. The City 
Clerk will endeavor to notify the petitioner of such regular meeting date by email to the address 
noted on the petition form. 
 
SECTION 2.   Effective Date.   
 
This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days following adoption by the City Council.   
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Flagstaff this 1st day of September, 
2015. 
 
 
 
 
               
        MAYOR 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
 
  
CITY CLERK 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
  
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	Item04_A  Minutes
	ATT.08.25.2015.CCRM.Minutes
	ATT.08.25.2015.CCSMES.Minutes
	Item09_A  Annual Computer Software Maintenance.
	ATT.FY16 Software Maintenance
	ATT.Harris invoice
	ATT.SHI quote
	ATT.SirsiDynix quote
	ATT.Intergraph renewal
	Item10_A  Approve a Contract for the Installation of an Emergency Generator at Fort Tuthill Well
	ATT.Construction Contract
	ATT.PowerPoint
	Emergency Power �Continuity of Operations Plan
	What is our Tolerance for Risk?
	Why be Prepared? 
	Emergency Back-Up�Wastewater
	Emergency Back-Up�Water
	Continuity of Operations
	Utilities Division�Continuity of Operation Strategy
	City Council Questions?
	City Council Questions?

	Item10_B  Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendments_ Innovation Mesa Business Accelerator and Secondary Emergency Operations Center
	ATT.First Amendment to Agreement for Services NACET
	ATT.First Amendment to Master Lease Incubator 
	ATT.First Amendment to Master Lease Accelerator
	Item10_C  IGA for Fire Medical Rescue Services to the Westwood Estates Fire District
	ATT.2015 IGA COF WEFD
	ATT.Westwood Estates FD Map
	Item10_D  Consideration and Approval of Contract to LA Consulting for RFP 2015-70 Roads & Streets Operations & Maintenance Study
	ATT.Contract
	ATT.Evaluation Ranking Tabulation
	Item10_E  Grant for Airport Master Plan
	ATT.Grant Agreement-FAA AIP 39 Update Master Plan with AGIS and ALP
	Item10_F  Retiree Insurance
	ATT.Ord. 2015-14
	SECTION 1. In General.
	The Flagstaff City Code, Title 1, Administrative, Chapter 14, Personnel System, Section 1-14-001-0001 Personnel System Adopted, is hereby amended by adopting those changes to the Employee Handbook of Regulations, herein referred to as “2015 Addendum 7...

	Item10_G  Ord. - Citizen Petition Process
	ATT.Ord. 2015-16
	AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FLAGSTAFF, ARIZONA, AMENDING THE FLAGSTAFF CITY CODE TITLE I, ADMINISTRATIVE, BY ADDING A NEW CHAPTER 12, CONSIDERATION OF PETITION, RELATED TO CITIZEN PETITIONS AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE
	“Citizen” shall mean any resident of the City.



